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This is Exhibit “F” referred to in the affidavit of
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From: Evon, Alexandre (713)

Sent: March 12, 2025 4:53 PM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakbasansgha@yahoo.com> Manwal,Mangj
<mmanwal @ premjertruck.com>

Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine {713} <padipe.zagraoui@daimlertruck.com>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Good afternoon,

That is not what we agreed. If $20,000 is not received in our account by tomorrow morning the bailiif will be issued.

Kirnd Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

PH: 877-275-115% ext 37052

Email: alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com
i r-trackfinanci

DAIMLER TRUCK

Financial Services

4Q:

From: Accounting <gccounting@jsanghatransport.coms
Sent: March 12, 2025 4:51 PM

Ta: Evon, Alexandre {713) <alexandre evon®@daimlertruck.com:: Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vyahoo.com>; Manwal,Manaj
<mmanwal@premiertruck,com>

Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine {713) <nadine zagraoui@daimlertruck.com>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Hi there,

This is just to inform you that we will make some of the paymaent tomorrow and we will send you proof of payment, rest of the
payment will be made on Monday.



Thanks for your understanding and co-operation.

Thanks. o

From: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexandre.evon@daimlertryck.com=

Sent: March 12, 2025 12:42 PM

To: Accounting <accounting@®@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; Manwal,Manoj
<mmanwal@premiertruck.com>

Ce: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <padine.zagraoui@daimlertruck.com>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - jagdeep Sangha

Goad afternoaon,

If we do not receive proof of payment for $20,000 by the end of the day we will issue the bailiff. The remaining arrears
will need to be sent on Monday.

Kind Regards,

Atex Evan
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: alexandre. evoniédaimdertrack.com
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DAIMLER TRUCK

Financial Services

From: Accounting <accounti i >

Sent: March 12, 2025 12:00 PM
To: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexandre evon@daimlertruck.comy>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vahoo.com>; Manwal,Manoj
<mmanwal@premiertruck.com:

Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine {713) <nadine.zagracui@daimlertruck.com>
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Hi there,
Good Morning,
Sorry for this inconvenience, we will clear out your balance on Monday as we are getting payiments late from our customers

and our cheques are on hotd.
Please try to understand our situation. We much appreciate to you for this kindness.

Thanks.,



Sent: March 12, 2025 10:25 AM
To: Accounting <accounting@®jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; Manwal,Mano}
<mmanwal@premiertruck.cems>
Cc: Zagraoul, Nadine (713} <padine zagraoui@daimlertruck.com>
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

impaortance: High

Goaod Morning,

We never received proof of payment. Not only did we not receive proof of payment, but your March payment returned
“Payment Stopped” for 5002122745001 and you are now 2 menths past due on this account,

Currently your accounts are past due for:

Account Number
5002122745001
5002114719001
5002121629001
5002028248001
5002129162001

Days
Past
Due
32
24
24
3
o

Total Amount Past Pue
$28,047.96
$11,814.14
$14,548.54

$2,213.44
52,093.09
$58,717.17

If you do not provide proof of payment for yaur full arrears immediately we will be issuing the bailiff tonight. We've
already issued final notices on all these accounts in February and will not provide you with anymare time.

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: glexandre.evonimdaimlertruck.com

49
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me Ahu O,ube Mnhammad {713) <mgnamgla§3nguhg@damﬂmmkm>

Sent; March 21, 2025 3:13 PM

Ta: Accounting <accounting@|sanghatransport.coms; Evon, Alexandre (713} <afexandre.evon®daimlerruck.coms; takhvir Singh
<lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; Manwal,Mano <mmanwal@eremiartruck com>

Ce: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <nadlne zagracui@daimiertruck.com>

Subfect: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Importance: High

Hi,

We understand your current situalion; however, this is unfortunately unaccaptable. One of your accounts Is already two payments
behind dus ta a stop In payments from your side. While we have been exceedingly supportive over the past couple of years and
cantinua to offer assistance, we regret ta inform you that no further help can be provided in this matzer.

We strongly recaormnmend that you censider surrendering any unlts that you ars unable to pay for and focus on retaining those that are
ganerating incomne for you. Please be advised that if we do not recelve a payment by Monday at 12 PM EST, we wili have no choice but
to instruct the bailiff to proceed with seizing assets, This decision is final, and no excaptions will be made. We have already axtended
the payment deadtine, and this is an additional grace peariod being offerad,

Thank vou for understanding ang have a good day,
Regards,

Moe Cube
Managet, Cotlections & Loss Recavery

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Missigsauga, ON L4W 0AS

Tel: 416-459-9380

Fax; 833-902-3858

Email: Mohammmad.Aby:Qubs@dalmiertruck.com
. ! y E- .y

DAIMLER TRUCK

Financial Services

Fram: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>

Sant: March 21, 2025 3:38 PM

Ta: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexagdre avon@daimiertruck som>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangba®yahoo com>; Manwal,Mancj
<mmanival@premiestruck.com>

Cc: Zagraoul, Nadine {713) <padine.zagraoui@daimlestruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mohamemad.abu-quhe@daimlertruck.com>
Subiect: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha




Hi there,

Wa really appraciate your assistance, but we are also dependent on aur custcmer payments as we have one claim issue with company and
they have held our funds untlt claim wilt resolve, and cther company sald thla Is Quarter and, so they will release payment in staring of April
month. We are not denying making your paymants, we will clear it soon, some of the ameunt we will pay to you on Monday avening and will
safd you praof as weil.

Please iy to understand our situatian.

Thanks.

From: Evan, Mlexandre {713) <aiexsodre evon@daimiertiuck.com>

sent: March 21, 2025 940 AM

To: Accounting <accounting @isanghatransport.coms; Lakhvir Singh <akliasanefia@yahoo.com; Manwal, Manc] <mmanwal@oremisrifick.com>
Cc: Zagraoui, Nadina (713} <padioe zegraoti@dajmiertruck.com>; Abu-Oube, Mohammad (713) <mohammad.abi-qube@daimlertruck. com>
Subject: RE: AEGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Importaneat High

Good Matning,

You hava alraady seen provided time. Al thase payments should have baen raceived arcund id to end February 4s per our
arrangement but yoi: hava continded to push back the dates and stop payments.

Each time we are promized an amountwe get sent less and on a tater date than what was promised, If we do ot receive payment for
5002122745001 - $28,732.08 by 4pm EST we will assign your file to the bailiff.

Please be aware that 5002028248001 Is also still past due for $2,318.84.

Final notices have been lssued and expired. Na more time will be provided. We need irmadiate proof of payment.

Thank you.
Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Accouni Manager

Daimler Truck Fivancial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Ivississauga, ON L4W 0AS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052

Email; alexandre svoa@dnimlariruck.com

4@% DAIMLER TRUGK
Ef

Finandial Servicas




This is Exhibit “G” referred to in the affidavit of
Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn before me,
this {4 day of September, 2025.
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From: Accounting

To! i ; Lakhvir Singh; MMapwal@premieriruck,com
Cc: Evan, Alexandre (713)

Subiect: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Date: April 16, 2025 2:56:39 PM

Attachments: imace(0.ong

Hithere,
Thanks for reminding us, we are working on it to clear it.
Thank you.

From: Daamsa, Ali {713} {(EXT} <alt.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>

Sent: April 16, 2025 1:.07 PM

Ta: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>;
MManwal@ premiertruck.com

Cc: Evon, Afexandre {713) <alexandre evon@daimiertruck.com>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - lagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Importance: High

Hello,

This is a reminder that your payments are due April 18, 2025, Failure to provide payment by that date will result in
the assignment of a bailiff for seizure or the commencement of legal proceedings.

Please see your updated delinquency below,

R n Jagdeep Sangha Transport, © . S : S
5002028248 o e o 82,108,040 0
- ‘Jagdéé'ﬁnhSEiVngha Transpori T
5002047470 Ing, 15 $9,926.69
S Y Jagdeep Sangha Transpor s A
5002100491 . T e h e 1t - 3699764

Jagdeep Sangha Transport &
5002105956 Inc. 13 $10,715.54
e "7 Japdeep Sangha Transport . . oo n oo
5002116518 e e T A T 810,279.09
Jagdeep Sangha Transport
5002122745 Inc. 39 $28,047.96
Ty P ey S S N (R
5002125321 L 20T $12,941.48 -
" Jagdeep Sangha Transport
5002141253 Inc. 23 $18,218.44




Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Mathesocn Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W QA5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext, 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimiertruck,com
www daimier-truckfinancial.ca

-
4@5 i BAIMLER TRUCK

Firangisi Servicns

From: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com:»

Sent: April 11, 2025 2:03 PM

To: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com>; Daamsa, Ali (713) {£XT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>;
Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahco.com>; MManwal @ premiertruck.com

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transpert Inc.

Hi there,

Good afternoon,

We will make your missed payments soon and will send you proof of that. The stop payment has been removed from
Bank account so your future payments will not return.

Sarry for this inconvenience.

Thank you,

From: Evon, Alexandre (713} <alexandre evon@daimiertruck.com>
Sent: April 11, 2025 11:43 AM
To: Accounting <accounting@ijsanghatransport.coms>: Daamsa, Ali (713) (EXT) <ali.dsamsa@daimtertruck.com:>; Lakhvir

Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; MManwai@nremiertruck.com
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

importance: High

Good Morning,

Fult payment for arrears must be sent by the 18™, not the first payment towards arrears. If any accounts are
past due by the 19" the bailiff will be assigned for those fites. Currently your accourtts are past due for:

Account Number Days past Pue  Total Amount Past Due
5002122745001 34 $28,047.96
5002141253001 18 $18,218.44
5002125321001 15 $12,941.48
5002047470001 10 $9,455.18
5002105956001 8 $10,205.28
5002116518001 7 $9,789.61

5002101481001 & $6,664.42



5002028248001 ? $2,108.04
$57,430.41

Please provide proof of payment for full arrears by the 181 1o avoid further escalations. You must lift your stop
payment on your bank account or provide a new void cheque so your future monthly payments clear as your

payments have continued fo retum “Payment Stopped.”

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: alexandre.evon@daimiertiuck.com

www.daimler-truckfinanciat.ca
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This is Exhibit “H” referred to in the affidavit of
Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn before me,
this 1S day of September, 2025,
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84-009-4002 (12/21)

NOTICE OF DEFAULT | Daimler Truck Financial

February 13, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . B
5002101491001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $6,664.42.

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
{"DTF™), the full amount in default indicated above. At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an updake of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information will result in one or more of the following actions: ‘

+ Repossession of the vehicle
¢ Commencement of legal proceedings
« Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediate action is
necessary.

A Evon

Alexandre Evon
Collections Agent

1-877-275-1151 ext. 37052
Registered mail #

WARNING: In the event of repossession you may be responsible for additional fees incurred, including, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and starage, vehicle preparation fees, and any deficiency resulting from sale at
auction. If legal action is pursued you may aiso be responsible for all interest and legal costs which result
from our lawyers

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Gerporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5
Phcne No.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No, 5062101491001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2022 Freightliner PTt265LP SAKJHHDRXNSNES052
2022 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDR7NSNE3056

84-009-4002 (12/21) Page 20f 2

Daimler Truck Financiat Services Canada Carporation
2680 Mathescn Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5S

Phane No.: 1-800-361-4680
www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



84-009-4002 (12/21)
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimter Truck Financial

April 8, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER . S ,
5002047470001 See schedule A for VVehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transpart Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $9,455.18,

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
("DTF™), the full amount in default indicated above. At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information will result in one or more of the following actions;

+« Repossession of the vehicle
+» Commencement of legal proceedings
s Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefare, your immediate action is
necessary.

Al Daamsa
Coilactions Agent
1.877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Registered maif #

WARNING: In the event of repossession you may be responsibie for additional fees incurred, including, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and storage, vehicle preparation fees, and any deficiency resulting from sale at
auction. if legal action is pursued you may aiso be responsibie for ail interest and legal costs which result

from our lawyers

Daimtar Truck Financial Services Canada Corporalion
2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-468¢
Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1wW4

Account No. 5002047470001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN

2018 Utility Trailer 1UYV32536J2198394
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS2535J2198404
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS52534J2369210
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS52530J2369270
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYV32531J2994759

84-008-4002 (12/21)

Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financiaf Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
www,daimler-lruckiinancial.ca




84-008-4002 (12/21) ’
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

Aprit 8, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrock Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER ] } .
5002141253001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc,,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $18,218.44,

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
{"DTF™, the full amount in default indicated above. At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information will result in one or more of the following actions:

* Repocssession of the vehicle
+  Commencement of legal proceadings
s  Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediate action is
necessary.

KL Dacimaa
Ali Daamsa

Collections Agent
1-877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Registered mail #

WARNING: In the event of repossession you may be responsible for additional fees incurred, including, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and storage, vehicle preparation fees, and any deficiency resulting from sale at
auction. If legal action is pursued you may also be responsible for all interest and legal costs which resuit
from our lawyers

Daimler Truck Firancial Services Canada Corparation
2680 Maiheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1\W4

Account No. 5002141253001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN

2021 Utility Trailer Van Traller TUYV3S3535M2014234
2021 Utility Trailer Van Trailer 1UYVS3537M2014235
2021 Utility Trailer Van Trailer 1UYVS3539M2014236
2021 Utility Trailer Van Trailer 1UYVS3534M2014242
2021 Utility Trailer Van Trailer 1UYVS3536M2014243
2021 Hyundai Aluminum/ Steel 3H3VE33C5MT714006
2021 Hyundai Aluminum/ Steel 3H3VB33C7MT714007
2021 Hyundai Aluminum/ Steet 3H3V533COMT7 14009
2021 Hyundai Aluminumy Steel 3H3VB33COMT7 14011
2021 Hyundai Aluminum/ Steel 3H3VE33COMT714012

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5
Phane No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4002 {12/21} Page 2 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



84-008-4002 {12/21) o
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

Aprii 8, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER ) . . .
5002122745001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $14,366.03.

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
("DTF"), the full amount in default indicated abova. At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information will result in one or mare of the following actions:

+« Repossession of the vehicle
+« Commencement of l[egal proceedings
« Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediate action is
necessary.

LY Daamaea
Ali Daamsa

Coilections Agent
1-877-275-11581 ext. 0102
Registered mail #

WARNING: In the event of repossession you may be responsible for additionai fees incurred, including, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and storage, vehicle preparation fees, and any deficiency resulting from sale at
auction. If legal action Is pursued you may also be responsible for all interest and legal costs which result
from our lawyers

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 10of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transpert Inc.

23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No, 5002122745001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2023 CIMC Cool Globe CRS80008 28HSR5320PS002053
2023 CIMC Cool Globe CR380008 25HSR5328PS8002057
2023 CIMC Cool Globe CR80008 28HSRE323PS002077
2023 CIMC Cool Globe CR80008 28HSR5329PS002083
2023 CIMC Cool Globe CR80008 28HSR5320PS002084
2023 CiMC Cool Globe CR8000B 28HSR532XP5002125
Daimier Truck Financial Servicas Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5
Phone Na.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4002 (12/21) Page 2 of 2 www.daimter-fruckfinancial.ca



84-009-4002 (12/21)
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

Aprii 8, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1w4

ACCOUNT NUMBER B B i
5002105956001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $10,205.28,

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
("DTF"), the full amount in default indicated above. Al this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and poficy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
informaticn will resuit in one or more of the following actions:

« Repossession of the vehicle
« Commencement of legal proceedings
» Further detericration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediate action is
necessary.

LY DPaamas
Ali Daamsa

Collections Agent
1-877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Registered mail #

WARNING: In the event of repossassion you may be responsible for additional fees incurred, including, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and starage, vehicle preparation fees, and any deficiency resulting from sale at
auction. If legal action is pursued you may also be responsible for all interest and legal costs which resuit
from our lawyers

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corperation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W GAS
Phene No.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

23 wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002105956001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2022 Freightliner PT1265LP 3AKJHHDR2NSNE3045
2022 Freightliner PT1265LP JAKJHHDRENSNE3047
2022 Freightliner PT126SLP SAKJHHDR8BNSNE3048
Daimler Truck Financiat Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W QA5
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4002 {12/21) Page 2 of 2 www.daimler-fruckfinancial.ca



84-009-4002 {(12/21)
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

April 8, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc,
23 Wildbreck Bay
Winnipeg, MB RZR 1W4

AGCOUNT NUMBER ] . .
5002416518001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transpoert Inc.,
This letter is a foermal demand for payment in the amount of $9,789.61.

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
{"DTF"), the full amount in default indicated above. At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information will result in one or more of the following actions:

« Repossession of the vehicle
«  Commencement of legal proceedings
» Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediate action is
necessary.

LY Daamaa
All Daamsa

Callections Agent
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
auction. If legal action is pursued you may also be respensible for all interest and legal costs which result
from our lawyers

Daimier Truck Financiat Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON £L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No, 5002116518001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2023 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDRSPSULB705
2023 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDROPSUL8706

84-009-4002 (12/21) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financial Servicas Canada Corparation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4\ 0AS5

Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
www.daimier-truckfinancial .ca



84-009-4002 (12/21) _— ]
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

Aprit 22, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . .
5002401461001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $6,997.64.

Yau have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
("DTF™), the full amount in default indicated above. At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information will resuit in one or more of the following actions:

« Repossession of the vehicle
+ Commencement of legal proceedings
s  Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediate action is
necessary.

LY Daamaea
Ali Daamsa

Collecticns agent
1.877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Registered mail #

WARNING: In the event of repossession you may be responsible for additional fees incurred, inciuding, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and storage, vehicle preparation fees, and any deficiency resulting from sale at
auction. If legal action is pursued you may also be responsible for all interest and legai costs which resuli
from our lawyers

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Cerporation
2680 Matheson Bivd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W GAS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5302101491001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2022 Freightliner PT126S1.P 3AKJHHDRXNSNE3052
2022 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDR7NSNE3056

84-009-4002 {12/21) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financial Services Carada Corporaticn
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W DAS

Phane No.: 1-800-361-4680
www.dairnler-truckfinancial.ca



84-009-4002 {12/21} i
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial |

April 22, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER . , ,
5002114718001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $11,251.56.

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financlal Services Canada Corporation
{"DTF™"}, the full amount in default indicated above. Al this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insuranca
information will resuit in ane or more of the following actions:

« Repossession of the vehicle
+ Commencement of iegal proceedings
s Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediate action is
necessary.

LY Daamaea
Ali Daamsa

Collections agent
1-877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Registered mail #

WARNING: In the event of repossession you may be responsible for additional fees incurred, ineluding, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and storage, vehicle preparation fees, and any deficiency resulting from sale at
auction. If legal action Is pursued you may also be responsibie for all interest and legal costs which result
from our lawyers

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Carporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone Ne.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 10f2 www.daimler-fruckfinancial .ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002114713001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2023 Freightliner PT126SLP JAKJHHDRXPSUL8700
2023 Freightliner PT1263LP JAKJHHDR1PSUL8701

84-009-4002 (12121) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financial Servicas Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Fhone No.: 1-800-361-4680
www.daimler-truckfinancial,ca



84-009-4002 {(12/21) .
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

April 22, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . .
500212416290001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transpori Inc.,
This leiter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $12,123.78.

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
("DTF™), the full amount in defauit indicated above. Al this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information will resutt in one or moere of the following actions:

« Repossession of the vehicle
« Commencement of fegal proceedings
e  Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediate action is
necessary.

Y Paainea
Ali Daamsa

Collections agent
1-877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Registered mail #

WARNING: In the event of repossession you may be responsible for additional fees incurred, including, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and storage, vehicle preparation fees, and any deficiency resulting from saile at
auction. If tegal action is pursued you may also be responsibie for all interest and legal costs which result
from our lawyers

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 1of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002121629001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2024 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDR3RSUUSB214
2024 Freightliner PT126SLP SAKJIHHDRSRSUUSB215

84-009-4002 (12/21) Page 2 of 2

Batmler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680

www, daimier-truckfinancial.ca



84-009-4002 (12421) o : .
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

May 21, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc,
23 Wildbreok Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
5002114719001 2023 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDR1PSULS701

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $5,625,78.

You have 1 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimier Truck Financiat Services Canada Caorporation
("DTF"), the full amount in default indicated above, At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information will result in one ar more of the following acticns:

» Repossession of the vehicle
« Commencement of legal praceedings
« Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefare, your immediate action is
necessary.

AL Daamaa
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
auction. if legal action is pursued you may also be responsible for all interest and legal costs which result
from our lawyers

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Carporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Fhone No.: 1-800-361-4680
waww.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



84-009-4002 {12/21)
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

May 28, 2026

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrock Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . ]
5002128162001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $12,187.51.

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Caorparation
("DTF"), the full amount in default indicated above. At this time, as part of your contractuat obligation, we also require
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

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Thersfore, your immediate action is
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
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4880
Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transpert Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002129162001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2024 Freightliner PT1265LP 3AKJHHDRXRSUV3538
2024 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDR1RSUV3539

84-009-4002 (12/21) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financial Services Ganada Corpoeration
2680 Mathaeson Blvd, East, Suite 202

Mississauga, OMN L4W 0AS

Phone Mo.: 1-800-361-4680
www.daimler-truckdinancial.ca



84-008-4002 (12/21)
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

June 2, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Witdbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER . , .
5002125321001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $12,325,22.

You have 10 days from the issue date of this lefter to pay Daimter Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
("DTF™}, the full amount in default indicated above. At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information will result in ene or more of the fallowing actions:

« Repossession of the vehicle
« Commencement of legal proceedings
» Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediaie action is
necessary.

A Dacimac
Ali Daamsa
Collections Agent

1-877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Registerad mail #

WARNING: In the event of repossession you may be responsible for additional fees incurred, including, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and storage, vehicie preparation fees, and any deficiency resulting from sale at
auction. If legal action is pursued you may also be responsible for all interest and legal costs which result

from our lawyers

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Cerporation
268C Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W CAS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 10f 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial .ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1\W4

Account No. 5002125321001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2024 .| Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDR7RSUUB218
2024 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDRORSUUS217

84-009-4002 (12/21) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Carporation
2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Phane No.: 1-800-361-4680
www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



84-009-4002 (12/21) j . :
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial

June 12, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

ACCOUNT NUMBER . _
5002047470001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $8,294 .40,

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
("DTF™"), the full amount in default indicated above. At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
infarmation wil result in one or mare of the following actions:

+ Repossession of the vehicle
«  Commencement of legal proceedings
+  Further deterioration of your credit standing

DTF will not grant any further time for payment. Time is of the essence. Therefore, your immediate action is
necessary.

LY Paaimaa
Ali Daamsa

Collections Agent

1-877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Registered mail #

WARNING: In the event of repossession you may be responsibie for additional fees incurred, including, but
not limited to, seizure, towing and storage, vehicle preparation fees, and any deficiency resuiting from sale at
auction. If legal action is pursued you may also be responsible for all interest and legal costs which result
from our lawyers

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone Ne.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-iruckfinanciai.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No, 5002047470001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS253642198394
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS253542198404
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS2534J2369210
2018 Utifity Trailer 1UYVS253142894759
Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporaticn
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-008-4002 (12/21) Page 2 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca




84-009-4002 {12/21}) ]
NOTICE OF DEFAULT Daimler Truck Financial |

June 12, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1w4

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . .
5002028248001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

Dear Jagdeep Sangha Transport InG,,
This letter is a formal demand for payment in the amount of $2,108.04.

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
{"DTF™), the full amount in default indicated above. At this time, as part of your contractual obligation, we also require
an update of your current vehicle insurance provider and policy number. Failure to remit payment and insurance
information wilt result in one or more of the following actions:

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
Mississauga, ON L4AW OAS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
Page 1of2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB RZR 1W4

Account No. 5002028248001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2022 Hyundai Translead Van Trailer 3H3VA32KONS340029
2022 Hyundai Translead Van Trailer 3H3V5H32K5NS340030

84-008-4002 (12721} Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financial Servicas Canada Corparation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Phone Mo.: 1-800-361-4680
www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



This is Exhibit “I” referred to in the affidavit of
Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn before me,
this 14 day of September, 2025,

f/; """""""""" :;}:HM - - }M P N = L S -

A Commis 0’/ fher for takmg ah1dav1ts
anny M. Nunes

(LSO #53802D)



Daimler Truck Financial
Form 86

Notice of Intention to Enfarce a Security
(Rule 124)

February 13, 20256

Jagdeep Sangha Transpert Inc.
23 Wiidbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB RZR 1W4

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an Insolvent Person

Take notice that:

1. Daimier Truck Financtal Services Canada Corperation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the
insolvent person's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER ; . ,
5002101491001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

2. The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 02/18/2022,

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $182,215.67 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).

4. The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier enforcement.

w

Dated at Mississauga, February 13, 2025

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

AEvon

Alexandre Evon
Collections Agent

Registered Mail #

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4\W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-000-4012 (12/21) Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinanciai.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R W4

Account No, 5002101481001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2022 Freightliner PT1265LP SAKJHHDRXNSNE3052
2022 Freightliner PT126SLP SAKJHHDR7NSNE3056

84-009-4012 (12/21) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financiat Services Canada Carparation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680

www, daimler-fruckfinancial,ca



Daimler Truck Financial
Form 86

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

Aprit 8, 2025

Jagdesp Sangha Transport Inc,
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Ta: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an Insolvent Person

Take notice that.
1. Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation, a secured creditor, intends to enforee its security on the
insolvent person's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . A
5002047470004 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 09/14/2021,

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $82,836.03 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier enforcement.

e b

Dated at Mississauga, April 8, 2025

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Carporation

Al DPacmac
Ali Daamsa
Collections Agent

Registered Maii #

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Carporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 262
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-0094012 (12/21) - Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-iruckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No, 5002047470001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2018 Utility Trailer fUYVS2536J2198394
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS2535J2198404
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS2534J2369210
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS52530J2369270
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS2531J2994758
Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporatich
2680 Matheson Bivd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-36%-4680
84-009-4012 (12/21) Page 2 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



Daimier Truck Financial
Form 86

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

April 8, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Ine,
23 Wildbraok Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an insolvent Person

Take notice that:
1. Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the
insolvent person's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . .
500214 1253001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 07/09/2024,

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $772,341.65 (Total Payoif Amount including taxes).
The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sent unless the insolvent persan consents to an earlier enforcement.

Pl

Dated at Mississauga, April 8, 2025

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

Y Daamaea
Ali Daamsa
Collections Agent

Registered Mail #

Daimler Truck Firancial Services Canada Corparation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4042 {12121} Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002141253001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2021 Utility Trailer Van Trailer 1UYVS3535M2014234
2021 Utility Trailer Van Trailer 1UYV83537M2014235
2021 Utility Trailer Van Trailer 1UYVS3539M2014236
2021 Wtility Trailer Van Trailer 1UYVS3534M2014242
2021 _ Utility Trailer Van Trailer 1UYV33536M2014243
2021 Hyundai Aluminum/ Steel 3H3V533C5MT714006
2021 Hyundai Aluminum/ Steel 3H3V533C7MT714007
2021 .Hyundai Aluminum/ Steel 3H3VH33COMT7 14009
2021 Hyundai Aluminum/ Stesl 3H3V533CIMT7 14011
2021 Hyundai Aluminum/ Steel 3H3V533COMT714012

Daimler Truck Financial Services Carada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: $-800-361-4650
84-008-4012 (12/121) Page 2 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



Daimler Truck Financial
Form 86

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

April 8, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transpert Inc.
23 Wildbraak Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1wW4

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an Insoivent Persen

Take notice that:
1. Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the

insclvent persaon's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER " . \ .
5002122745001 See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 04/23/2023.

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $497,938.59 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
The sacurad crediter will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day pericd after
this notice Is sent unless the insclvent person consents to an earlier enforcement.

PN

Dated at Mississauga, April 8, 2025

Daimler Truck Financiat Services Canada Corporation

LY Daamaa
Ali Daamsa
Collections Agent

Registered Mait #

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-008-4012 (12/21 Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1\W4

Account No. 5002122745001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2023 CIMC Cool Globe CR8000B 28HSR5320PS002053
2023 CIMC Cool Globe CR8000B 23HSR5328PS002057
2023 CIMC Cool Globe CR8000B 23HSR5323PS002077
2023 CIMC Ceoal Glabe CR8000B 28HSR5329PS002083
2023 CIMC Cool Globe CR8000B 285HSR5320PS002084
2023 CIMC Coal Globe CR8000B 28HSR532XP3002125
Daimtber Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4M12 (12/21) Page 2 of 2 www.daimler-lruckfinancial.ca



Daimier Truck Financial
Form 86

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
{Rule 124)

April 8, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transpart inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Ta: Jagdeep Sangha Transpert Inc., an Insolvent Person

Take natice that:
1. Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Corporatian, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the
insolvent person's property described below:

ACCQUNT NUMBER . . .
5002105956001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 05/18/2022.

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $283,620.66 {Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
The securad creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier enforcement.

Pl

Dated at Mississauga, April 8, 2025

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

Ali Daamsa
Collections Agent

Reglstered Mail #

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corparation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-008-4012 (12/21) Page 1 of 2 www daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account Na. 5002105856001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2022 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDR2ZNSNE3045
2022 Freightliner PT126SLP SAKJHHDRBNSNE3047
2022 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDRBNSNE3048
Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporaiion
2680 Mathesan Blvd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-40142 (12/21) Page 2 of 2 www, daimier-truckfinancial.ca



Daimler Truck Financial
Form 86

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

April 8, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transpart ne.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnineg, MB R2R W4

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an insolvent Person

Take notice that:
1. Daimfer Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security an the

insolvant person's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . ,
5002116518001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.
2. The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 12/20/2022.

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $323,364.86 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
4. The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security untit after the expiry of the 10-day period aiter
this notice is sent unless the insalvent perscn consents to an earlier enforcement.

w

Dated at Mississauga, April 8, 2025

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

Y Daaines
Ali Daamsa
Collections Agent

Registered Mail #

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5S
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4012 {12/21) Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account Na. 5002116518001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2023 Freighiliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDROPSUL8735
2023 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDROPSUL8E7(06

84-009-4012 (12/2%) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Carparation

' 2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phane No.: 1-800-361-4680
www.dairnler-truckfinancial.ca



Daimler Truck Financial
Form 86

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Ruie 124)

April 22, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R tW4

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

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . N
5002101491001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Confract dated 02/18/2022,

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $170,662.04 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sent unfess the insolvent person consents tc an earlier enforcement.

Lol

Dated at Mississauga, Aprit 22, 2025

Daimter Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

Al Daainac
Ali Daamsa
Collections agent

Registered Mail #

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corparation
26680 Matheson Blvd. East, Sulte 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4012 {12/21) Page 1 of 2 www daimler-fruckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002101491001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2022 Freightliner PT126SLP JAKJHHDRXNSNE3052
2022 Freightliner PT12651P 3AKJHHDR7NSNE30586

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

Jagdeep Sangha Transport inc.
23 Wildbraok Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an Insclvent Person

Take notice that:
1. Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation, a secured creditor, intends to enfarce its security on the

insolvent person's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . .
5002114719001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 10/31/2022.

The tatal amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $242,113.30 {Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
The secured craditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day pericd after
this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consenis to an earlier enforcement.

Rl

Dated at Mississauga, April 22, 2025

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

Y Daamac
Ali Daamsa
Coilections agent

Registered Mail #

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corparation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4012 (12/21) Page 1 of 2 wiww, daimler-truckfinancial,ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002114719001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2023 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDRXFSUL8700
2023 Freightliner PT1268LP 3AKJHHDR1PSUL8701

Baimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
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

Jagdeep Sangha Transpori Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an Insolvent Person

Take notice that:
1. Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the
insolvent person's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER L .
5002121629001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.
2. The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 05/01/2023.

w

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $324,247 .97 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
4, The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents tc an earlier enforcement.

Dated at Mississauga, April 22, 2025

Dairmler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

Ali Daamsa
Collections agent

Registered Mail #

Daimler Truck Financiat Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4012 (12/21) Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-iruckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002121629001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2024 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDR3RSUUS8214
2024 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDRS5RSUUSE215

84-009-4012 (12/21) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corparation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W JA5

Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
wyww.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



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

1.  Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corparation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the
insolvent person's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER
5002144719001

YEAR
2023

MAKE
Freightliner

MODEL

PT126SLP 3AKJHHDR1PSULB70

VIN

w

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 10/31/2022,
The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $116,434.58 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).

4. The secured creditor will not have the right to enfarce the security untit after the expiry of the 10-day periad after
this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier enforcement.

Dated at Mississauga, May 21, 2025

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

Y Dagmaa

Ali Daamsa
Collections Agent

Registered Mail #

84-009-4012 (12/21)

Daimier Truck Financiat Services Canada Carporation
2680 Mathescn Bivd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
www,daimler-truckfinancial.ca



Daimler Truck Financial
Form 86

Motice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

May 28, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrock Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an Insolvent Perscn

Take notice that:
1. Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corparation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the

insolvent person’s property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . s
5002129162001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 09/24/2023,

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $365,379.81 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier enforcement.

Eall S

Dated at Mississauga, May 28, 2025

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

Y Dagmaa
Ali Daamsa
Collections Agent

Registered Mail #

Daimiar Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W QAS

Phone Ne.; 1-800-361-4680

84-009-4012 {12/21) Page 1 of 2 www daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc,
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No, 5002129162001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2024 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDRXRSUV3538
2024 Fraightliner PT126SLP SAKJHHDRIRSUV3539

84-000-4012 (12/2%) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Tnzck Financial Servicas Canada Carporatian
2680 Mathescn Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, Oh L4W 0AD

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

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an insoivent Person

Take notice that:
1, Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the

insolvent person's property described befow:

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . )
5002125321001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 07/12/2023.

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the securily is $338,749.29 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sent unless the insalvent person consents o an earlier enforcement.

Dl ol

Dated at Mississauga, June 2, 2025

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Carporation

Ali Daamsa
Collections Agant

Registered Mail #

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Malheson 8Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phone No.: 1-800-361-4680
§4-009-4012 (12/21} Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbraok Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002125321001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2024 Freightliner PT1263LP 3AKJHHDR7RSULUB216
2024 Freightliner PT126SLP 3AKJHHDRIRSUU8217

84-009-4012 (12/21) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corparation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W GAS

Phone Mo,: 1-800-361-4680
www.daimlar-truckfinancial.ca



Daimier Truck Financial
Form 86

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

June 12, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc,
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., an Insalvent Person

Take notice that:
1. Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the

insclvent person's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER . . A
5002047470001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 09/14/2021.

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $60,634.09 (Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier enforcement.

R

Dated at Mississauga, June 12, 2025

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

Ali Daamsa
Collactions Agent

Registered Mait #

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corparation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Phone Na.: 1-800-361-4680

84-008-4012 (12/21} Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckfinanciat.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002047470001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS2536J2198394
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS253542138404
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYVS2534J2369210
2018 Utility Trailer 1UYV32531J2894759
Daimler Truek Financial Services Canada Corparation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS
Phane No.: 1-800-361-4680
84-009-4012 (12/21) Page 2 of 2 vwoww . daimler-truckfinanciat.ca



Daimler Truck Financial
Form 86

Notice of Intention to Enfarce a Security
(Rule 124)

June 12, 2025

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrock Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

To: Jagdeep Sangha Transpert Inc., an Insolvent Person

Take notice that;
1. Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the

insclvent person's property described below:

ACCOUNT NUMBER B . .
5002028248001 *See schedule A for Vehicle information.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of Conditional Sale Contract dated 08/24/2021.

The total amount of indebtedness secured by the security is $14,673.37 {Total Payoff Amount including taxes).
The secured creditor will nat have the right to enforce the security until after the expiry of the 10-day period after
this notice is sant unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier enforcement.

wm

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
84-009-4012 (12721} Page 1 of 2 www.daimler-truckdinaacial.ca



*Schedule A

Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1W4

Account No. 5002028248001

YEAR MAKE MODEL VIN
2022 Hyundai Translead Van Trailer JH3VE32KONS340029
2022 Hyundai Translead Van Trailer 3H3VB32K5NS340030

84-008-4012 (12/21) Page 2 of 2

Daimler Truck Financiai Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Phone Ne.: 1-800-361-4680

www, daimler-fruckfinancial.ca



This is Exhibit “J” referred to in the affidavit of
Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn before me,
this IS day of September, 2025.

— -
S R

Aégmmisg\oner for taking affidavits
anny M. Nunes

(LSO #53802D)



Sara-Ann Wilson Destons Canada LLP

Counsel 77 King Street West, Suite 400
. Taronto-Cominion Centre
sara.wilson@dentons.com Taronto, ON, Canada MSK 0A1

D +1 416 8563 4402

dentons.com

August 22, 2025

Sent via E-Mail and Courier: lakhvir@jsanghatransport.com
Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

23 Wildbrook Bay

Winnipeg, MB R2ZR 1W4

Attention: Lakhvir Sangha

Dear Sir:

Re: indebtedness of Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc. (“JST") to Daimler Truck Financial Services
Canada Corporation ("DTF"} pursuant fo the Conditional Sale Contracts (as defined herein)

We are counsel for DTF in connection with the above-noted matter.
We refer to the following conditional sale contracts:

(a} conditional sale contract (#5002028248), dated August 24, 2021, between JST, as purchaser,
and Transolutions Truck Centres Lid. ("Transolutions"), as seller, and assigned to DTF;

{b)} conditional sale contract (#5002047470), dated September 14, 2021, between JST, as purchaser,
and Transolutions, as seller, and assigned to DTF;

{c) conditional sale contract (#5002101491), dated February 18, 2022, between JST, as purchaser,
and Transoiutions, as seller, and assigned to DTF;

{d) conditional sale contract (#5002105856), dated May 18, 2022, between JST, as purchaser, and
Transolutions, as seller, and assigned to DTF;

{e) conditional sale contract (#5002114719), dated October 31, 2022, between ST, as purchaser,
and Transolutions, as seller, and assigned to DTF;

{f) conditional sale contract (#5002116518), dated December 20, 2022, between JST, as purchaser,
and Transolutions, as seller, and assigned to DTF;

{g) conditional sale contract (#5002122745), dated April 23, 2023, between JST, as purchaser, and
Transolutions, as seller, and assigned to DTF;

(h) conditional sale contract (#5002121629}, dated May 1, 2023, between JST, as purchaser, and
Transolutions, as seller, and assigned to DTF;

(i) conditional sale contract (#5002125321), dated July 12, 2023, between JST, as purchaser, and
PTG Mississauga Enterprises Limited Parthership ("PTG"), as seller, and assigned to DTF;

Zaanouni Law Firm & Assaciates » LuatViet » Fernanda Lopes & Associados » Guevara & Gutierrez » Paz Horowitz Abogados » Sirote »
Adepetun Caxton-Martins Agbor & Segun » Davis Brown » East African Law Chambers » Far more informalion on the firms that have come
together to form Dentons, go to dentons.com/legacyfirms

NATDOCS\88688808\V-2



dentons.com

August 22, 2025
Page 2

(i) conditional sale contract (#5002129162), dated September 26, 2023, between JST, as purchaser,
and PTG, as seller, and assigned to DTF; and

(k) conditionai sale contract (#5002141253), dated July 9, 2024, between JST, as purchaser, and
PTG, as seller, and assigned to DTF;

(collectively, the “Conditional Sale Contracts”).

Capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined have the meanings given to them in the
Conditional Sale Contracts, as applicable.

We also refer to the following notices of default and formal demands for payment, issued by DTF to JST
(collectively, the “Originai Demands™):

{a} notice of default and formal demand for payment (#5002028248), dated June 12, 2025;

(b} notices of default and formal demands for payment (#5002047470), dated April 8, 2025 and June
12, 2025;

{c) notice of default and formal demand for payment (#5002101491), dated April 22, 2025 and
February 13, 2025;

{d} notice of default and formal demand for payment (#5002105956), dated April 8, 2025;

{e} notices of default and formal demands for payment (#5002114719), dated April 22, 2025 and May
21, 2025;

{f) notice of default and formal demand for payment (#5002116518}, dated April 8, 2025;

{g) notice of default and formal demand for payment (#5002122745}, dated April 8, 2025;

{h) notice of default and formal demand for payment (#5002121629), dated April 22, 2025;

{iy notice of default and formal demand for payment (#5002125321}, dated June 2, 2025;

(i) notice of default and formal demand for payment (#5002129162), dated May 28, 2025; and
{k) notice of default and formal demand for payment (#5002141253), dated April 8, 2025.

A notice of intention to enforce security pursuant to the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) was
enclosed with each of the Original Demands.

J8T is in defauit under each of the Conditional Sale Contracts by failing to make the monthly payments
prescribed therein, which defauits are continuing and have not been cured. The dates of the initial
defaults are set out in Schedute “A” hereto.

As at August 21, 2025, pursuant fo the Conditional Sale Contracts, JST is indebted to DTF in the amount
of $3,755,047.37 (the “Outstanding Indebtedness”), as more particularly set out Schedule “B” hereto.
Pursuant to each Conditional Sale Contract, if JST shall fail to pay when due any amount payable

NATDOCS\88688008\V-2



dentons.com

August 22, 2025
Page 3

thereunder, or shall default in the performance of any of the agreements or covenants thereunder, the
total amounts owing thereunder shall, at DTF's option (as assignee), become immediately due and
payable.

On behalf of DTF, we hereby make formal demand on JST for payment of the full amount of the
Ouistanding Indebtedness, together with ail interest accruing and all costs and legal fees incurred by BTF
after August 21, 2025. Payment is required to be made immediately.

The Conditional Sale Contracts each provide for an interest rate on all overdue payments at a rate of 18%
per annum. Interest and enforcement costs {including, without limitation, legal fees incurred prior to and
subsequent to the date hereof) continue o accrue on the Outstanding Indebtedness until it is paid in full.
In the event that you fail to pay the sum indicated, DTF shall pursue its remedies against you.

Yours truly,

Dentons Canada LLP

=%
~/{\

Sara Ann Wilson

ce. Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
Marryam Singh, counsel to Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., marryam@amlawyers.ca

NATDOCS\88688908\V-2



dentons.com

August 22, 2025
Page 4

Schedule “A”

Dates of Initial Defaults under the Conditional Sale Confracts

5002028248 08/24/2021 3H3V5E32KINS340029 06/08/2025
3H3V532K5NS5340030

5002047470 09/14/2021 1UYVS2536.2198394 05/31/2025
1UYVS2534.42369210
TUYVS2631J2094759
1UYVS2535.2198404
1UYVS2530J2369270

5002101491 02/18/2022 3AKJHHDRONSNE3043 02/04/2025
3AKJHHDRXNSNE3052
3AKJHHDR7NSNE3056

5002105956 05/18/2022 3AKJHHDRZNSNE3045 04/02/2024
. 3AKJHHDRENSNE3047
3AKJHHDRBNSNE3C48

5002114719 10/31/2022 3AKJHHDRXPSULBTOC 5/15/2025
3AKJHHDR1PSULE701

5002116518 1212072022 3AKJHHDROPSULEY05 4/3/2025
3AKJHHDROPSULET706

5002122745 04/23/2023 25H3R5320PS002053 02/07/2025
2SHSR5328P5002057
2SHSR5323P5002077
2SHSR5329P5002083
2SHSR5320P5002084
23HSR532XPS002125

5002121629 05/01/2023 3AKJHHDR3RSUUS214 04/15/2025
3AKJHHDR5RSUUS215

5002125321 07M12/23 3AKJHHDR7RSUUB216 05/26/2025
3AKJHHDRORSUUB217

5002129162 09/26/2023 3AKJHHDRXRSUV3538 05/23/2025
3AKJHHDR1RSUV3539

5002141253 07/08/2024 1UYVS3535M2014234 03/23/2025
1UYVS3537M2014235
1UYVS3539M2014236
1UYVS3534M2014242
1UYVS3536M2014243
3H3V533C5MT 714006

NATDOCS\88683808\V-2



dentons.com

August 22, 2025
Page 5

3H3V533CTMT7 14007
JH3VH33COMT7 14009
3H3VE33COMT7 14011
3H3V533COMT7 14012

NATDOCS\88688908\V-2



August 22, 2025
Page 6

Schedule "B”

Outstanding Indebtedness of Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc. to
Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
as of August 21, 2025 (all amounts CAD)

dentons.com

5002028248

08/24/2021

3H3V532K9NS340029
3H3V532K5NS340030

$14,644.05

$2,316.2

$534 .41

$17,494.66

5002047470

08/14/2021

1UYVS2536J2198394
1UYVS2534J2369210
1UYVS2531J2994759
1UYVS253502198404
1UYVS25630J2369270

$74,636.61

$8,661.15

$3,018.18

$86,315.94

5002101491

02/18/2022

3AKJHHDRINSNE3043
3AKJHHDRXNSNE3052
3AKJHHDR7NSNE3056

$174,920.22

$3,666.10

$17,079.88

$195,666.20

5002105956

05/18/2022

3AKJHHDR2NSNE3045
3AKJHHDREBNSNE3047
3AKJHHDRBNSNE3048

$283,365.90

$9,511.06

$19,703.63

$312,580.59

5002114719

10/31/2022

SAKJHHDRXPSULBT700
3AKJHHDRIPSULB701

$232,081.30

$5,081.15

$11,216.20

$248,378.65

5002116518

12/20/2022

3AKJHHDROPSULE705
3AKJHHDROPSUL8706

$323,018.06

$14,798.69

$22,301.52

$360,118.27

5002122745

04/23/2023

25HSR5320P5002053
25HSRS328P5002057
28H5R5323PS002077
2SHSR5329P5002083
23HSR5320PS002084
25HSR532XPS002125

$253,639.24

$4,563.69

$16,010.54

$274,213.47

5002121629

05/01/2023

3AKJHHDR3RSUUB214
3AKJHHDR5RSUUB215

$518,397.95

$19.,740.59

$49,851 42

$587,989.96

5002125321

07/12/23

3AKJHHDR7RSUUS216
3AKJHHBRORSUUB217

$337,512.74

$3,848.78

$14,480.68

$356,842.20

5002129162

09/26/2023

3AKJHHDRXRSUY3538
3AKJHHDR1RSUV3539

$364,284 .48

38,074.76

$16,168.24

$388,527.48

5002141253

07/08/2024

1UYVS3535M2014234
TUYVS3537M2014235

$769,390.64

$16,932.90

$57,203.25

$843,616.79

NATDOCS\88688808\V-2



August 22, 2025
Page 7

1UYVS3539M2014236
1UYVS3534M2014242
1UYVS3536M2014243
3H3V533C5MT7 14006
3H3V533CTMT7 14007
3H3V533COMT7 14008
3H3VE33CIMT7 14011
3H3V533COMT7 14012

dentons,.com

Totais

$3,345,891.19

$97,195.07

$227.657.95

$3,670,744.23

Legal Fees {up to August 21, 2025)

$84,303.14

TOTAL

$3,755,047.37

NATDOCS\88688508\V-2



This is Exhibit “K” referred to in the affidavit of
Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn before me,
this | day of September, 2025,
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Fram: Daa, i {71

Tos Accounting

Cex lakhasangha@vaioo.com; Manwalanol
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transpait Inc.
Date: Hay 2, 2025 11:53:00 AM

Attachments; image003.pny
image(04,png

Imaged26.0ng
Importance: High

Good afternoon,

Payment has still not been received on our end as per the confirmaticn provided by you. Online payment should not take more than 1-3 days
to be received, Kindly advise of the delay.

Bailiff will remain active until the funds are received in-fufl. Please note, you will also have a pending repossession-charge on the account that
will need to be addressed to close.

If payment is not received by end of day, we will be assigning mare files for seizure as you have still not addressed the balances as promised.

As of today, these are your current delinquencies..

5002122745 Japdeep Sahgha T ] 7 8§17 575, 665.00.
5002105956 lagdeep Sangha Transport inc. 29 R 510,?1554 - 5306,5694,50

5002116518 - . Jagdeep Sangha Transport Ine. < 28 - - 510,275,097 . 548848 . $362,722.01

‘5002101491 Jagdesp Sangha Transport Inc. 27 $6,997.64 533322 $180,127.47

5002028248, - “Jagdesp Sangha Transportlnc. 23 . . - 5,713.44 - - - $10540 © $19,051.33

5002114719 Jagdeep Sanghe 16 $11,814.14 806758 $359454.60

5002121629 . - .Jagdeep Sangha TG e e o 5172997 | . $60619 - $352,212.07 o
"B002141253  Jagdesp Sangha Tramsportloc. 8 $17,303.28  $865,15 89927982 &/60
‘5002125321 - Jagdeap Sangha Transport fac. 5 T os1232522 T %000 $383,080:88

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Aii Daamsa

Fleet Analyst

Daimier Trueclt Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W OAS

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax: 833-902-3858
Email: ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com

4@5 % RAIMLER TRUCK

Financisd Sarvicos

From: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>

Sant: April 28, 2025 4:03 P

To: Daamsa, Ali {713} (EXT} <ali.deamsa@daimlertruck.com>

Ce: Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck.com=; lakhasangha @yahooc.com
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.



Hithere,

Please find the proof of payment below.

Confirmation Number (3} Status
JAUBL6 Successiul
Payiment To DAIMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL - 500 2122745

From Account TD UNEIMITED BUSINESS PLAN

Current Balance  Apr 39, 2025

Amount $28,732.86

Frequerity One Time

Taka from my account an Apr 28, 2025
Thank you.

From: Daamsa, Ali {713} (EXT) <alidaamsa@daimlertruck.com>
Sent: Aprif 25, 2025 12:51 PM

To: Accounting <accoupti jsa com>
Ce: Manwal,Manoj <mrna jertruck.com:

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - fagdeep Sangha Transport inc.
Hello,

We cannot change your monthly payment amount no matter how minimal. You need to compietely lift the stop-payment as mentioned to you
previously.

If the stop-payment is lifted, there would be no need to aiter amounts. Kindly [ift it completely for future payments to clear and make oniine
payments for your arrears by Monday.

Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W CAS

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax; B33-902-3858

Email; ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com
imler-trucki :

4®é % DAIMLER TRUCK

Firangisl Sarvices

Fram: Accounting <a i i atranspol >
Sent: April 25, 2025 12:54 PM

To: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <alLdaamsa@daimlertruck.com>
Ce; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@ premiertruck.com>
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.



Hithere,

One payment of 23d April has gone successfully from the bank, and one has come back. So, for the future payments you can change the
amount by some cents, then it will go successfully, Please do not send Bailiff, we wilt cfear all the account balances soon.

Thank you.

From: Daamsa, Ali {713} (EXT) <ali a@daimlertruck.com>
Sant: April 25, 2025 11:18 AM

To: Accounting <account com>

Cc: Manwal,Manof <mmanwal@premiertruck com:

Subject; RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport inc,

Importance: High

Hello,

Due to your payments continuing ta return ‘stopped’ as of April 239, 2025, your accounts remain delinquent despite the online payments
made recently. You were required to bring all accounts up to date and remove the ‘stop’ payment.

Bailiff has been issued on the highlighted accounts. Remaining will follow if amounts are not addressed in a timely manner.

You have been given an extended amourt of time; we will no longer detay. We will revisit your remaining accounts on Monday to review for
further assignments, please ensure payment confirmations are received by then to avoid further escalations to your accounts,

Account Number Customar Name

5002028248 Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
5002047470 Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc,
5002101451 Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
5002105956 Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
5002114718 Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
5002116518 Jagdeep Sangha Traasport Inc,
5002121629 lagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

5001335745
5002125321
5002529162
5002141253

. Jegdeep:Sangha: Transport Inc,
Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
Jagdeep Sangha Traasport inc.
lagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Anaiyst

Datmler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax; 833-902-3858
Email: ali.daamsa@daimiertruck.com

www.daimler-tnic
4@ ! DAIMLER TRUCK
g Firpnaizg) Sarvicas
Froms Acsurting <accmintingisang .

Sent: April 23, 2025 4:36 PM

DPD
16
[¢]
20
22

9
21
9

A%

Q
o}
32

Up To Date

Total Amount Past Due
$2,213.44
Up To Date (Mext Payment April 30th, 2025)
$6,997.64
$10,715.54
$11,251.56
$10,279.09
$12,123.78
Csmgange s
{Next Payment April 26th, 2025)
Uy To Date {Advise if April 23rd, 2025 will clear)
$17,303.28

To: Daamsa, Ali (713} {EXT) <aii.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>; Manwal,Manoj <MManwal@premiertruck com:>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport inc.



Hithere,

Please find the attached payment confirmation. Thank you for your co-cperation.

Apr 23, 2025 DAIMLER HGX8Y6 9,926.60
Apr 23, 2025 DAIMLER HEX8Y4 12,041.48
Apr 23, 2025 DAIMLER HGXBX2 18,218.44 )
From: Daamsa, Afi {713) (EXT} <ali.dsamsa@dai com:>
Sent: April 23, 2025 11:13 AM
To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Manwal,Manoj <MManwal@gpremiertruck.com>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - lagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
importance: High

Hello,

@Manwal.Mangj , can you please provide an update on this?

Bailiff is ready toc proceed, we are still waiting for the confirmation from their bank that the stop payment has been lifted as payments still
returned.

Let me know urgently where £his is heading and what the timeline looks like as of today,
As well, please advise if MP! has indicated that the claims wilf be completed by Friday or why the customer needs until then specificalty?
Thank you!

Sincersly,
Ali Daamsa
FHeet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Mathason Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON LAW QAL

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext, 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimiertruck.com
sier-trackfi -

4®d DAIMLER TRUCK

firancisl Servicns

From: Daamsa, Ali (713} (EXT)
Sent: April 22, 2025 11:51 AM
Tos Accounting <accounting@jsanehatransport.com>; Manwal,Mznoj < ferruck.com>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Importance: High

Hello,

Thank you for providing the claim information.

We are still waiting on a confirmation from your bank that stop-payments have been lifted. Your recent payments returned stopped.
Kindly provide a letter or emait from your bank confirming that it's been lifted.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Ali Daamsa

Fleet Analyst

Baimler Trucl Financial Services Canada Corporation



2680 Matheson Blvd. £ast, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Tel: §77-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com
o lor. i .

Af)] | PAIMLER TRUCK
i

Finaneizl Sarvicos

Fram: Accounting < i i atransport.coms>

Sent: April 22, 2025 11:42 AM

Ta: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT} <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>; Manwal Manoj <MManwal@premiertruck.com>
Subject; RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hi there,

Please find the attached details of ctaims. Sorry for this, email was showing in outbox.
SAIGHHDR7PSULS704

Claim no. 74241974 truck

Claim no. 74241985 trailer

Claim no. 74271676 cargo

JAKIHHDR8ISKA3229

Claim no. 74446556 truck
Claim no. 74446580 trailer
Claim no. 74465574 cargo

Trevar Thompson, BA
Cammercial Specialist
Manitain Fublic nsrsnce | Commercis] Clatms
TEDG-TIGR408 | P 20197 5 1w tthampsoudime mbuta
Toil free 1-BR5-183-6233 &

B

fon Soruk 33

it

3% ¢ strent, Hrandon Masiioba, RUA BT I

From: Daamsa, Ali {713} {EXT) <ali i ck.comz
Sent: April 21, 2025 1:09 PM
To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Manwal,Manoj <MManwal@premisriruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vahoo.com>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
Importance: High

Hetllo,

None of the provided s sufficient. Please provide the claim numbers, related VINs, and contact of the insurance adjustor handling the files.
You need to provide context.

As well, please provide an email or statement from your bank confirming that all the stop-payments have been lifted. Your recent payments
continge to return due to it.

Kindly provide on an urgent basis.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Ali Daamsa

Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5



Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax: 833-902-3858
Email: alidaamsa@daimiertruck.com

W ~trankfin l.ca

4@; ! DAIMLER TRUCK

= E Finpngisl Sqrvicps

From: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com=>

Sent: April 21, 2025 2:05 PM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713} {EXT) <all.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>; Manwai,Manoj <MManwal@®premieftyuck.come>; Lakhvir Singh
< ahog.com>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - lagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hithere,
Please find the attached conversation of ongoing ciaims and stop payment has been ramoeved from bank.

From: Simranpreet Singh <Simranpreet@]sanghs
Sent: Thursday, Agrit 3, 2025 11:13 AM

To: Thompson, Trever <{ Thompson@mplmb,ca
<accounfing@|sanghatransport.com:>; Ranjeet K.

Cc: Carrierpayables <carrierpayables.ca@oneling
Subject: RE: Incidentd 2336

CAUTION: [EXTERNAL] This message com

Hi Travor,
Is there any update on this 7

Regards,

From: Thompson, Trever <] fhempsen@mpi.mb
Sent: March 3, 2025 915 A

To: Transportclaims <TransportClaims.ca@enafin
<Ranjeet@isanghairansport.coms; Fleet <fleet.c

e Carrierpayables <cerrierpayables.cag@oneling
Subject: RE: incident# 2836

Geod morning,

The MPI cargo claim number is 74271676,

Frem: Thoempsan, Tevor

Seni: Monday, March 17, 2025 8:24 AM

Toi Ceclle <Cece@simtaxing cam>; Safety Jagdeep Sangha’
Ce: Lakhvinder Singh <Lakhvinder@isanghatransport.com>
Subject: RE: new Claim

Good moerming,

| witt ask for 3 claims to be opaned.
| also reguire the dashcam video, Thanks

Travar Thompsen, BA

Commercial Specislist

Elaniiobn Pubilc inurance | Commarcial Claims

T 204-725-5408 | F 204-735-0425 | W thomoson@moimb.ca
Tolf Fres 1-AT5-392-628% =xi 9306

Brandon Sendce Genbre
784 17 Strees, Brapdon Menitobs, RIS 503




Thank you.

Fram: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>
Sent: Aprii 21, 2025 11:44 AM
To: Manwal,Manocj <Mbanwal@premiertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vaheg.com>; Accounting <accounting®@isanghatransport.com>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport inc.
Importance: High

Goed afternoan,
| have spoken to Manoj today who has refayed that you currently have open claims with MPI and are waiting for them to be closed by the end
of this week. This has not been communicated to us previously which is not acceptabie - as well you: mentioned previously that it was due to

fraud activity on your accounts instead of insurance. Please clarify.

Regardless, your accounts must remain up to date during all insurance claims which has not been done,

You will have until Wednesday to provide full arrears that e utlined, This arrangement is also contingent on all MPX claim
information to be proviced today - alongside ‘confirmation:that your stop-payment has been: lifted from your banking institute.

if the information is not provided in the coming hours, we will be issuing bailiff for seizure.
Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Paimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax: 833-902-3858
Email: ali.daamsa@daimiertruck.com

49‘ ; BAIMLER TRUCK

-
i Firgncist Sarvicnz

From: Manwal, Manoj <MManwal @ premiectruck.com>
Sent: April 21, 2025 12:18 PM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713) {EXT} <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; Accounting
<agcounting@isanghatransport.com>
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Good merning Ali,
I noticed | missed your call earlier. 1 just tried cailing you back, but wasn't able to reach you.

Please give me a call when you're availabie at 204-881-1318.
Thanks,
Manaj Manwal

From: Daamsa, Ali (713} (FXT) <alidaamsa@daimiettruck.com>

Sent: Monday, April 21, 2025 10:37 AM

To: Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha®@yahoo.com>; Accounting <accounti i >
Cc: Manwal,Manoj <pMilanwal @premiertruck com>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - lagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Importance: High

Good morning,

It has come to oar attention that payment confirmation has not been received, and your paymenis continue to return due to stopped
payments.

We will be issuing bailiff today to initiate seizure efforts for the units mentioned previcusly.



To avoid seizure efforts, we will require payment confirmations today and an email from your bank confirming that you've lifted of all stop-
payments.

If we do not receive the requested documentation and payments today - seizure efforts wili begin.

Kindly see your updated delinquency below:

5002028248 -1 Jagdeep Sangha Transpori Inc, i . $2,108.04
5662047470 Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc. $9,926.69
‘5002101491 Jagdeep Sangha Transportlnc: N $6,997E4
5002105956 Jagdeep Sangha Transport inc, o $10,715.54

i 50021147&9_m ¢ . Jagdeep Sangha Transport inc. . 28156
so02116518 lagdeep Sengha Transport Inc. T s a700
5002123629 - - - Jagdeep SanghaTransportinc. - $12,123.78
S002122745 Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc. o $28,732.06
5002125321 Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc. - T 81094148
S002141253 Jagdeep Sangha Transpon’[r{[:”m'"’"' T g 2184
FOTAL TR T T 6123,294,32

Thank you.

Sincerety,

Ali Daamsa

Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheseon Blvd, Fast, Suite 202
Mississauga, OM L4W GAb

Tet: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com
waw.daimier-truckfinancial.ca

4®£ DAIMLER TRUCK

tirancisi Sarvices

From: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.coms

Sent: April 16, 2025 2:56 PM

To: Daamsa, Ali {713} {£XT) <all.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; Mianwal@premiertruck.com
Cc: Evon, Alexandre (713) <ale: i ck.co

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hi there,
Thanks for reminding us, we are working on it to clear it.

Thank you,

From: Daamsa, Ali (713) (EXT) <alidaamsa@daimiertruck com>

Sant: April 16, 2025 1:07 PM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; MManwai@premiertruck.com
Ce: Evon, Alexandre (713} <alexandre syon@daimlertruck.com>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Impartance: High

Heilo,

This is a reminder that your payments are due April 18“‘, 2025, Faiture to provide payment by that date wilt result in the assignment of a
bailiff for seizure or the commencement of legal proceedings.

Please see your updated delinquency below.



" Jagdeép Sangha Transport. .

5007028248 . e, g . $2,10804

i Jagdeep Sangha Transport o
5002047470 Inc. 15 $5,926.69

i w;o 0, .: - JagdeepSanghaTransport . .. . : -
5002101491 T e : Cear $6,997:64
R
5002105956 Inc. 13 $10,715.54
T T T T T T Jagdeep Sangha Transport - ¢ S ..
5002116518 Tme 2. dozre0e

Jégdéep Sangha Transport”

5002122745 ) 39 $28,047.96

5002125321 U e Yo $12,941.48
lagdeep Sangha Transport

5002141253 IAc, 23 $18,218.44

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Ali Daamsa

Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Sulte 202
Mississauga, ON |L4W 0A5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax: 833-902-3858
Email: ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com

imler-truckfin

49% § DAIMLER TRUCK

Financizi Services

Fram: Accounting <accounting@{sanghatransport.com>
Sent; April 11, 2025 2:03 PM

To: Even, Alexandre (713) <alexa ai uck.com>; Daamsa, Ali (713) {EXT} <ali.daamsa@dalmlertruck.com:>; Lakhvir Singh
<lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; MManwal @ premiedruck.com

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc,
Hithers,

Good afternoon,

We will make your missed payments soon and will send you preof of that. The stop payment has been remaved from Bank account so your
future payments will not return.

Serry for this inconvenience.

Thank you.

From: Evon, Alexandre {713) <alexandre.evon@daimiertruck.com>

Sent: April 11, 2025 11:43 AM

To: Accounting <accoynting@jsanghatransport.com=; Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT} <ali.daamsa@daimleriruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh

<takhasangha@yahoo.com>; MManwal@premiertruck.com
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
Importance: High

Good Marning,

Fuil payment for arrears must be sent by the 18", not the first payment towards arrears. If any accounts are past due by the 19" the
hailiff will be assigned for those files. Currently your accounts are past due for:



Accaunt Number Days past Due  Total Amount Past Due

5002122745001 34 428,047.96
5002141253001 18 $18,218.44
5002125321001 15 $12,941.48
5002047470001 10 $9,455.18
5002105356001 8 $10,205.28
5002116518001 ' 7 $9,785.61
3002101491001 8 $6,664.42
5002028248001 2 $2,108.04

$57,430.41

Please provide preof of payment for full arrears by the 18 to avoid further escalations. You must lift your stop payment on your bank
account of provide a new void cheque so your future monthly payments clear as your payments have continued @ return “Payment
Stopped.”

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Manager

Daimtler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON L4W GAS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com

wwy, daimler- ial.ca

4@% DAIMLER TRUCK

Financial Services

From: Accounting <accounting@isanghatransport.com>

Sent: April 9, 2025 11:11 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com=; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; MManwal@premiertruck.com
Cc: Evon, Alexandre {713} <alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com>

Subject: RE; DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
Hi these,
Sorry for this inconvenience, we will clear this balance within 10 days and wilt send you payment confirmations.

Thanks for yaur confirmation.

From: Daamsa, Ali {713} (EXT) <ali.deamsa@daimlertruck.com>

Sent; April 8, 2025 10:28 AM

To: Accounting <aceounting®jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vahoo,com>; MManwal@premiertruck.com
Ce: Evon, Alexandre {713) <a_|ﬂ_a_n_d_[m]@ldgiﬂ1lﬂ1_[ﬂ;k.ﬁﬂfﬂ>

Subject: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Impartance: High

Hello,
Please be advised, final notice has been issued onto your accounts due to multiple past-due balances, Kindly see below and
attached,

Account Number Total Past-Due Balance
5002141253 $18,218.44
5002125321 $12,941.48
5002047470 $9,455.18
5002105956 $10,205.28
5002122745 $14,366.03
5002116518 $9,789.61

You have 10 days from the issue date of this letter to pay Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation the fullamount in
default. Please nots, failure to address the baiance within the timeframe stated may rasult in repossessicn or the commencement of
legal procesdings.



Attached, you'll find two documents to assist you in making the payment through wire transfer or online banicding. Kindly forward
proof of the transaction once complete.

if you have any guestions, feel free to reach out and discuss.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Ali Daamsa

Account Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-002-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimlertruck com
www daimfer-truckfinancial.ca

4@% g BAIMLER TRUCK

firaneizi Savvicas

From: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexa i uck,com>

Sent: April 7, 2025 10:32 AM

To: Accounting <accousting@jsanghatranspest.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo,com>; Manwal,Mancj <mmanwal i >
Cc: Zagracui, Nadine {713) <padine.zagraoui@daimiertruck.com>; Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimleriruck.com:>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - lagdeep Sangha

Good Morming,

You had advised you needed 2-3 days and would be sending a bill payment, it's been a week and we haven’t received anything. You
are also still in arrears for the March payment for 5002122745001 with the April payment due today.

Piease provide procf of payment by the end of the day.
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
www,dai ~truckfinanci

DAIMLER TRUCK

Financial Services
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From: Accounting <zccounting@isanghairansport.com>
Sent: April 7, 2025 10:23 AM

To: Evon, Alexandre {713) <alexandre evon@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; Manwal, Mancj
<mmanwa i cik.com>
Ce: Zagraoui, Nadine {713} <nadine.zagraoui@daimiertruck.com>; Daamsa, Ali {(713) (EXT) <aii i ck.com>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha
Hithere,
Gaood marning,

We just want to inform you that ous owner is coming back today in the evening time as earlier we informed you that there is a problem ongeoing



in our aceount due to fraud activity suspected, so Lakhvir will visit the bank to sorted out this and we will send your missing payments by bilt

payments.

Thank you,

Erom: Evon, Alexandre {713} <alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com>

Sent: April 7, 2025 8:16 AM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vaheo.com>; Manwal,Mancj < emj >

Ce: Zagraoui, Nadine {713) <nadine.zagraoui@daimlertruck.corn>; Daamsa, Ali (713} (EXT} <l <Lﬂaamsa@dmﬂe&[%@>
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Good Morning,
| hope you had a good weekend.
Your payments have been returning “Funds not Cleared” or “Payment Stopped.”

Currently your accounts are past due for:

Account Number Days Past Due  Total Amount Past Due
5002122745001 28 514,366.03
5002141253001 12 $18,218.44
5002125321001 9 $12,325.22
5002047470001 4 $9,455.18
5002105956001 2 510,205.28

Please find the attached Online Payment or Wire informaticn to send immediate payment. Please be aware that we wilt be issuing
finai notices on these accounts.

If you are having ongoing banking issues, please provide a new void cheque so your future monthly payeents clear.
Please provide immediate proof of payment for your arrears.

Kind Regards,

Altex Evan
Account Manager

Daintler Truck Finaneial Services Canada
2680¢ Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON L4W GAS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: alexandre.cvon{@daimlertruck.com
. i 5
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From: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.coms>

Sent: March 31, 2025 4:05 PM

To: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <nadine zagraoui@daimlertruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713} <mohammad.abu-qube@daimlertruck com>; Evon,
Alexandre (713) <alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Stingh <lakhasangha @yahoa.com>; Manwai,Manoj <mmanwel@premiertruck.com>
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAMVLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Hithere,
This is to inform you that the recent payments $17303.28, $12197.51, and $12325.22 are pending due to account hoid by bank as they

suspect fraud activity in our account.
So, bank will take 2-3 days to sorted out this. That’s why please de not try to take thase payments again and again from account, We witl pay



you by bill payment from our account.

Thanks.

From: Zagraoui, Madine [713) <pading zagraoui i ick.com>

Sent: March 28, 2025 3:43 PM

To: Accounting <acgounting@jsanehatranspost.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mohammad,.abu-qube@daimlertruck.com>; Evon, Alexandre
(713) <alexandre.evon@daimiertruck,com>; Lakhwir Singh <izkhasangha@vyehoo.com>; Manwal,Manof <mmanwa I >

Suhject: RF: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - fagdeep Sangha

Hello,

Why sent only $12,325.227 this amount won't even cover your monthly payment. Totalamount owing is $14,366.03, please send the
difference $2,040.81

Thank you

Nadine Zagraoui
Senior Fleet Workout Analyst

Daimier Truck Finaneial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W DAS

Tel: 1-877-275-1151 EXT #37002

Email: ine.za i imi ck.c
www. daimler-trucifinancial.ca
4@« DAIMLER TRUCK
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From: Accounting <aceoynting@jsanghatransport.com>

Sent: Friday, March 28, 2025 4:31 PM

To: Zagraoui, Nadine {713} <nadine.zagraoui@daimlertruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohaminad (713) <mchammad.abu-qube@daimiertruck.com>; Evon,
Alexandre {713) <alexandre evon@deimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Siagh <lakhasangha@yahoo,com>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck.com:>
Subject: RE; REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Hithere,

Please find the proof of payment,

Mar 25, 2025 DAIMLER X2Q3c8 12,325.22 -

Thanks.

From: Zagraoui, Nadine {713) <padine.zagraoui@daimlertruck.com>

Sent; March 24, 2025 1:.56 PM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanshatransport.coms; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mohammad.abu-gube@daimliertzuck.com>; Evon, Alexandre

{713} <alexandre.evon@dalmiertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasapgha@yahoo.com>; Manwal Mancj <mmanwal@ premiertruck coms>



Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Hello,

Thankyocu the payment

We stiit need $14,366.03 to cover for March payment for # 5002122745001

Please ensure to lift the stop at your financial institution for your payments to clear the account

Nadine Zagraoui
Seniar Fleet Workout Analyst

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Tel: 1-877-275-1151 EXT #37002

Email: nadine.zagraoui®daimlerdruck.co
www.daimles-truckfinanciai.ca

4®§ DAIMLER TRUCK
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From: Accounting <accounti j atracsport.com>

Sent: Monday, March 24, 2025 12:26 PM

Toi Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mohammad.abu-qube@daimlertruck.com>; Evor, Alexandre (713} <alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir
Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck.com>

Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <padi aoui@daimle >

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha
Hithere,

Please find the attached payment confirmation.

Confirmation Numbar (%) Status

wW7L716 Successiul

Payment To * DAIMLER FTRUCK FINANCIAL - 500 2122745 01
| {DAIMLER)

From Account . TD UNLIMITED BUSINESS PLAN
;5246317

Current Balance (%! Mar 24, 2005
Amount | $14,366.03
Fraquency . One Time

Take from my account on Mar 24, 2025



Canfirmation Number i} Status

W7LTWS Succassful

fayment To DATMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL - 5040 2028248 001
(DAIMLER}

From Account TD UNLIMITED BUSINESS PLAN

5246317

Current Balance {2} ar 24, 2025

Amount %2,318.84

Fraquency One Tima
Take from my account on Mar 24, 2025

Fram: Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mohammad.abu-gube ®daimlertruck.com>

Sent: March 21, 2025 3:13 PM

To: Accounting <accounting @jsanehatranspert.com>; Evon, Alexandre {713) <alexandre. evon@daimlertruck.corm>; Lakhvir Singh
<|akhasangha@vahoo,com>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck.com>

Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <nadipe.zagraoui@daimlertruck com>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Importance: High

Hi,

We understand your current situation; however, this is unfortunately unacceptable. One of your accounts is atready two payments
behind due to a stop in payments from your side. While we have been exceedingly suppartive over the past coupie of years and
continte to offer assistance, we regret to inform you that no further help can be provided in this matter.

We strongly recommend that you consider surrendeting any units that you are unable to pay for and focus on retaining those that are
generating income for you. Please be advised that if we do not receive a payment by Monday at 12 PM EST, we will have no choice but
to instruct the bailiff to proceed with seizing assets. This decision is final, and no exceptions will be made. We have already extended
the payment deadiine, and this is an additional grace period being offered.

Thank you for understanding and have a good day.
Regards,

Maoe Quhe
Manager, Gollections & Loss Recovery

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W GAS

Tel: 416-459-9380

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: Mohammad.Abu-Qube@daimlertruck.com
o ——
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From: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>
Sent: March 21, 2025 3:38 PM

To: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexandre. evon@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasansha®@vahco.com>; Manwal,Manoj
<mmanwal@premiertruck.com>

Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <padine zagracui@daimleriruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mcehammad (713) <mehammad.zbu-qube@daimlertzuck.com>
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha



Hi there,

We really appreciate your assistance, but we are also dependent on our customer payments as we have one claim issue with company and
they have held our funds until claim will resolve, and other company said this is Quarter end, so they will release payment in staring of April
month. We are not denying making your payments, we will clear it soon, somae of the armount we will pay to you on Monday evening and wilt
send you proof as well.

Please try to understand our situation.

Thanks.

From: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexandre evon@daimlertruck.com>

Sent: March 21, 2025 9:40 AM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport,com>; Lakhwir Singh <lakhasansha@yaboo.com>; Manwal,Manoj < i >
Cc: Zagraous, Nadine {713) <nadine.zagracui@daimieriruck.com>; Abu-Quie, Mohammad (713) < ad.abu-qube i >

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha
Importance: High

Good Morning,

You have already been provided time. All these payments should have been received arcund mid to end February as per cur
arrangement but you have centinued to push back the dates and stop payments,

Each time we are promised an amount we get sent less and on a later date than what was promised. If we do not receive payment for
5002122745001 - $28,732.06 by 4pm EST we will assign your file to the bailiff.

Piease be awara that 5002028248001 is also stilt past due for $2,318.84.
Final notices have bean issued and expired. No more time will be provided. We nead immediate proof of payment.
Thank youl.

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Manager

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Missisgauga, ON LAW 0AS

PH; 877-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: aiexandre evont@daimiectiruck.com

DAIMLER TRUCK

49 g Finangiat Services

From: Accounting <accounting@®jsanghatransport.com>

Sent: March 19, 2025 3:43 PM

To: Evon, Alexandre {713) <alexandre evon@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha®yahoo,.com>; Manwal Manoj

<mmanwai@ premiertruck.com>

Ce: Zagraoui, Madine {713) <nadine zagraoui@daimlertruc »; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713} <mohammad.abu-qube@daimlertruck.com>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha
Hi thera,

Good afternoon,

We will make your rest of the payment soon as we are just waiting for payments from customers, we are sending you payment confirmations
as we are receiving the payments from them.

This is a humble reguest to you that please atlow us some time, we will not stop your any future payments, please understand cur situation as



the remaining balance will be cleared out soon. We also appreciate your assistance.

Thanks for your co-operation.

From: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexandre evon@daimlertruck.com>

Sent: March 19, 2025 2:21 P
To: Accounting <accounting @jsanshatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yashoo.com>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal @premiertruck.com>
Cc; Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <nadine.zagracuj@daimiertruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) < amad.abu-qube i om>

Subject: RE; REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - jagdeep Sangha
Impartance: High

Gooed afterncon,

The amount we agreed on was $20,000 yesterday with $12,000 today. Please provide proof of payment for $21,000 to avoid further

escalations.
Kind Regards,

Atex Evon
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Finaneial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississanga, ON L4W DAS

PH: B77-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com

W i = financial.c
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From: Accounting <accounti i ansport.com:»

Sent: March 18, 2025 4:52 PM

To: Evon, Alexandre {713) <alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vahoo com>; Manwal,Manoj
<mmanwal@premiertruck.com>

Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <nading.zagraoui@daimiertiuck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mo ad.abu- i uck.com:>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - lagdeep Sangha
Hithere,

Plaase find the attached payment confirmation, rest of the proof we will send you soon.

Thanks.
Confirmation Wumber (%) Status
RJYS5X8 Successfui
fayment To DATIMLER TRUCK FINRANCIAL - 500 2114719 001
{DAIMLER)
From Account TO UNLIMITED BUSINESS PEAN
5246317

Current Balanca <3 ar 18, 2028

Amount $11,814.14
Frequency One Time
Take from my accousnt on © Mar 18, 2025

From: £von, Alexandre (713) <alexandre. evon@daimlertrick.com>



Sent: March 18, 2025 3:16 PM

To: Accounting <accounting @isanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vyahoo.com>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@pramiertruck.com>
Cc: Zagracui, Nadine {713) <nadine.zagraoui@daimlertruck.com>; Abu-Quibe, Mohammad {713) <mohammead.abu-qube @daimlertuck.com>
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Good afternoon,

We discussed with Manoj, we will accept $20,000 today, $12,000 tomorrow or Thursday, with the remaining $10,000 sent next week.
If we do not receive proof of payment for $20,000 by the end of the day we will not be accepting any more payment arrangements and
will be issuing the bailiff.

Thank ycu.

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Finaneial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON LAW QA5

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: alexandre evon@dsimlertruck.com

imier-truckfj
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From: Evon, Alexandre {713)
Sent: March 18, 2025 8:59 AM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; Manwal,Manoj <mnmmujl@mm@mk,c_om>
Ce: Zagraoui, Nadine {713} <nadine.zagracui@daimlertruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mohammad.abuy- >

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha
Importance: High

Good Morning,
No proof of payment was received, We are beginning to issue the baitiff,

To save on baitiff and towing fees you tan begin to surrender units at Ritchie Brothers in Brandon. Please let them know it's for lot
D56 and send us confirmation.

Kind Regards,

Alex Evan
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON LAW 0AS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: alexandre.evonf@daimieriruck.com
www. daimlertruckfinancial.ca

4C
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Front: Evon, Alexandre (713}
Sent: March 17, 2025 5:04 PM
To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha®@vahoo,com>; Manwal Manoj <mmm_|_@gm|gﬂf_(;k,g_[u>
Cc; Zagraoui, Nadine {713} <nadine zagragui@daimiectruck.com>



Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha
Importance: High

Good afternoon,

Thank you for the update, Please be aware we have yet to receive proof of payment. We will not provide you with anymore time, today
wiil be your last day to stick to a payment arrangement.

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Accaunt Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON LAW DAS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052

Email: alexandre evong@daimlertruck.com
w.daimier-tuokfinanci
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Fram: Accounting <gccounti I ansport,com:>

Sent: March 17, 2025 3;55 PM
To: Evon, Alexandre {713) <alexandre.evon@dairlertruck.comy>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>; Maawal,Manoj
< jertruck.com>

Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine {713) <padine zagraoui@daimiertruck corm>
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - japdeep Sangha

Hithere,

We will make your payrent and will share you proof as well,

Thanks.

From: Evon, Alexandre {713} <alexendre.evon®daimiectruck.com>

Sent: March 17, 2025 2:47 PM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasansha@vahoo.com>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck.com>
Ce: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <padine.zagragui@daimlertruck.corm>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha
Importance: High

Good afterncon,
if we do not receive proaf of payment for your full arrears as promised we will escalate your file to third parties.
Thank you.

Kind Regards,

Atex Evon
Acceount Manager

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

PH: 877-275-2151 ext 37052
Email: alexandre.evoni@daimlertruck.com
www daimler2ruckfinancial.ca

4@2 DAIMLER TRUCK
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From: Evon, Alexandre {713}
Sent: March 17, 2025 12:46 PM

To: Accounting <accountina@jsanghatransport,com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vyahoo,com>; Manwal,Manoj <mma
Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <padine.zagraoui@daf >

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - lagdeep Sangha

Good Morning,

| hepe you had a good weekend.

The helow payments were received. Currently your accounts are past due for:

Account Number Total Amount Past Due
5002122745001 $28,047.56
5002114719001 $11,814.14
5002028248001 $2,213.44

542,075,54

Piease provide immediate proof of payment for remaining arrears, as premised.

Thank you.

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Managey

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd Hast, #202
Mississaugs, ON L4W QAS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052
Email: alexandre evonfriduaimicrtruck.com
www daimler-truckfinanciat.ca

4®_§ I DAIMLER TRUGK
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From: Accounting <acceunting@jsanghatransport.com>

Sent; March 13, 2025 12:42 M

To: Evon, Alexandre (713} < e.8
< anwa amje| >

Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <nadine. zagraoui@daimiertruck.com:>
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Hi there,

Please find the attached payment confirmation,

g

>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha®@yahoo,com>; Manwal,Manoj

com>



payment To DAIMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL - 500 2121629 001
(DAIMLER)

From Account TD UNLIMITED BEISINESS PLAN
5246317

Currant Baiance #sr 13, 2028

Amaunt $14,548.54
Frequency ~One Time
Take from my account on Mar 13, 2023
Payment To DAIMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL - 500 2129162 001
(DAIMLER}
From Account TH UNLIMITED BUSINESS PLAN
524631

Current Balance  Mar 13, 2025

Amount %2,003.09
Freguency One Tima
Take from my account on © Mar 13, 2025
From: Evon, Alexandre {713} <alexandre evon@daimlertruck.com>
Sent: March 13, 2025 10:45 A
To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.coms; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com=>; Manwal,Manoj < iertruck.com>
Ce: Zagraoui, Nadine {713} <nadine.zagracui@dai o>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha
Importance: High

Good Morning,

i've checked with our accounting department and no funds were received. Currently your accounts are past due for:

Account Number Days Past Due  Total Amount Past Due
5002122745001 33 $28,047.96
5002114715001 25 $11,814.14
5002121628001 25 $14,548 .54
5002028248001 4 $2,213.44
5002125162001 Q $2,093.09

$58,717.17

To save on bailiff and towing fees you can begin to surrander your units at Ritchie Brothers in 8randon. No more time will be provided.
You had promised to originally send payment at the end of February but you have continued to stop your payments and no funds
have been sent as promised.

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Manager

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON LAW 0AS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052

Email: alexandteevonfddaimiertruck.com
imlar-truckf .
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From: Evan, Alexandre {713)
Sent: March 12, 2025 4:53 PM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatrapsport.cam>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo,com>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwa emie >
Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine (713) <nadi aoui@dai com

Suhject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - lagdeep Sangha
Good afternoon,
That is not what we agreed. If $20,0C0 is not received in our account by tomorrow morning the bailiff will be issued.

Kind Regards,

Aiex Evon
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #2072
Mississauga, ON L4W QAS

PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052

Email: alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com
www daimler-trugkfinancial.ca

4@ DAIMLER TRUCK

Financiai Serviges

From: Accounting <accountine@jsanghatransport.com>

Sent: March 12, 2025 4:51 PM

To: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vahoo.com>; Manwal,Manoj
<mmanwal@pramiertruck.com>

Ce: Zagraoui, Nadine {713} <padine.zagraoui@daimlertruck,com>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha

Hithere,

This is just to inform you that we will make some of the payment tomorrow and we will send you proof of payment, rest of the payment will be
made on Monday.
Thanks for your understanding and co-operation.

Thanks. ..

Fram: Evon, Alexandra (713} <ale aimlertruc| >

Sent: March 12, 2025 12:42 PM

Ta: Accounting <accounting@isanghatransport.coms; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahco.conr>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@®premiertruck.com>
Ce: Zagraoui, Nadine {713) <nadine.zagraoui@dairlerruck.com>»

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - Jagdeep Sangha
Gocd afternoon,

If we do not receive proof of payment for $20,000 by the end of the day we will issue the bailiff. The remaining arrears will need to be
sent on Mcnday.

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Bivd East, #202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS



PH: 877-275-1151 ext 37052

Email: alexandre.evon@daimlertruck.com
irmler- i igl
4®§ DATMLER TRUCK
H rinanciaf Services
From: Accounting <accounti j atranspo >
Sent; March 12, 2025 12:00 PM
To: Evon, Alexandre (713) <alexand daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha®yahoo.com>; Manwal,Manoj
<] a i om:>
Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine {713} <padine.zagracui@daimiertruck.com>

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - lagdeep Sangha
Hithere,

Good Merning,

Sorry for this inconvenience, we will clear out your balance an Monday as we are getting payments {ate from our custemers and our chegues
are on hold,

Please try to understand our situation. We much appreciate fo you for this kindness.

Thanks.

From: Evon, Alexandre {713} <ale ai >

Sent: Marci 12, 2025 10:25 AM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@vyahoa.com>; Manwal,Manoj < iestruck.com>
Cc: Zagraoui, Nadine {713} <nadine ji@dairniertruc >

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENT - lagdeep Sangha
Impartance; High

Good Morning,

We never recaived proof of payment. Not onty did we not receive proof of payment, but your March payment returned “Payment
Stopped” for 5002122745001 and you are now 2 months past due on this account,

Currently your accounts are past due for:

Days
Past
Account Number Due Total Amount Past Due

5002122745001 32 $28,047.96
5062114719001 24 $11,814.14
5002121629001 29 $14,548.54
5002028243001 3 $2,213.44
5002129162001 0 $2,053.09

$58,717.17

Ifyou do not provide proof of payment for your full arrears immediately we will be issuing the bailiff tonight. We've already issued
final notices on ali these accounts in February and will not provide you with anymore time.

Kind Regards,

Alex Evon
Account Manager

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
2680 Matheson Blvd East, #202
Mississauga, ON L4W QA5

PH: 877-275-115% ext 37052
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This is Exhibit “L” referred to in the affidavit of
Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn before me,
this | day of September, 2025.

e

T, e

Al (_i)mmisgofler for taking af}idavits
anny M. Nunes

(LSO #53802D)



From: Manwal,Manoi

Tot Daamsa, Al (713) (EXTY: DTFS Canada - Coflections, Pool-ID (713-P1D)
Ce: accounting; lakhasangha@vahoo.com

Subject: Trailer Surrender — Drop-Off Location Request

Date: May 6, 2025 4:54:35 PM

Attachments: imaqed0l.png

Good afternoon,

Please see the message below from Lakhvir, who has volunteered to surrender the trailers
listed.

Could you kindly advise on the appropriate location where these units can be dropped off?

Agreement no. 5002114719
3AKIHHDRXPSULB700
SAKIHHDR1PSUL8701

Agreement no.5002121629
3AKJHHDR3RSUU8214
3AKIHHDRSRSUUSB215

Agreement no.5002122745
25HSR5320PS002053
2SHSR5328PS002057
2SHSR5323PS002077
23HSR5E325PS002083
25HSR5320PS002084
2SHSR532XPS002125

Agreement no.500215321
JAKIHHDR7RSUU8218
SAKJHHDRIORSUUB217

Agreement no.5002129162
3AKIHHDRXRSUV3538
3AKJHHDR1RSUV3539



Thank you for your assistance.

Manoj Manwal

Financial Services Manager
Premier Truck Group of Winnipeg
(204) 631-0557 {Direct)

(204) 881-1318 (Mobile)

(204) 694-6000 (Fax)
mmanwal@premiertruck.com

ONE

LA ¢ A TS EAECUTNG

From: Lakhvir Singh <lakhasangha@yahoo.com>

Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2025 3:11 PM

To: Manwal,Manoi <mmanwzl@ premiertruck.com:; Lakhvir Sangha
<lakhvir@jsanghatransport.com:

Subject: REGARDING DAIMLER AND DYNAMIC

Hi Manoj,
Please find the below Vin numbers of DAIMLER and Dynamic we want to surrender these units.

Agreement no. 5002114719
SAKJHHDRXPSULB700
SAKJHHDR1PSULS701

Agreement no.5002121629
3AKJHHDR3RSUUS214
3AKIHHDRSRSUUSB215

Agreement no.5002122745
28HSR5320PS002053
25HSR5328PS002057
285HSRBE323PS002077
2SHSR5329PS002083
25HSR5320PS002084



28HSR532XPS002125

Agreement no.500215321
3AKJHHDR7RSUU8216
3AKJHHDRSRSUU8B217

Agreement no.5002129162
3AKJHHDRXRSUV3538
3AKIHHDR1RSUV3538

Dynamic units

2TX1FMB21PE240001
2TXIFMB25PE240002
2TXIFMB25PE240003
2TXIFMB27PE240004
2TX1FMB2SPE240005

2TX1FMB22PE240007
2TX1FMB24PE240008
2TX1FMB26PE240009
2TX1FMB22PE240010

Thank you.

Best regards,
Lakhvir Sangha
Director, Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

387 Goldenrod Drive Road | Rosser | Manitoba | ROC 3AC Canada
O: (204)-615-2637 | C; (204)-298-1721 |akhvir@jsanghatransport.com
A @) hat

tps.//j co




This is Exhibit “M” referred to in the affidavit of
Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn before me,
this ]S day of September, 2025.

A Commlsﬁgl}% ;t;om?lﬁlbgn%gdavﬁs
(LSO #53802D)



From: MidCan Admin

Ta! Daamsa, Ali (/3 ; Abu-Qube, Mchammad {713}
Subject: Jagdeep Sangha File# 5002105955 - UPDATE
Pate: May 16, 2025 2:41:09 PM
Jagdeep Sangha 5002105956 | 3AKJIHHDRGNSNE3047 | 2022 | Freightliner Cascadia

Good afternoon, this unit was located today at Jagdeep sangha’s yard. It’s been in a wreck and
stripped. Just the cab sitting on the ground. Photos attached. Please let me know if you need
further info. | would assume that you do not want us to repossess this?

1K

From: Noah Lexier <nlexier@rrfs.ca>
Sent: May 16, 2025 1:21 PM

To: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan.ca>
Subject: JAGDEEP SANGHA WRECK

Noah Lexier

Operations

Office - 204-657:5400
Fax — 204-668-0778
nlexier@rrfs.ca



From: MidCan Admin

To: Daamsa, Ali (713} (EXTY; Abu-Qube, Mchammad {713}
Subject: iocated - Jagdeep Sangha File# 5002105955
Date: May 29, 2025 4:13:49 PM
Jagdeep Sangha 5002105956 | 3AKIHHDR2NSNE3045 | 2022 | Freightliner Cascadia

Mi Ali, this truck was located at a towing yard today. It’s been stripped. Unit numbers on the truck
do not match the unit numbers they advised matched this unit. It makes sense now that the unit
has been pinging at their yard - they pulled anything they could off this. As you can see thereis an
engine but no rad and it’s very rough.

if you would like us to move it to our yard, we can. Please advise what you would like to do with
this unit.

JK

From: Jenn Kehler <jenn@rrfs.ca>

Sent: May 20, 2025 3:08 PM

To: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan.ca>
Subject: FW: Ne3045

Thawk you!
Jenn Kehler

Operations

Office — 204-697-5400
Fax — 204-668-0778
Mobiie — 204-782-3971

jenn@rrfs.ca

From: Jenn Kehler <jen >
Sent: May 20, 2025 3:02 PM

To: Jenn Kehler <jgnn@rifs.ca>
Subject: Ne3045



Jenn Kehler

Run-Rite Freight Systems Inc.
204-782-3971

Get Outlook for Android




From: MidCan Admin

To: Daamsa, All (713) (EXT)
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
Date: May 20, 2025 4:20:50 PM
Attachments: imageC08.png
imagetdd.pnq

Hey Ali, just to follow up here, we have NOT heard anything in regard to this load. Do you
think we should reach out to insurance and/or their customer? | can only imagine the
wild stories they have been told!

JK

From: Daamsa, Ali (713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com:
Sent: May 15, 2025 4:30 PM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.comz; Lakhvir Sangha
<Lakhvir@jsanghatransport.com>

Subject: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Importance: High

Hello,

We have been advised by our bailiff that you have not retrieved your load from their location
for trailer VIN# 2SHSR532XPS002 125 which is loaded with potatoes.

You have been provided time to arrange a pick-up of this load since May 6”‘, 2025, We
request once again that you contact our bailiff to arrange the pick-up of the load by Friday
May 16”‘, 2025, Otherwise, this load will be considered abandoned, and we will need to
dispose.

The bailiff has been generous enough to accommodate a drop off/cross dock within their
area. Otherwise, it's your responsibility to pick up this load.

It has been mentioned on multiple occasions that we will not be releasing any seized units
unless full payout + bailiff fees are received for those units. Our stance regarding this will
not and has not changed. Although, we are not holding the load and have offered options to
pick-up / drop-off.

Here are your updated delinquencies to be addressed:




5002105956 % oo 2lases
5002121629 - $ 636499
5002141253 $ 16,312.20 ..
5002116518 - $ 10,768.57
5002101491 $ 7,330.86
IE 97,557.91
Thank you.
Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AD

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax; 833-902-3858

Email; ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com
www. daimler-truckfinancial.ca

L
4@3 f DAIMLER YRUCK

Fingncisl Servisas
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From: Accounting <accounti jsanghat ort.com>

Sent: May 15, 2025 11:56 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713) (EXT) <alidaamsa@daimlertryck.com>; Lakhvir Sangha
<Lakhvir@}sanghatransport.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mohammad.abuy:
gube@daimlertruck.com>

Cc: Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal @ premiertriuck.com>; lakhasangha@vyahoo.com
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hi there,
This is our humble request to you that please release our truck and trailers which are under

paid/ clear accounts also which are loaded trailers, as we must deliver those shipments to the
customer to release our held funds.

Thank you.



From: Daamsa, Ali (713} (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimleriruck.com>

Sent: May 15, 2025 10:03 AM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Sangha
<lakhvir@isanghatransport.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713} <mohammad, aby-
gube@daimiertruck.com>

Cc: Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck.com>; lakhasangha@vahoo.com
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hello,

The mentioned file (5002028248) has been placed on hold as we have received the payment
of $1,285.34. '

Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W QAL

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com
www.daimler-truckfinancial.ca

-
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From: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.cormn>

Sent: May 15, 2025 10:52 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimleriruck.com>; Lakhvir Sangha
<lakhvir@jsanghatransport.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mchammad.abu-
gube@daimleriruck com>

Cc: Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck.com>; [akhasangha@vahoo.com
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

'J'agdeep Sangha Transport’



| 5002028248 Inc. : 34 $1,285.34 5

Hi there,

Please advise Uus to have you received $1285.34 payment sent on 13 may by wire.

Thank you.

From: Accounting
Sent: May 13, 2025 3:39 PM
To: Daamsa, Ali {713) {EXT) <ali.dasmsa@daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Sangha

<Lakhvir®@jsanghatranspori.coms; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mohammad.abu-
gube@dajmlertruck.com>
Cc: Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck.com>; lakhasan

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hithere,
Please find the attached payment.

Authorize - Payment Results

Total Submitted: 1

Tokal Sucqessfolly Released to Bank: 1

Total Requiring Further Authorization: 0

Submitted on: 13/05/2025 04:37 PM ET
[P e R e e e
Status, | Denefidary'sName . . DueDate . ' Amount |
Accepted DAIMEIER TRUCK FINANCIAL 05/13/2025 1,285.34 CAL |

SERVICES €A
From: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@dai r >

Sent: May 13, 2025 10:55 AM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Sangha

<iakhvir@jsanghatransport.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mchammad.abu-
e imlert >

Ce: Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@oremiertruck.com:; iakhasangha@yahoo.com

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAHVLER PAYMENTS

Hello,

Your payment on 05/08/2025 has returned due to stopped payment, against your claim that
it has been lifted with your bank, which increased the delinquency to $4,321.48.



You have not yet lifted your stop-payment and payments continue to return despite multiple
requests. If any payments continue to return on accounts brought-up-to-date, bailiff will
resume efforts on those past-due files.

This is unacceptable and a continuous breach of your signed contract.

Again, no seized trailers/trucks will be released unless the full payout and fees are
paid for that unit.

Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W QA5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: B33-902-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimiertruck.com
www, daimler-truckfinancial.ca

L _ U
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From: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatranspori.com>

Sent: May 13, 2025 11:33 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck,com:>; Lakhvir Sangha
<lakhvir@jsanghatranspert.com=; Abu-Qube, Mchammad (713) <mohammad.abu-

gube@daimlertruck.com>

Cc: MidCan Admin <admin@midecan.ca>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck.com>;

lakhasangha@vyahoo.co
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hithere,

Please advise us regarding this amount $1285.34 as yesterday we have cleared all balance of
$2213.44.

Thanks.



From: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <all.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>

Sent: May 13, 2025 9:16 AM

To: Accounting <accounting@ijsanghatransgort.com>; Lakhvir Sangha
<Lakhvir@jsanghatransport.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mohammad.ab

be imlertruck.com>
Cc: MidCan Admin <admi n@m|dcan,ca> Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal Lom>;
a ngha o
Subject: RE; REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS
Importance: High

Hello,

Please be advised, we have received the wire transfer of $37,221.94 and are applying the
amounts to your accounts,

Kindly see your remaining past-due batances not including bailifi-fee’s:

g p Sg o
5002122745 e - 66 $42,413.99
""" . .”Jégd'e'e”p Sagg;ggTransport

5002105956 Inc. 40 $20,520.82
T Jagdeep Sangha Transport” . - O
5002141253 Inc. L 19 - $18,122.69
_ Jagdeep Sangh'é' T'r'a'nsport J o
5002121629 Inc. 27 S12,729.97
- " Jagdeep Sangha Transport . .
5002028248 Inc. - V. $1 285.34
e e [ Son 470,81

Bailiff remains active on accounts above until they are brought up to date.
Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W QA5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax: 833-902-3858



Email: ali.daamsa@daimlertruck,.com
www daimler-truckfinancial.ca
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From: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatrapsport.com>

Sent: May 12, 2025 4:13 PM

To: Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@jsanghatransport.com>; Daamsa, Ali (713) {EXT)
<ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mohammad.abu-
gube®@daimieriruck.com>

Cc: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan.ca>; Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal @ premiertruck.com>;

lakhasangha@vahoo.com
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hithere,

Please find the attached payment confirmation of wire, $37,221.94 has been done as per for
the following accouni numbers. Now please release our truck and trailers.

5002125321- § 12941.48
5002114719-$11814.14
5002047470 - $ 9430.18
5002028248- $ 2213.44
5002116518 -$489.48
5002101491- $333.22

- Thankyou.

From: Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@jsanghatr ort.coms>
Sent: May 12, 2025 10:56 AM

To: gli.daamsa@daimlertruck.com; mohammad.abu-gube@daimlertruck.com

Cc: MidCan Admin <admin@®@midcan,.ca>; Accounting <agcounting@jsanghatransport.com>
Subject: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

'Hithere,

This is to inform you that today we will make payments of following account numbers by wire
payment and will send you proof as well.

5002125321- $ 12941.48
5002114719-$11814.14



5002047470 - $9430.18
5002028248- $ 2213.44
5002116518 -$489.48
5002101491- $333.22

Thank you.

Lakhvir Singh Sangha

Director/Jagdeep sangha Transport Inc.

387 Goldenrod Drive Road, Rossor, MB, ROC 3A0, Canada
Q: (204-615-2637)*2 Phone #204-298-1721

Ilﬂ &‘K\\
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WE
& IIIII YOUR SUPPLY: CHAIN'S STROMGEST LINK.

If you are not the addressee, please inform us immediately that you have received this e-mail by mistake,
and delete it. We thank you for your support.



From: MidCan Admin

To: Daamsa, Ali {7133 (EXT); Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713)
Subject: SEIZURE Jagdeep Sangha File # 5002105956
Date: May 21, 2025 11:20:05 AM
Jagdeep Sangha 5002105956 | SAKIHHDR2NSNE3045 l 2022 | Freightliner Cascadia

Good morning, we seized this unit this morning from Hisar Towing, 2124 Springfield Rd in
Winnipeg,MB and towed to our yard at 81 Froese Crescent. | had sent pics yesterday but thought
we should at least get it out of there to take a look at it as we had found other units there.

As | mentioned yesterday, this unit is in rough shape - we can provide another update later this
morning about the state of the unit. | believe you were going to try to ask MPl if there is an

insurance claim open on it?

JK




From: Admin

To: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT}; Abu-Qube, Mchammad (713}
Subject: FURTHER LiPDATE RE: Jagdeep Sangha File# 5002105956 - UPDATE
Date: May 23, 2025 5:05:48 PM

Gaad afternoon, we have found the remainder of this truck. Unfortunately it's as expected - mid
way being stripped and parted out. See photes attached we took while attending their yard. You
can see the VIN sticker in one of the photos and another with the VIN stamped on the frame to
identify it. We will be towing what we can over to our yard at 81 Froese. | guess we can see now
why it was still pinging at their yard.

Did you get any info from MPI on these units that were full losses?

lenn

From: MidCan Admin

Sent: May 16, 2025 1:40 PM

Ta: ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com; mehammad.abu-qube@daimlertruck.com
Subject: Jagdeep Sangha File# 5002105956 - UPDATE

Jagdeep Sangha 5002105956 | 3AKIHHDRGNSNE3047 l 2022 [ Freightliner Cascadia

Good afternoon, this unit was located today at Jagdeep sangha’s vard. It’s been in awreck and
stripped. Just the cab sitting on the ground. Photos attached. Please let me know if you need
further info. | would assume that you do not want us to repossess this?

K
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From: Noah Lexier <nlexier@rrfs.ca>
Sent: May 16, 2025 1:21 PM

To: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan.ca>
Subject: JAGDEEP SANGHA WRECK

Noah Lexier



Operations

Office — 204-687-5400
Fax — 204-668-0778
nlexier@rrfs.ca



From: MidCan Admin

To: Daamsa, Alj (713} (EXTY); Abu-Qube, Mchammad {713}
Cc: latet Gilmour; Noah texjer

Subject: RE: Ps002077

Date: May 29, 2025 12:54:45 PM

Here is the original dealership’s bill for PS002079. It seems PTG made a mistake on their
end. | spoke to Manoj and he said there could not have been a mistake, however | can’t
see how it would not have been an error on their end. | find it very unlikely that unrelated
traiters would have swapped reefers this specifically.

Please let me know what you would like me to do here.

Jenn

From: MidCan Admin

Sent: May 29, 2025 11.44 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713)
<mohammad.abu-qube@daimlertruck.com>

Cc: Jaret Gilmour <jgilmour@rrfs.ca>; Noah Lexier <niexier@rrfs.ca>

Subject: FW: Ps002077

Please see attached the original dealership stating they installed a different reefer on
this unit originally. | am trying to see if they installed PS002079 as well to see if there was

a mix up somewhere,

From: Jenn Kehler <jenn@rrfs.ca>
Sent: May 29, 2025 1140 AM

To: MidCan Admin <admin®@® midcan.ca>
Subject: Ps002077



Jenn Kehler

Run-Rite Freight Systems Inc.
204-782-3971

Get Qutlook for Android




From: MidCan Admig

To: Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713); Daamsa, Ali (713) {(EXT}
Cc: Jaret Gilmeur; Noah Lexjer

Subject: UPDATE RE: Ps002077

Date: May 29, 2025 1:14:42 PM

Attachments: imaaedd?.nng

The owners of this trailer (PS002079) presented us with a bill of sale when they bought
this trailer new from Bell Trailers in Winnipeg. It is the same ane | sent previously. As they
purchased from new | suspect this might be a legal nightmare. | suggest not seizing this
unit and taking this situation up with PTG. We will continue searching for the real
PS002077.

From: MidCan Admin

Sent: May 29, 2025 12:02 PM

To: Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mohammad.abu-qube @daimlertruck.com>; Daamsa, Ali (713)
(EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com:>

Cc: laret Gilmour <jgilmour@rrfs.ca>; Noah Lexier <nlexier@rrfs.ca>

Subject: RE: Ps002077

Will do.

From: Abu-Cube, Mohammad {713) <mchammad.abu-qube@daimiertruck.com>

Sent: May 29, 2025 12:01 PM

To: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan.ca>; Daamsa, Ali {713) {EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>
Cc: Jaret Gilmour <jgilmour@yrfs ca>; Noah Lexier <plexi >

Subject: RE: Ps0020G77

O wow, They might be. Lets repo both the trailer and the Reefer for now please.

Thank you.

Regards,



Moe Qube
Manager, Coflections & Loss Recovery

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Tel: 416-459-9380
Fax: 833-902-3858
Email: Mohammad.Abu-Qube@daimlertruck.com

imter-truckfinancial

DAIMLER TRUCK

Financial Services

From: MidCan Admin <admin®@ midcan.ca>
Sent: May 29, 2025 12:55 PM

To: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713)

< - imlerfruck.com:>
Cc: laret Gilmour <jgilmour@rrfs,.ca>; Noah Lexier <nlexier@rrfs.ca>
Subject: RE: Ps002077

Here is the original dealership’s bill for PS0020789. It seems PTG made a mistake on their
end. | spoke to Manoj and he said there could not have been a mistake, howeverican’t
see how it would not have been an error on their end. | find it very unlikely that unrelated
trailers would have swapped reefers this specifically.

Please let me know what you would like me to do here.

Jenn

From: MidCan Admin
Sent: May 29, 2025 11:44 AM



To: Daamsa, Ali (713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713)
<mohammad.aby-gube@daimlertruck.com>

Cc: Jaret Gilmour <jgiimour@rifs.ca>; Noah Lexier <plexier @rrfs.ca>

Subject: FW: Ps002077

Please see attached the original dealership stating they installed a different reefer on
this unit originally. | am trying to see if they installed PS002079 as well to see if there was
a mix up somewhere.

D-CA

COLLECTI
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From: Jenn Kehler <jgnn@rrfs.ca>
Sent: May 29, 2025 11:40 AM

To: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan.ca>
Subject: Ps002077

lenn Kehler

Run-Rite Freight Systems Inc.
204-782-3971

Get Outlool for Android

If you are not the addressee, please inform us immediately that you have received this e-mail by mistake,
and delete it. We thank you for your support.



Frogit LBaan adrin

Ta; Daamea, NLZI3LIEXTY
Cex L2bu-Oube, Mohammad {713}
Subject: RE: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc,
Date: May 29, 2025 1:56:26 P
Attachments; meeetM.on

Imaqe{05,009

Hi guys, | know UL8701 is scoming up to seize tomerrow....we ase in their yard and they are sttipping decals from a lot of equipment. UL8703 is one unit. We are
documenting but | think if there is anytiing you want grabbed that is grey area we might want to consider it. The owner has left town and the end is near for this
company. Let me know—we are decumenting anything on site.

From: Daamsa, Ali [713) [EXT) <ali.dasmsa@daimlertruck.com>

Sent: May 23, 2025 7:37 AM

To: MidCan Admin <admin@rmidcan.ca>

Ce: Abu-Qube, Maharamad {713) <mohammad.abu-qube@daimlertruck.com>
Sublect: Re: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hilann,

Customer has not made any new payments.

HOLDS:

002114719 - LT Tt U0 U aadeep Sangha TranspertIng, .
5002047470 Jagdeep Sangha Transpert Inc.
5002028244 oS e aadaep Bangha Transporting. -
5002126321 Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
‘soozizeter o T . ST T Jagdeap Sangha Transport Inc.

Let me know if you need anything from my side.
Thank youl

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleat Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Servicas Canada Gerporation
2480 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON LAW 0AB

Tek 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax: 833-902-3858
£mail: ali.dasrmsa@daimiertruck.com

Firenelist Servicos

49; E BAIMLER TRUCK

From: MidCan Admin <admin®midcan.ca>

Sent: Friday, May 23, 2025 8:27 AMt

To: Daamsa, Ali {713) {EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimiertruck.com>

Ce: Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mohammad.abu-gube®@daimlertruck com>
Subject: RE: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hi Ali, we are hitting Sangha's yard this morning bafore the loads roll out for the weskend. | just wanted to make sure nething else is coming off hold?

IK

COLLECTIONS

I* MID-CANADA

From: Daamsa, All (713) (EXT) <ali.daamsa@daimlertruck com>

Sent: May 21, 2025 1:33 PM

To: MidCan Agmin <admin@mircan.ca>

Ce: Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713} <mohammad. abu-qubhe@daimlertruck com>
Subject; Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Impartance: High



Hi Jenn,

This email just serves as an update tc¢ where we're at currantly regarding these files:

5002172745 lagdeep Sangha TrarsportInc. - 535,920,37 - - - - CONTINUE SEIZURE

5002105956 °. . Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc. -~ 48.- - $21,431,08 . . - CONTINUE SEIZURE: <

5002141253 ..., lagdeep Sangha Transportlnc. |27 - 816,312.20 7 CONTRMUESERZURE - @0 - oot o e
5002121629 - - Jagtlieep Sangha Trabsportine, - 35 - .- 51242688 - -  CONTINUESERZURE . .. . .

5002116518 ‘- - ° Jagdeep Sangha Transportinc. - 17 . . - §10,768.57 CONTINUE SEIZURE Lo SRS
5002101491 . Jagdeep Sangha Transportinc.. 16 .. - $7,330.86. = ..CONTHNUE SEIZURE : I I
T LT L FINAL NOTICE REISSUED - WELLREGPENFILE!N].BDAYSIFI’ASTE}UEISNDT
5002114718 - lagdeep Sarighs Transportine, |5 45,625,768 " SATISFIED.

5002047470 lagdeep Sangha Transport inc. 4} $377.02 UP TO DATE - DO NOT SEIZE

5002028248 . . Jagdeep Sangha Transporting.. 0 -$0,00 UP-TO DATE - DO NOT SEIZE

5002125321 Jagdeap Sangha Transport inc. 8 50,00 UP 7O DATE - DO NOT SEEZE

5002129162 - . Jegdeep Sangha Transpart Ing, Q- 40.00 " UP TO DATE - DO NOT S5BZE

Regarding cur insurance matters,

} wilt reach out to MP} regarding the two units mentioned above and will inquire about the potatoss. I'll keep you posted but as you said, it's difficult managing around insurance.

Please let me know if you get anything from your side. 1 intend to follow up with MPI tomorrew and will keep you posted. Also, if you could confirm which units are at your yard
and which one Is a1 thefr yard still from the two total-loss units?

- | 7

Will cheek for pings tc follew, Please advise if | did not address something regarding this file.
Thank you!

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Anatyst

Daimler Truck Finansial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W DAS

Tel: §77-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax; 833-902-3858
Email: pli.daamsa@daimleriuck.com

r- i ial.

4@{ ; DAIMLER TRUGK
¥

Finsnciel Services

From: MidCan Admin <admin®midean.ca»
Sent: May 21, 2025 9:31 AM

To: Daamsa, Al {713} (EXT) <alidasmsa@daimlernrck.com>
Subject: RE: DAMMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

1 can try to see if | can gat anywhere. Insurance companies can be difficult

1 will let you know if i can get anywhere with this.

COLLECTIONS

!* MID-CANADA

From: Daamsa, Ali (713) {EXT) <pli.¢daamsa@daimiertruck cam>
Sent: May 21, 2025 8:29 AM

To: MidCan Admin <admind@midean,ca>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport inc.

Hi jenn,

| agree, might be good to get [nsurance invoived. | can reach out to MPI the same time about this load and let you know.
Net sure if you have connections at MPI that might speed up the response time?

Let me know,

Thank you!

Sincerely,

Ali Daamsa

Fleet Analyst

Dalmier Truck Financiat Services Canada Corporation



2680 Matheson Blvd. Fast, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax; 833-902-3858

Email: alidagmsa@daimlertruck.com
P nzngialcs

4@; DAIMLER TRUGK

. Flangizl Servizosn

From: MidCan Admin <admin@ midcan,ca>

Sedt! May 21, 2025 9:25 AM

To! Daamsa, Ali {713) {EXT) <ali.iaamea@®d pippfertruck.com>

Cc: Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713] < d.abu - aube@dnimlertrack com>
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport tac.

Agreed, | would just like the insurance company invoived. They could potentially still salvage some of this load. | haven't looked at the preduct but seed potatoes are
quite hardy and we have kept them refrigerated this whole tims.

COLLECTIONS

E*” MID-CANADA

From: Daamsa, Al (713) (EXT} <afdaamsag@aimlertruck.coms>

Sent: May 21, 2025 8:19 AM

Ta: MidCan Admin <admin@@nidean,ca>

Ce: Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713] <mehammad abli-qube@daimterimck.come
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sanghe Transport Inc.

Hi Jenn,

| believe best step would be to dispose since m sure the potatoes have gone bad by now.
Let me know what you think,

Thanks.

Sincerely,
Ali Baamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: al.daamsa@daimiertiuck.com
airmler A .

4@5 E BAIMLER TRUGK

Firancizl Services

From: MidCan Admin <admin@nidcan.ca>

Sent: May 20, 2025 4:21 PM

To: Daamsa, Al [713) [EXT) <ali,daamsa@daimiprruck.coms
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sanghz Transport inc.

Hay All, jusst to foliow up hare, we have NOT heard anythingin regard to this load. Do you think we should reach out to insurance and/for their customer? | can only
imagina the wild stories they have been toid!

K

B [ io-canapa

Froms Daamsa, Ali {713} {EXT) <al.dasmsa@d gimtertruck com>

Sent: May 15, 2025 4:30 PM

To: Accounting <accounting@jsanghatransport cory>; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@isapebatransport.com>
Subject: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport inc.

Impartance: High

Hello,

We have been advised by our hatiff that you have not retrieved your load from their locatien for trailer VIN# 25MSR532XPS002 125 which is loaded with potatoes.



You have been provided time to armange a pick-up of this load since May 6“‘, 2025, We request once again that you contact our bailiff to arrange the pick-up of the load by
Friday May iﬁ“‘, 2025. Otherwise, this load will be considered abandoned, and we will need to dispose.

The bailiff has been generaus enough to accommodate a drop off /cross dock within their area. Otherwise, it's your responsibifity to pick up this load.

It has been mentioned on multipie occasions that we will not be releasing any seized units unless full paycut + balliff fees are received for those units. Our stance
regarding this will not ang has not changed, Although, we are not holding the load and have offered options to pick-up / drop-off,

Here are your updated deiinquencies to be addressed:

5002122745
5802105956 31,431.08
5002121629 6,364.99
5002141253 16,312.20
5002116518 i0,768.57
5092101491 7,330.86
[$ 97,557.91

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Ali Daamsa

Fleet Analyst

Baimler Truck Financiai Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: ali.deamsa@daimlertryck,com
wwrw daimler-truckfinansial.ca

40; E BAIMLER TRUCK

Firanciet Servives

From: Accounting < g Efsanghatiansport, >

Sent: May 15, 2025 11:56 AM

Ta: Daamsa, Ali (713} (EXT) <alldaamsadaimlpgruck.comy; Lakhwir Sangha <Wakhvic®@isanehatransoort.comy»; Abu-Cube, Mohammad {713} «mohammad.abu-aube@datmlertruck coms>
Ce: Manwal, Manoj <mmanwal@upremiertouck cony>; akhasangha @yahoo.com

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hi there,

This s our humble request to you that please release our truck and trailers which are under paio/ clear accaunts also which are loaded trailers, as we must dalivar those
shipmants ta the customer to ralease our held funds.

Thank you.

From: Daamsa, All {713) {EXT} <all.daamss@daimlertruck.com>

Sent: May 15, 2025 10:03 AM

Toi Accounting <accountina@jsanghatransporteonyy; Lakhvir Sangha <lakhvir@isanghalransport com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713} <mohaming It iy >
Ce: Manwal,Manoj <mmanwal@® premiertrick, rom>; lakhasangha@valioo.com

Subfect: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hello,
The mentioned file (5002028248) has been placed on hold as we have received the payment of $1,285.34.
Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Dzamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Ganada Corporation
2680 Mathason Bivd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON LAW 0AS

Tel; 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: afl.daamsa@daimientiick.com
imler-trugkiinanc]

4@_;“‘ { BAIMLER TRUCK

Firpncigl Szrvizes



Fram: Accounting <gccounfing@iza snOrt £oms>
Sent: May 15, 2025 10:52 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713) (EXT} <ali.daamsa@daimieciuck come; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@jsanghatransport.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad ({713} <mohammad. abu-oubed@daimlerinick.com>
Cr: Manwal, Manej <mmanwati@pramiertick coms; lakhasangha@yahon.com

Suhject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Jagdeep Sangha Transport
5002028248 fric. 34 $1,285.34

Hi thers,

Plaase advisa us to have you raceived $1285.34 payment sent on 13 may by wire,

Thank you.

Fram: Accounting

Sent: May 13, 2025 3:39 PM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713} (EXT} <all.caamsz ®darmletruck.com>; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@jsanghatransport.cam>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mphammad shu-qube@daimlertruck com>
Cc: Manwal,Mangj <inmanwst@uremiertruck com>; |akhasapeha@yshoo.com

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hithera,
Plaase find the attached payment.

Authorize - Payment Results

Total Submitted: 1

Total Successfully Released to Bank: i

Total Requiring Further Authorization: a

Submitted an: 13f95/2025 04137 PMET

[ " . L Payment 1
s:;:::“_ Bem&ﬂ:iary s Name .. Due Oate :ygmur_it S
Actepted DALMEER TRIFCK ?IHANC!FJ. 05/13/2025 1,285.34 CAD |

SERVICES CA

Fram: Daamsa, Alt (713) (EXT) <zidaamsa@daimlertnuck.com>
Sent: May 13, 2025 1055 AM
To: AccoLnbing <scconnline@isznshatrapsport.comi; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhwir@itissnahatranspoet com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mobammad zby-cube @daimlertrck.coms>

Ce: Manwal,Manoj <mmanwat@premiertruck,com>; lakhasaneha@yahgo.com
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hello,
Your payment en 05/08 /2025 has returned due to stoppsd payment, against your claim that it has bean lifted with your bank, which increased the delinquency to $4,321.48.

You have not yet Iifted your stop-payment and payments continue te retum despite multiple requests. If any payments continue to return on aceounts brought-up-ta-date, bailiff
will resume efforts on those pest-dus files,

This is unacceptabie and a continuous breach of your signed contyact.
Again, no seized trailers/trucks wiil he released uniess the full payout and fees are paid for that unit.
Thank you.

Sinceraly,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Baimler Truck Financlal Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Sufte 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax: 832-902-3858
Email: giidaamsa@daimlariruck.com

) inancia
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From: Accounting <accpunting@janghatransoort.com>
Sent: May 13, 2025 11:33 AM
Ta: Daamsa, Ali {713) {EXT) <ali.dsamsa@daimlerteuck com»; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@{sangbatransport. coms; Abu-Gube, Mohammed (713} <mahammad.aby-qube@dsimlertruck.coms>

Ce: MidCan Admin <admia@inidean cax; Manwal,Mane] <mmanwal@oremiertruck com>; lakhasangha@vahoo.com
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hithars,

Pleasa advise us regerding this ameunt $1286.34 as yesterday we have clearsd alt balance of $2213,44,



Thanks.

From: Daamsa, Ali {713} {EXT} <alidasmsa@daimlertruck con>

Sent: May 13, 2025 9:16 AM

To! Accounting <agcountine®@jsanehatransport.coms; Lakindr Sangha <Lakhvir@jsanehatranspost con>; Abu-Qube, Mohammead (713) <mohamimad.abu-oybe@daimierteck coms>
Ce: MidCan Admin <admin@raidean.ca>; Manwal, Manoj <mmanwal@premiertruck coms; lakhasangha@vahoo.com

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Impaortance: High

Hello,

Please be advisad, we have received the wire transfer of $37,221.94 and are applying the amounts ta your accounts.

Kindly see your remaining past-due balances not including bafiiff-fee's:

lagdeep Sangha Transpo:

5002122745 ing, 66 $42,413.99
Jagdeep Szngha Transport

5002105956 Inc. 40 $20,920.82

" Jagdeep Sangha Transport ) )

5002141253 e, - ] 18 $18,122.69
Jagdeep Sangha Transpart

5002121629 e, 7 $12,729.97
Jagdeep Sangha Fransport o

50020258248 fnc. . ’ 34 §1,285.34

] $55,472.51

Balliff remains active on accounts above until they are brought sp to date.
Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corparation
2480 Matheson Bhvd, East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON LAW 0A5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimiertiyck.com
i ﬁ .
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From: Accounting <; ting@isgnahat >
Sent: May 12, 2025 4:13 PM
To: Lakhvir Sanghs <takhvir@jsanahatra soin>; Daamsa, Alt {713) (EXT} <alidaamsa@daimleriruck.ooms; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713} etnobammad abie-gube@daimlertruck.cony>

Ce: MidCan Admin <amini@midean ca>; Mariwal,Manoj <mmanywal @preisiertiuek.com; lakhasanghad@yaboo.com
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hi thara,
Pteass find the attachad payment confirmatien of wire, $37,221.24 has been done as per for the following account numbers. Now please relaase our truck and trailers.

5002126321~ § 12947.48
6002114719- 5 11814.14
5002047470 - § 943018
5002028248 $2213.44
5002116518 -$480.48
50021061491- $333.22

Thankyou.

Erom: Lakhvir Sangha <Lakbvir@isanshairansport.com>
Sent: May 12, 2025 10:56 AM
o: afi.deamsa@daimlertryck.com; mobammad abu-obed@dajmlertruck.com
Cet MidCan Admin <agdmin@midcan.ca>; Accounting <accountingi@isanehatransport. com>
Subject: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hi thera,
This is to iaform youz that today we will make payments cf foliowing aceount numbers by wire payment and will send you preof as wall.

5002126321- § 12941.48
5002114719- $ 1181414



5002047470 - $9430.18
5002028248 $ 2213.44
5002116518 -3489.48
5002101491- $333.22

Thank you.

Lakhvir Singh Sangha

Directors Jagdeep sangha Transport Inc.

387 Gotdenrod Drive Road, Rossor, MB, RGC 3A0, Canada
0:{204-615-2837)*2 Phone #204-298-1721

JEE  BRAN bl
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o WEFS (OUR SUPPLY CHABYS STRIYGEST LINK
if you are not the addressee, pleasa inform us iImmedialely that you

hava received this e-maif by mistake. and delete it, We thank you for
your support.



From: MiCan AIEA

Ta: Daamea, AR (7131 (EXT)
Cez Aw-Cube, Mebamemad £713)
Subject: RE! Jagdesp Sa0gha Transpiit Inc.
Dazet My 79, 2025 2:04:19 P4
Attachments: [magel03.ong

Imagal0s.prq

No so far8701 is not there. Thanks for the update on the other, The decals they are pusting on the trucks have “typed” VINs. it is not looking good hera,

COLLECTIONS

!* MID-CANADA

From: Daamsa, Ali {713} (EXT) <alt.deamsa@daimiertruck.com>

Sent: May 29, 2025 1:03 PM

Ta: MidCan Admin <admin@imidean.ca>

Ce: Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713} <mohammad.abu-qube@daimtertruck.com>
Suhbject; RE: Jagdaep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hi Jenn,
|s 8701 one of the units that's on site?
18703 is not one of ours.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporatlon
2688 Matheson Bivd, East, Suite 202
Mississaugae, ON LAW 0AS

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-002-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimfertruck.com
. ., N
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Fram: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan.ca>

Sent: May 29, 2025 1:56 PM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713} (EXT) <gli.daamsa@daimlertruck.com>

Ce: Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713} <moha - ckcom>
Subject: RE: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hi guys, | know UL8701 is coming up to seize tomorrow....we are in their yard and they are stripping decats from a lot of equipmant. UL8703 is one unit. We are
documenting but | think if thara is anything you want grabbed that is grey area we might want to consider it. The owner has left town and the end Is near for this
company. Let me know - we are documenting anything on site.

X
¥ MID-CANADA
; COLLECTIONS
D e

Sent: May 23, 2025 7:37 AM

To: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan.ca>

€e: Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mghgmmad.abu-gqube@daimiertruck.com:
Subject: Re: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hilenn,

Custorner has not mads any new payments.

HOLDS:

6002114719 3 SOOI T laadeap Sangha Transporting,

65002047470 lagdeap Sangha Transport Inc.

FA02028248: P o ' <t apdeep Sangha Transport inc::

5002125321 Jagdeep Sangha Transpert Inc.

6002129162 - Lo lsgdesp Sanghe Transportine, L T e D T

Let me know if you: need anything from my side.



Thank you!

Sinceraly,
Afi Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporatlen
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON E4W 0AS

Tk 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: B33-902-3858

Emaik: ali.dsamsa@dzimleriuck.com
Y imler-truckfinancial

4@, i DAIMLER TRUGK
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Fraem: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan ca>

Sent: Friday, May 23, 2025 8:27 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713} {EXT} <alidaamsa @daimiertruck.coms

Cc: Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713} <mchammad.abu-gube@daimlertruck.com>
Subject: RE: Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hi All, we are hitting Sangha’s yard this morning before the loads roll out for the weekend. | just wanted to make sure nothing else is coming off hoid?

K

& J] Yin:canapa

From: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT} <all.daamsa@daimlertruck com>

Sent: May 21, 2025 1:33 PM

Ta: MidCan Admin <gdmin@midcan.ca>

€e: Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mehammad.abu-gube@daimiertruck corm>
Subject; Jagdeep Sangha Transport nc,

Impartance; High

Hi jenn,

This email just serves as an update to where we’re at eurrently regarding these files:

5002122745 : Jagdeep Sangha Transport fnc.. - g 435,520.37 :CONTINUE SEIZURE
5002105956 - - - -Jagdeep Sangha Transportbne, 0480 10 821,430,081 CONTINUE SEIZURE. -
5002141253:: . -Jagdeep Sangha Transportitne., 27 1.~ H$16,34%20. 0 o CONTINUE SEIZURE = S X 8
S002121629: '~ ' ° Jagdeep Samgha Transport[ne.. - 235 - 812,426,88 .CONTINUE SEIZURE B Dt
5002116518 - - Jagdeep Sangha Transport e, 8705 2 800,768,571 - 7 CONTINUE SEIZURE. - B
5002101491 - - . Jagdeep Sangha Transporklac, 16, - . . : 47,330,86 . . -CONTINUE SEJZURE =/

TR e e ‘oiiin o FINAL NOTICE REISSUED - WILL REOPEN FILE (N 10.DAYS IF PAST-DUE 1S NOT.
5002114719 .: - ... Jagdeap Sangha Transpoitine: .5 L $5,625.78 - SATISFIED, :
5002047470 Jagdeep Sangha Transpart inc. & 5377.02 UP TO DATE - DO NOT SEIZE
5002028248 ' - ‘lagdeep Sangha Transportinc. 8 ¢ 5000 " UP TO DATE - DO NOT 3EIZE
5002125321 Jagdeep Sangha Transport inc. 0 $0.00 UP TO DATE - DO NDT SEIZE
5002129162 * . "Jagdeéep Sangha Transpartinc.. . < 0 $2.00 - -~ - UPTD DATE- DO ROT SEZE - -

Regarding our insurance matters,

| wilt reach out to MPI regarding the two units mentioned above and wiil inquire about the potatoes. I'll keep you posted but as you said, it's difficuit managing araund insurance.

Please let me know if you get anything fram your side. | intend to foliow up with MPI tomorrow anc will keep you posted. Also, ¥ vou couid confirm whish units are at vour yard

and which ons is at their vard still from the bwo totai-loss unils?

Wiit check for pings to follow. Please advise if | did not address something regarding this file.
Thank youl

Sincerely,

Ali Daamsa

Fleet Analyst

Dalmfer Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

2680 tMatheson Blvd, East, Suite 202

Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102



Fax: 833-907-3858
Email: ali.daamsa@daimiertruck.com
P financs

4@* | DAIMLER TRUCK
Bl

Fingncigh Sarvicnz

Frem: MidCan Admin <admin@@midean ca>

Sent: pMay 21, 2025 9:31 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713} (EXT} <ali.daamsa@daimler ruck.com>
Subject: RE: BAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

i can try to see if | can get anywhere. Insurance companies can be difficult

1 will let you know if | can get anywhare with this.

COLLECTIONS

E & || MID-CANADA

From: Daamsa, Alt (713) {EXT) <all.daamsa@dairalectouck com»
Sent! May 21, 2025 8:25 AM

Ta¢ MidCan Admin <prmin@midean,ca>

Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hi Jenn,

t agree, might be good to get Insurance invotved. { can reach out to MPt the same time about this load and let you know.
Not sure if you have connections at MPI that might speed up the response time?
tet ma know,

Thank you!

Sincerely,

Ali Daamsa

Fleet Anslyst

Daimier Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation

2680 Matheson Bivd. East, Suite 262

Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Fal: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-202-3858

Email: ali.daamsa@daimiertruck.com

ler-truckfin

4@; g DAIMLER TRUCK

Elrancist Sevvizon

From: MidCan Admin <admin@miccan.ca>

Sent: May 21, 2025 5:25 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713} [EXT) <alidasmsa@daimledruck coms>

Cc: Abu-Cube, Mohzmmad [713) <mohammad.abu-gtbe@dainetrck roms>
Subject: RE; DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc,

Agreed, | wouid just like the insurance company involved. They could potentialiy still salvage same of this load. [ haven't looked at the product but seed potatoes are
quite hardy and we have kept them refrigerated this whole time.

COLLECTIONS

!* MID-CANADA

Frem: Daamsa, All {713) (EXT) <alidastmsa@daimiertruck.com:

Sent: May 21, 2025 8:13 AM

Ta: MidCan Admin <admin® midcan.ca>

Ces Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mohammad.abu-gube@daigiecruck.coms>
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

Hi Jenn,
1 belleve best step would be to dispese since Im stre the potatoes have gone bad by now.
Let me know what you: think,

Thanks.



Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Ffeet Anatyst

Dalmler Truck Financlal Services Canada Corperatlon
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A5

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax: 833-902-3858
Email: ali.daamsa@daindartreck com

4@% ; DAIMLER TRUCK

firancisf Seevigns

From: MidCan Admin <admin@mican,ca»
Sent: May 20, 2025 4:21 PM

To: Daamsa, All (713) (EXT} <ali.daamsa@daimiertiuck coms>
Subject: RE: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport fac.

Hey Ali, just to follow up here, we hava NOT heard anything In regard to this icad. Do you think we should reach out to insurance and/or their customer? | can only
imagine the wild stories they have been told!

K

E ,* E MID-CANADA
COLLECTIONS

From: Daamsa, Ali (713) (EXT) <plidaamsa@daimiertruck.com>

Sent: May 15, 2025 4:30 PM

To: Accounting <accountine@jsanghatransoott.coyny>; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@isal >
Suhbject: DAIMLER - Jagdeep Sangha Transport tnc.

Importance: High

Hello,
We have been advised by our balliff that you have not retrieved your lead from their location for traifer VIN# 25HSR532XPS002 125 which is loaded with potatoes,

You have been provided time to arrange a pick-up of this load since May 5™ 2025. We request once again that you centact our bailiff 1o arrange the pick-up of the load by
Friday May 16", 2025, Cthenwise, this load wili be considered abandoned, and we will need to dispose.

The bailiff has been generous encugh to accommodate a drop off /cross dock within their area. Otherwise, it's your responsibility to pick up this load.

It has been mentioned on muitiple occasions that we wiil not be releasing any seized units unless full payout + batllff fees are recelved for those units. Qur stance
regarding this wiil nct and has not changed. Although, we are not holding the load and have offered opticns to pick-up / drop-off.

Here are your updated delinquencies to be addressed:

5002122745 s 35,350.21
5002105956 ] 21.431.00
5002121629 _6,364.99
5002141253 16,312.20
5002116518 j 10,768.57
5002101491 $ 7,330.86
[ 5 57,557.91

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Ali Daamsa

Fleet Anaiyst

Dalmier Truck Financial Services Carada Cerporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W CAS

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-902-3858

Email: alidasmsa@daimiertruck.com
o ler fi :

40‘3 i DAIMELER TRUCK
o

Firanelel Sarvices

From: Accounting <gccounting@jsanghatransoort.com>
Sent: May 15, 2025 11:56 AM
To: Daamsa, Al {713) (EXT) <alidasmsa@daimlertruck cam>; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakbwir@jsanghatracsport.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mohammad.abu-gube@daimlzciruck come>



Ce: Manwal, Manoj «<mmanwal@premiertruck.coms; lakhasangha@yahoo.com
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hi thara,

This is our hismbia raquest to you that plaase release our truck and trailers which are uadsr paid/ clear accounts also which are loadad trailers, as we must deliver those
shipments tc the custemer to release our held funds.

Thank you.

Erom: Daamsa, Ali [713) (EXT) <ali,dazmsa@daimlertruck.com>

Sent: May 15, 2025 10:03 AM

To: Accounting <accountine@isanghatransport.come; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@jsenahatransoorteoms; Abu-Qube, Mahammad (713) <mol c.abu-nihe@daimlertiuck com>
Ce: Manwal,Mangj <mmanwal@ premierouck com>; lakhasansha@yahoo.com

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAMLER PAYMENTS

Hello,
The mentioned file (5002028248 has been pfaced on hold as we have received the payment of $1,285.34,
Thank you.

Sincerely,
Al Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Dalmier Truck Financlal Services Canada Corporation
2686 Mathesan Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, OM L4W 0AS

Tel: 877-275-1151 ext. 0102

Fax: 833-902-3658

Email: gil.dagmsa@daimlertruck.com
=

495 i DAIMLER TRUCK
1

Financied Services

From: Accounting <acrounting(@]sa) transport.come
Sent: May 15, 2025 10:52 AM

To: Daamsa, Ali (713} (EXT) <alidaamsa@ daimlertruck.com>; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@jsanghateansnort.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mehammead sbu-qube@dalmlertruck com>
Cat Manwal,Manoj <mmamval@premiertruck.cora>; lakhasapeha@yahoo.com
Sirbject: RE; REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS
lagdeap Sangh_a Transport
5002028248 Inc. 34 $1,285.34

Hithsrs,

Please advise us to have you recaived $1286.34 payment sant oa 13 may by wire.

Thank yeu,

From: Accounting
Sent: May 13, 2025 3:39 PM

To: Daamsa, Al {713) (EXT) <all.daainsa@daimleptouck.come; takhvir Sangha < yir [ ansport.come; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mohammad.abu-qube@dairaiertruck com>
ez Manwal,Manej <mmanwali@oremiertruck come; lakhasangha@vahop com

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS
Hi there,

Please find the attached payment.

Authorize - Payment Reaults

Tetai Submitted: 1

Total Successtully Refeased to Bank: 1

Total Requiring Further Authonzesions a

Submitted an: 4}3}05.’1025 1437 PM ET
foyment . monshiciary's uam T e n';t'e: L Pt
Accepted DAIMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL 05/13/2025 1,285.34 CAG |

SERVICES CA

From: Daamsa, All (713) (EXT) <alidaamsa@daimieiuck.com>
Sent: May 13, 2025 10:55 AM



To Accounting <accounting@isanghatransport.com>; Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@isanehatransport.com>; Abu-Qube, Mobammad {713) <mohammad.abu-qube@daimtertruck.coms
Ce: Manwal,Manof <mimanyal@ premiertruck coms; [akbasgnaha®@yahoo.com
Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hello,
Your payment on 05 /08/2025 has retumed due to stopped payment, against your claim that it has been Bfted with your bank, which increased the definquency to $4,321.48.

You have rot yet lifted your stop-payment and payments continue te returmn despite multiple requests. If any payments contlnua to return sn accounts brought-up-to-date, baifif
will resume efforts on those past-due files.

This Is unacceptable and a centinucus breach of your gigned contract.
Again, no seized trallers/trecks will be released unlass the full payout and fees are paid for that unit.
Thank you.

Sincerely,
Ali Daamsa
Fleet Analyst

Daimier Truck Financlal Services Canada Corporation
2680 Matheson Blvd, East, Suite 202
Missigsauga, ON L4W QA5

Teh 877-275-1151 ext. 0192

Fax; B33-902-3858

Email: alidaamsa@daimleriruck.com
imles-truckfingnci

49% i DAIMLER TRUCK

Financisl Sasvicts

Frem: Accounting <pscounting@jsanghatransport.com

Sent: May 13, 2025 11:33 AM

To: Dasmsa, Ali {713} {EXT) <ailiaanisa @datmiertruck.com>; Lakhwir Sangha < akbvir@jsangbatransport.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mohammad abt-oube @daimlerrick.conm
Ce: MidCan Admin <admin@midean.cax; Manwal, Manof <nmanwal@premiednyck.com>; lakbasangha@yahon.com

Subject: RE; REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS
Hi there,
Pleass advise us ragarding this amount $1285,34 as ysstarday we have cleared all balance of $2213.44.

Thanks.

From: Daamsa, Ali {713) (EXT) <alidaamsa@daimlertruck coms>
Sent: May 13, 2025 9:16 AM

To: Actounting <accounting@isanenatransport.com>; Lakhwvir Sangha <Lakhvir@isanshalransoor.com>; Abu-Qube, Mohammad {713) <mohammad.abu-qube@daimlerinick.com>
Ce: MidCan Admin <admin@midcan ca>; Manwal,Manej <mmanwal@premietrick com>; lakhasangha@yaiioo com

Suhject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS
Importance: High

Heilo,

Pleage be advised, we have received the wire transfer of $37,221.94 and are applying the amounts to your accounts.

Kindly see your remaining past-due balances not including bailiff-fee's:

. Jagdeep Sangha Transport | o
5002122745 LA i 66 . $42,413.9%
Jagdeep Sangha Transport
5002105556 fnc. 40 $20,920.82
. Jagdeep Sangha Transport . . .
S002141252 ne. . 19 . $18,122.69
Jagdeep Sapgha Transport
5002121629 e, 27 $12,729.97
: ) Jagdeep Sangha Transport . R
SO02028248 tc. L £V $1,285.34
] 405,472,81

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
Mississauga, ON L4W 045



Tel 877-275-1151 ext. 0102
Fax: 833-902-36858
Emaii: alidaamsa@daimferiruck.com

4@;’ ! DAIMLER TRUCK

2 E fmencizi Services

From: Accounting <agcounting@isanghatransport. coms
Sent: May 12, 2025 4:13 PM

Tot Lakbvir Sangha <takhvir@isanghotransport.com>; Daamsa, Al {713) {EXT) <allsaamsa@daimlertruck come; Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713) <mohammad.abu cube@datmleriiuck.com>
€c: MidCan Admin <agdmin@midcan.ca>; Manwal, Menoj <mmanwal@premierteuck.comy; lakhasangha@yahao.com

Subject: RE: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hithere,
Please find the attachad paymant confirmation of wire, $37,221.94 has been dona as per for the following account numbars. Now pleass release our triick and trailess,

5002126321- $12941,48
50027114719-$11814.14
5002047470 - § 8430.18
5002028248- $2213.44
50021166148 -$489.48
5602101491- $333.22

Thank you.

From: Lakhvir Sangha <Lakhvir@isanghatranspart.com>

Sent: iiay 12, 2025 10:56 AM

To: all daainsa@daimlertnck com; mohammad.abu-gube@daimlertrick.com

€ex MidCan Admin <admin@midran.ca>; Accounting <accountipgi®isanehairanspart.com>
Subject: REGARDING DAIMLER PAYMENTS

Hi there,
This is to inform you that teday we wilt make paymaents of foflowing aceount numbers by wire payment and will send you proof as well.

5002125321- § 12941.48
5002114719- $11814.14
5002047479 - $9430,18
5002028248- $2213.44
5002118518 -$489.48
5002701491- $333.22

Thank you.

Lakhvir Singh Sangha

Director/ lagdeep sangha Transport inc.

387 Goidenrod Drive Road, Rosser, MB, ROC 3A0, Canada
C: (204-615-2637)*2 Phone #204-298-1721

fie5 CTPAT

WR N
N\ RSN/ YOUR SUPPLY CHAIN'S STRONGEST LINIL

If you are nol the addrassee, please inform us immadiataly thal you
have received (Nis e-mail by Aistake, and delete it. We thank you for
your support.



From: MigCan Admin

To: Daamsa, All (713) (EXT); Abu-Qube, Mohammad (713)
Subject: JAGDEEP SANGHA UPDATE FW: Ne3047
Date: May 29, 2025 2:11:41 PM

Hi Ali, see attached. When we asked about taking this stripped unit, they said they
bought it back from the auction. They provided this document to our bailiff. | think you

might be interested in this document.

Jenn




Fram: Baamsa, Al (713) (EXT) <gildearmiag
Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2025 2:21 PM

Ta: Tom Waters < LSRR
Ca: MidCan Admin <adminidmidean.ca>
Subject: {{DAIMLER TRUCK FINANICAL SERVICES CAMADA - JAGDEEP SANGHA TRANSPORT
¥mportance: High

§ : _GA_{J:TIGN_':' This emall criginated from outside the arganizatian, De'not tlick nks o 6pen attachments uniess you recogniza the sender and l_ninw.the .oén.liai'_l.i is safe
Hedlo Tom,
| hope you're weil,

} am: zssigning this file to your team on behalf of Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada, This debier is currently out for seizure in Canada. Although, we have focated 3 in the United States
as of today,

Please find the attached packages, alongside locatlons Lo attend urgently beiow for the 3 ViNs.

t have included our Canadian bailiff's Mid-Canada Collections in this thread for support if required. As wefl, their team will be handling transportation back to Canada once seizures are
complatad.

Note, thase units may nol be operating under the degals of ‘Jagdeep Sangha Transpert’ as they were caught stripping them in Ganada. if you come acress any units that you believe belong
t0 the debtar cther than the assigned, kindly let me know of these VINS to check on our side.

Please advise on urgent attendance piease. Locations belew.

5002514719 - Jagdecp Sangha Transportine. ~ JAKIHHDRIPSULS701 - Frelghtliner / FT1268LP /2023,

The VIN(s] abave is currently located @ 400 W Troy Ave, Indlanapalls, IN 46225, United States,

5002122746 lagdaen Sa:ngha_‘[ransp_urt Inc. .. 25HSR5328PS002057 ' CIMG Gaol Glohe / CRAG0OB / 2023 -
5002125321 “Jagdeap Sangha Transportine, - ‘AKIHHDRZRSUUS214 - Freightliner /#T126SLP 7 2024 -

The ViN{s) above is currently located @ 2301 N Hawthorne Ln BLOG 1, Indianapolls, IN 442 £8, United States



Thank you,

Sincersly,
Ali Daamsa
Fleat Analyst

Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Gorporation
2680 Matheson Blvd. Easl, Sidte 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0A3

Tel: 877-275-1151 exnt. 3102

Fax; 8339023634

£mail: alldaamsa@daimlertryck.com
wonw daimler-tuckfinancizica

40; DAIMLER TRUCK

Eirannizl Servivns

N UG IMInRdint: by 1, W Tk oty

i you sre oot s adoressen. pless hat vou: havs recsived [his e-maii by mizlaks, and d EHELN




This is Exhibit “N” referred to in the affidavit of
Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn before me,
this IS day of September, 2025.

= -

"""" wa . . d .
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Transaction Number; APP-A10856392679
Report Generated on July 31, 2025, 10:54

Ministry of Public and

Ontario @ Business Service Delivery

Profile Report

1000509184 ONTARIO INC, as of july 31, 2025

Act Business Corporations Act

Type Ontaric Business Corporation

Name 1000559184 ONTARIO INC.

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN) 1000599184

Governing Jurisdiction Canada - Ontario

Status Active

Date of Incorporation July 18, 2023

Registered or Head Office Address 29 Sister Oreilly Rd, Brampton, Ontario, 1.6P 4C6, Canada

Certified a trie copy of the record of the Ministry of Pubfic and Business Service Delivery.

V. Ruindoaiukio W)

Director/Reglstrar

This repsart sets aut the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fillngs
and recerded In the eiectronic recards maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronic records maéntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report,
Additiona! histarical information may exist in paper or micrefiche format,
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Minimum Number of Directors
Maximum Number of Directors

Active Director(s)
Name

Address for Service
Resident Canadian
Date Began

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

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Publlc and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quindonibie W -

Director/Registrar

Transaction Number: APP-A10856392679
Report Generated on July 31, 2025, 10:54

AMANDEEP KAUR BRAR

22 Squire Ellis Dy, Brampton, Ontario, L6P4C1, Canada
Yes

July 31, 2023

JAGDEEP SINGH BRAR

22 Squire Ellis Dy, Brampton, Ontario, L6P4C1, Canada
Yes

July 18, 2023

JASWINDER SINGH KHOSA

69 Newpart St, Brampton, Ontario, L55 4N1, Canada
Yes

August 21, 2023

CHAMKAUR SINGH SIDHU

29 Sister Oreilly Rd, Brampton, Ontaric, L6P4C6, Canada
Yes

July 18, 2023

RAJDEEP KAUR SIDHU

26 Sister Oreilly Rd, Brampton, Ontario, L6P4C6, Canada
Yes

July 31, 2023

This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after june 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and Aprit 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recerded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and tme the report is generated, uniess the report Is generated for a pravious date, If this reportis generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent informatlon filed and racorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up te the "as of” date indicated on the report,

Additicnat histarical information may exist in paper or microfiche format,

Page 2 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10856392679
Report Generated on July 31, 2025, 10:54

Active Officer(s)
There are no active Officers currently on fite for this corporation.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

. - i
V. QuinToainlda )
Director/Registrar
This repart sets out the most recent information filed on ar after Juna 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1594 in respect of Business Mames Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded in the electranic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the repert is generated, uniess the report is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for & previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recarded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the "as of” date indlcated on the report,
Additional historical information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10856392679
Report Generated on july 31, 2025, 10:54

Corporate Name History
Name 1000559184 ONTARIO INC.

Effective Date July 18, 2023

Certlfied a true copy of the racord of the Ministry of Public and Businass Service Delivery,

Diractor/Registrar

This report sets aut the mast recent information filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and Gme the report Is generated, upless the report is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a pravious date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report.
Additional historical information may exist in paper er micrefiche format,
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Transaction Number; APP-A10856392679
Report Generated on July 31, 2025, 10:54

Active Business Names
This corporation does not have any active business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certified a true copy of the recard of the Ministry of Pubfic and Business Service Delivery,

. RS
V. Quinfoilbs- ) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the mast recent Information filed an or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1984 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fiings
and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is ganerated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. if this report Is generated
for a pravious date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry up to the "as of" date indicated on the repoft.
Additional historical information may exist In paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10856392679
Report Generated on July 31, 2025, 10:54

Expired or Cancelled Business Names
This corporation does not have any expired or cancelled business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dalivery,

- Y
V. Buindonin do ) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information fiied on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of carporations and April 3, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generaied, unless the report is generated for a previcus date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Infermation filed and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the "as of” date indicated on the repert.
Additienal historical infermation may exist in paper ar microfiche format,
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Transaction Number: APP-A10856392679
Report Generated on July 31, 2025, 10:54

Document List
Filing Name Effective Date

CIA - Notice of Change September 15, 2023
PAF: RAIDEEP KAUR SIDHU

CIA - Initial Return August 02, 2023
PAF; CHAMKAUR SINGH SIDHU

BCA - Articles of Incorporation July 18, 2023

All "PAF” {persan authorizing filing) information is displayed exactly as recorded in the Ontario Business Registry, Where PAF is
not shown against a decument, the information has not been recorded in the Ontario Business Registry.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

. -k
V. Quindoailbe-U0
Director/Registrar
This raport sets out the most recent Infermation filed en or after June 27, 1992 In respect of carporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Adt filings
and racorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and thme the report Is generated, upless the report is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recerded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated en the report.
Additional historical information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
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Court No,: CV-25-00002630-0000

NOTICE AND STATEMENT OF THE RECEIVER
(SUBSECTION 245(1) AND 246(1) OF THE ACT)

IN THE MATTER OF THE RECEIVERSHIP OF
1000599184 ONTARIO INC,

Take notice that;

L. Pursuant to an order of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (the “Court™) dated
August 5, 2025 (the “Receivership Order”), The Fuller Landau Group Inc, (“FLG”)
was appointed receiver (the “Receiver”), without security, of all of the assets,
undertakings and properties (the “Property”) of 1000599184 Ontatic Inc. (“Debtoxr”
or the “Company™) acquired for, or used in relation to a business carried on by the
Company.

2. The Company’s principal asset is an approximately 4.5-acre parcel of land
municipally known as 2868 and 2870 Bovaird Drive, Brampton Ontario (the “Real
Property”). The Recetver is working to obtain further information with respect to the
Company and the Real Property.

3. The following information relates to the receivership of the Company:
(a) Head Office: 2868 Bovaird Drive, Brampton, ON,
{b) Business Location: 2868 Bovaird Drive, Brampton, ON,
(c) Principal ling of business: Owner of Real Property

;-1. Secured Creditors

The Company’s known secured creditors are:

i) Business Development Bank of Canada (BDC), in respect of a first-priovity
mortgage on the Real Properly in the principal amount of $7.5 million
registered on Auvgust 22, 2023;

ii) Jagjit Singh and Harbhinder Kahlon, in respect of a 2nd-priority mortgage on
the Real Property in the principal amount of $485,000 registered on November
3, 2023 as Instrument No. PR42697835; and

iif}  Bovaird Properties in favour of Jagjit Singh, in respect of a 3rd-priority
mortgage on the Real Property in the principal amount of $175,000 registered
on August 16, 2024 as Instrument No. PR4355791,

NOTE: No security opinion/review has been completed by the Receiver’s counsel as of the
date of this notice.



5. Other Creditors

At this time, the Receiver has not been advised by the Company’s shareholders or
Directors of the unsecured creditors. No books and records nor bank accounts
maintained by the Company have been provided to the Receiver. If the Receiver
becomes aware of any additional unsecured creditors, it will provide a copy of this
notice to those parties.

This notice will also be posted on the Receiver’s case website at:

https://fullerilp.com/active _engagements/1000599184 Ontario Inc./

6. Estimated Realization and Sale Process

The principal purpose of the receivership proceedings is to identify, secure and realize
on the Real Property. The Receiver intends to market and sell the Real Property
through a real estate broker, Any transaction for the Real Property will be subject to
Court approval. The outcome of the realization process will determine the amount
available for distribution to the Company’s creditors.

7. Contact person for the Receiver
Name: David Filice
Telephone No.: (416) 645-6506
Fax No.: (416) 645-6501
Email address: dfilice@fullerilp.com

Dated at Toronto, Ontario, this 18" day of August, 2025.

The Fuller Landau Group Inc.

Solely in its Capacity as Court appointed Receiver of
1000599184 Ontario Inc.

And not in its Personal Capacity

Per:

et N

David Filice
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Electronically lssued / Délivré par vola électronique : 15-Jul-2025 Court File No./N° du dossier du greffe : CV-25-00003788-0000
Brampton Superior Court of Justics / Cour suparleura de [ustice
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™ Court File No.

R S ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

BETWEEN:

JAGDEEP SANGHA TRANSFPORT INC.
Plaintiff

-and -

DAIMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL SERVICES CANADA CORPORATION
Defendant

STATEMENT OF CLAIM

TO THE DEFENDANT:

A LEGAL PROCEEDING HAS BEEN COMMENCED AGAINST YOU by the plaintiff,
The claim made against you is set out in the following pages.

IF YOU WISH TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, you or an Ontario lawyer acting for
you must prepare a statement of defence in Form 18A prescribed by the Rules of Civil Procedure,
serve it on the plaintiff’s lawyer or, where the plaintiff does not have a lawyer, serve it on the
plaintiff, and file it, with proof of service in this court office, WITHIN TWENTY DAYS after this

statement of claim is served on you, if you are served in Ontario,

If you are served in another province or territory of Canada or in the United States of
America, the period for serving and filing your statement of defence is forty days. If you are served
outside Canada and the United States of America, the period is sixty days.

Instead of serving and filing a statement of defence, you may serve and file a notice of intent
to defend in Form 18B prescribed by the Rules of Civil Procedure, This will entitle you to ten more
days within which to serve and file your statement of defence.

IF YOU FAIL TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, JUDGMENT MAY BE GIVEN
AGAINST YOU IN YOUR ABSENCE AND WITHOUT FURTHER NOTICE TO YOU. IF
YOU WISH TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING BUT ARE UNABLE TO PAY LEGAL FEES,



Elsctranically issuad / Délivé par voje élacironigue ; 15-Jul-2025 Court File No./N° du dossier du greffe : CV-25-00003788-0000
Brampton Superior Court of Justlcs / Cour supérieure de jusiice

LEGAL AID MAY BE AVAILABLE TO YOU BY CONTACTING A LOCAL LEGAL AID
OFFICE.

TAKE NOTICE: THIS ACTION WILL AUTOMATICALLY BE DISMISSED if it has not

been set down for trial or terminated by any means within five years after the action was
commenced unless otherwise ordered by the court.

[ssued By:

Local registrar

Address of court offics: 7755 Hurontario St.
Brampton, Ontario L6W 4T1

TO: DAIMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL SERVICES CANADA CORPORATION
2680 Matheson Blvd. East, Suite 202
Mississauga, ON L4W 0AS



Electronically issued / Délivré par voje électronique : 15-Jul-2025 Court File No./N° du dossier du greffe : CV-25-00003788-0000
Bramplon Siipesior Court of Justice / Gour supérieura de juslice

CLAIM

1. The Plaintiff claims:

(2) An order declaring the repossession of the vehicles to be unlawful;

(b) An order for the immediate return of the vehicles to the Plaintiff;

(c¢) Damages in the amount of $4,300,000,00;

(d) Exemplary and punitive damages in the amount of $700,000.00.

{e) Pre-judgment and post-judgment interest pursuant to the Courts of Justice Act, R.8.0.
1990, c. C. 43, as amended;

(f) Costs of this action on a substantial indemnity basis together with any Harmonized Sales
Tax that may be payable thereon; and,

(g) Such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just.

2. The Plaintiff, Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., is fransportation company operating
throughout Canada and the United States, and regularly conducts business in Ontario,

3. The Defendant, Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation ("Daimler™), is a
corporation registered to carry on business in Ontario, providing commetrcial vehicle
ﬁﬁancing services.

MATERIAL FACTS
4. The Plaintiff entered into nine (9) separate financing agreements with the Defendant for

the purchase financing of the following vehicles:

22 Trailers
Agreement No. VIN Number Sale Price
245781 3H3V532KHNS340030 $ 47,249.00
245781 3H3V532KSNS340029 3 47,249.00
249415 1UYVS2536)2198394 $ 84,850.00
249415 1UYVS2535/2198404 3 B4,600,00
249415 1UYV52534J2369210 $ 84,600.00




Electranically issusd / Délivré p ar vaia élaclrcniqlue 18-Jul-2025 Court File No./N° du dossier du greffe : CV-25-00003788-0000
Brampton Supaerlor Court of Ju s ce / Cour supérieure de Justice

248415 1UYVS253042369270 $ 85,000.00
307836 25HSR5320PS002063 $ 113,512.00
307838 28HSR5328PS002057 $ 113,013.00
3078386 25HSR5323PS002077 $ 113,013.00
307836 25HSR5329PS002083 $ 113,013.00
307836 25HSR5320PS002084 $ 113,013.00
307836 25HSRE32XPS002125 $ 113,013.00
348326 3H3V533CoMT714011 $ £84,000.00
348326 3H3VE33COMT714009 $ 84,000.00
348326 1UYVS3534M2014242 $ 84,000.00
348326 1UYVS3539M2014236 $ 84,000,00
348326 3H3V533CE5MT714008 $ 84,000.60
348326 1UYVS3535M2614234 $ 84,000.00
348326 1UYV33536M2014243 & 84,000.00
348326 1UYVS3537M2014235 $ 84,000.00
348326 3H3V533C7MT714007 $ 84,000,00
348326 3H3V533C0MT714012 $ 84,000,00
10 Trucks

297543 SAKIHHDROPSULE705 $ 227,437.00
297543 3AKIHHDROPSULA706 $ 297,437.00
307983 3AKIHHDR3RSUUS214 | & 238,973.00
307083 3AKIHHDRSRSUUSB21S | $ 238,973.00
293513 3AKIHHDRXPSULB700 $ 225,436.50
203513 . BAKIHHDR1PSUE8701 $ 2285,436.50
314995 3AKJHHDR7RSUUS216 | § 239,878.00
314985 3AKJIHHDRSRSUUSB217 | § 240,377.00
348326 BAKIHHDRXRSUV3538 | & 236,533.00
348326 3AKIHHDR1RSUV3532 $ 237,032.00

Taotal: | $ 4,288,738.00

5. Each agreement required the Plaintiff to make regular financing payments, which the
Plaintiff consistently did in full and on time.

6. Towards the end of April 2025, the Defendant started to unlawfully repossess the above
vehicles from multiple locations where the plaintiff carries out business operations. This

was done without proper notice, justification, or default on the part of the Plaintiff.



Elscironically issuad / Délivré par vole dlactronique : 15-Jul-2025 Court File No./N°® du dossier du greffe : CV-25-00003788-0000
Brampton Stperior Caurt of Juatics / Cour supérieure de justice

7. Atall material times, the Plaintiff was not in default under any of the financing agreements.

The Plaintiff continued to meet 4ll its finaneial obligations under the confracts.
UNLAWEUL REPOSSESSION

8. The Defendant’s actions in repossessing the vehicles were wrongful, high-handed, and in
breach of the express and implied terms of the financing agreements,

9. The repossession occurred without lawful authority, without notice or warning to the
Plaintiff, and without providing an opportunity to cure any alleged breach——none of which
existed.

10. As a direct result, the Plaintiff lost access to essential vehicles necessary for its transport
operations, suffered cancellation of shipping contracts, and experienced significant
disruption to its business.

UNJUST ENRICHMENT

11. The Defendant has been unjustly enriched by retaining possession of the Plaintiff’s
vehicles while continuing to hold the benefit of payments made under the agreements.

12, There was no juristic reason for the Defendant to repossess the vehicles or to retain any
benefit therefrom, as the Plaintiff was not in breach of the agreements.

13. The Plaintiff has suffered corresponding deprivation, as it lost the use of the vehicles while
continuing to suffer the consequences of Daimler’s wrongful conduct,

DAMAGES

14. As a result of the Defendant’s actions, the Plaintiff has suffered loss of revenue, damage to
its business reputation, and loss of contractual relationships with clients who relied on
timely freight delivery.

15. The Plaintiff pleads that the Defendant’s conduct was reckless, willfil, and in bad faith,

and secks punitive damages to deter such conduct and hold the Defendant accountabie.
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16. As a further result of the Defendant’s breach, the Plaintiff has suffered damages and
continues to incur financial losses due to the absence of indemnification.
17. The Plaintiff pleads and relies upon the following statutes, as amended:
(a) Personal Property Security Act, RSO 1990, ¢. P.10; and,
(b) Fraudulent Conveyances Act, RSO 1990, c. F.29; and,
(c) Interest Act, RSC 1985, c. k-15; and,
(d) Sale of Goods Act, RSO 1990, c. 5.1
(b) Courts of Justice Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. C. 43.
18, The Plaintiff proposes that this action be tried at the City of Brampton, in the Province of

Ontario.

Date: July 15, 2025 A&M Lawyers Professional
Corporation

13-7050A Bramalea Road
Mississauga, ON L5S IT1

MARRYAM SINGH
LSO. 83399P

T: 416-635-1105

F: 416-901-8125

E: marryam@amlawyers.ca

Lawyer for the Plaintiff
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Court File No. CV-25-00003788-0000

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

BETWEEN:
JAGDEEP SANGHA TRANSPORT INC.

Plaintiff
and
DAIMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL SERVICES CANADA CORPORATION
Defendant

AND BETWEEN:

DAIMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL SERVICES CANADA CORPORATION
Plaintiff by Counterclaim
and

JAGDEEP SANGHA TRANSPORT INC. and LAKHVIR SANGHA

Defendants by Counterclaim

STATEMENT OF DEFENCE AND COUNTERCLAIM

TO THE DEFENDANTY(S) TO THE COUNTERCLAIM

A LEGAL PROCEEDING has been commenced against you by way of a Counterclaim in
an action in this Court. The Claim made against you is set out in the following pages.

IF YOU WISH TO DEFEND THIS COUNTERCLAIM, you or an Ontario lawyer acting
for you must prepare a Defence to Counterclaim in Form 27C prescribed by the Rules of Civil
Procedure, serve it on the Plaintiff by counterclaim’s lawyer or, where the Plaintiff by
Counterclaim does not have a lawyer, serve it on the Plaintiff by Counterclaim, and file it, with



2-

proof of service, in this Court, WITHIN TWENTY DAYS after this Statement of Defence and
Counterclaim is served on you.

If you are not already a party to the main action and you are served in another province or
territory of Canada or in the United States of America, the period for serving and filing your
defence is forty days. If you are served outside Canada and the United States of America, the
period is sixty days.

If you are not already a party to the main action, instead of serving and filing a Defence to
Counterclaim, you may serve and file a Notice of Intent to Defend in Form 18B prescribed by the
Rules of Civil Procedure. This will entitle you to ten more days within which to serve and file
your defence to Counterclaim.

IF YOU FAIL TO DEFEND THIS COUNTERCLAIM, JUDGMENT MAY BE GIVEN
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

Date Issued by

Local Registrar

Address of  Superior Court of Justice
court office: 7755 Hurontario Street
Brampton ON L6W 4T1

TO: A&M LAWYERS PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
13 -7050A Bramalea Road
Mississauga, ON L5S 1T1

Marryam Singh

LSO # 83399P

Tel:  (416) 635-1105
marrvam{@anmlawyers.ca

Lawyers for the Plaintiff/Defendant by Counterclaim, Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.
TO: LAKHVIR SANGHA
23 Wildbrook Bay
Winnipeg, MB R2R 1 W4

Defendant by Counterclaim



3.
STATEMENT OF DEFENCE

l. Unless otherwise expressly admitted to hetein, the Defendant, Daimler Truck Financial
Services Canada Corporation, formerly known as Daimler Truck Financial, a business unit of
Mercedes-Benz Financial Services Canada Corporation, (hereinafter the “Defendant” or “DTF”),

denies each and every allegation made in the Statement of Claim.

2. Contrary to the narrative that the Plaintiff has fabricated in its Statement of Claim, the
Plaintiff defaulted on its loans from the Defendant and, as of August 21, 2025, is indebted to the
Defendant in the amount of $3,443,086.26, plus legal fees, expenses and default interest. As a
result of the Plaintiff’s actions, the Defendant has reasonable grounds to believe its collateral is at
risk and may be dissipating. After the Plaintiff failed to cure its defaults over a period of many
months, the Defendant took steps to enforce its security interest and repossess certain Vehicles
(defined below). All of which was done with proper notice and in accordance with the Defendant’s

rights under its security, and applicable law.

The Parties

3. The Plaintiff/Defendant to the Counterclaim, Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc. (the
“Plaintiff” or “JSTI”) is a corporation incorporated pursuant to the laws of the Province of
Ontario. The Plaintiff was extra-provincially registered in the province of Manitoba on or about
June 1, 2017. Thereafter and at all material times, the Plaintiff carried on business in Manitoba,

with its principal place of business located at 23 Wildbrook Bay, Winnipeg, Manitoba.



-

4, The Defendant to the Counterclaim, Lakhvir Sangha (hereinafter, “Lakhvir”) is a director
and the controlling mind of the Plaintiff, and guaranteed the indebtedness of the Plaintiff to the

Defendant pursuant to a personal guarantee dated April 21, 2021 (hereinafter, the “Guarantee”).

5. The Defendant is an equipment financing corporation carrying on business throughout
Canada, including throughout the provinces of Manitoba and Ontario. The Defendant specializes

in providing financing to owners and operators of commercial trucking equipment.

Background

6. Between August 24, 2021 and July 9, 2024, the Plaintiff entered into eleven (11)
conditional sale contracts (each a “Conditional Sale Contract” and collectively, the “Conditional
Sale Contracts”) pursuant to which the Plaintiff agreed to purchase a total of thirty-nine (39)
commercial trucking vehicles (the “Vehicles”) from either Transolutions Truck Centres Ltd. or

PTG Mississauga Enterprises Limited Partnership (each a “Seller” and together, the “Sellers™).

7. Particulars of the Conditional Sale Contracts entered into by the Plaintifl as purchaser and

the Vehicles acquired thereunder are set out below:

08/24/2021 3H3V532K9NS340029 $105,939.52 5.24%
3H3V532K5NS340030

5002047470 09/14/2021 1UYVS2536J2198394 $473,856.14 5.59%
1UYVS253412369210.
1UYVS2531129%4759
TUYVS253512198404
1UY VS2530J2369270

5002028248

5002101491 02/18/2022 3ARKJHHDRONSNE3043 $625,818.50 5.44%

1 Default interest rate under each of the Conditional Sale Contracts is 18%.



JAKJHHDRXNSNE3052

3AKTJHHDR7INSNE3056

5002105956

05/18/2022

3AIKKTHHDRZINSNE3045
JAKJHHDRENSNE3047
3AKJHHDRSENSNE3(048

$638,119.05

6.6%

5002114719

10/31/2022

3AKJHHDRXPSULS700
3JAKJHHDRI1PSULE701

$562,642.53

7.75%

5002116518

12/20/2022

3JAKJHHDROPSULE705
3AKJHHDROPSUL8706

$610,144.30

7.89%

5002122745

04/23/2023

2S5HSR5320PS002053
2SHSR5328PS002057
2SHSR5323PS002077
2SHSR5329P5002083
2SHSR5320PS002084
2SHSR532XPS002125

$854,878.25

7.49%

5002121629

05/01/2023

3JAKJHHDR3RSUU8214
3AKJHHDRSRSUUS21S

$605,862.74

7.29%

5002125321

07/12/23

3AKJHHDR7RSUUSZ16
3AKIHHDR9RSUUS217

$615,647.31

7.89%

5002129162

09/26/2023

3JAKJHHDRXRSUV3538
JAKJHHDRIRSUV3539

$609,144.77

7.89%

5002141253

07/09/2024

1UYVS3535M2014234
1UYVS3537M2014235
TUYVS3539M2014236
TUYVS3534M2014242
1UYVS3536M2014243
3H3V533C5MT714006
3H3V533CT7TMT714007
3H3V533COMTT714009
3H3VS533COMT714011
3H3V533COMT714012

$1,080,237.95

8.39%

Total

$6,782,291.06

8.

to the Defendant as detailed below:

The terms of the Conditional Sale Contracts require the Plaintiff to make monthly payments




& .' ntr
5002028248 $2,108.04 (except August 2022 which was $6,861.64)
5002047470 $9,430.18 (except January 2022 which was $30,637.68)
5002101491 $9,996.63 (except July 2022 which was $36,017.33)
5002105956 $10,205.28 (except October 2022 which was $36,007.53)
5002114719 $11,251.56 (except March 2023 which was $33,819.21)
5002116518 $9,789.61 (except May 2023 which was $32,557.31)
5002122745 $13,681.93 (except September 2023 which was $47,644.38)
5002121629 $12,123.78 (except September 2023 which was $36,045.08)
5002125321 $12,325.22 (except November 2023 which was $36,361.97)
5002129162 $12,197.51 (except January 2024 which was $35,861.80)
5002141253 $17,303.28 (except November 2024 which was $59,344.43)

9. Contrary to the allegations made in paragraph 4 of the Statement of Claim, the Defendant
did not directly enter into any of the Conditional Sale Contracts with the Plaintiff. Rather, it was
an express term of each of the Conditional Sale Contracts that the Seller’s interest therein may be
assigned to the Defendant. Section 8 of the Conditional Sale Contracts expressly provides that the

term “Seller” shall include assignees of the Seller, including the Defendant.

10,  In accordance with their terms, the Seller’s rights under each of the Conditional Sale
Contracts were assigned to the Defendant on the same date that each Conditional Sale Contract

was entered into.

i1, Pursuant to each of the Conditional Sale Contracts, the Plaintiff agreed to the following

terms and conditions, among others:

(@) to pay the total amounts described in the payment schedule attached to each

Conditional Sale Contract;



(b)

(©)

(d)

O]

(ﬂ

-

interest after default and after maturity and before and after judgment shall be

assessed on the total amount then owing at 18% per year;

the Seller shall have all rights of a secured party under the Personal Property
Security Act in force in any province of Canada, to the extent that such Act applies

o each Conditional Sale Contract;
title to and ownership of the Vehicles shall remain in Seller;

the Seller is granted a security interest in the Vehicles and all proceeds thereof to
secure the payment of the total amounts owing under each Conditional Sale
Contract, enforcement of the Seller’s rights under each Conditional Sale Contract,
all advances made by the Seller for insurance, all charges due to the Seller for
repairs, supplies, parts and storage of the Vehicles, and all other amounts that may

become owing to seller under each Conditional Sale Contract; and

if the Plaintiff shall fail to pay when due any amount payable under each
Conditional Sale Contract or shall default in the performance of any of the
agreements or covenants thereunder, then the total amounts owing under each such
Conditional Sale Contract shall, at Seller’s option, immediately become due and
payable without notice or demand and the Seller may enter any premises of the

Plaintiff and take possession of the Vehicles without notice or demand.

12.  The Defendant perfected its security interest in the Vehicles by way of registration under

the Personal Property Security Act (Manitoba) (“Manitoba PPSA”), the jurisdiction in which the



Vehicles were purchased, and the location of the Sellers and Plaintiff. The particulars of the

-8-

Defendant’s registrations are as follows:

5002028248

3H3V532K9NS340029
3H3V532K5NS340030

 August 24, 2021

5002047470

LUYVS2536J2198394
1UYVS2534)2369210
1UYVS2531J2994759
1UYVS8253512198404
1UYVS2530J2369270

September 14, 2021

5002101491

JAKJHHDRONSNE3043

July 19, 2023

JAKJHHDRXNSNE3052
JAKJHHDR7NSNE3056

February 22, 2022

5002105956

3AKJHHDR2ZNSNE3045
3JAKJHHDRONSNE3047
3AKJHHDRENSNE3048

May 18, 2022

5002114719

3AKJHHDRXPSUL8700

December 22, 2022

3AKJHHDRI1PSULS701

November 2, 2022

5002116518

3AKJHHDRSPSULS705
3AKJHHDROPSUL8706

December 22, 2022

5002122745

2SHSR5320PS002053
2SHSR5328PS002057
2SHSR5323PS002077
2SHSR5329PS002083
2SHSR5320PS002084
2SHSR532XPS002125

May 23, 2023

5002121629

JAKJHHDR3RSUUS8214
3AKJHHDRSRSUUS215

May 1, 2023

5002125321

3AKJHHDR7RSUU8216
3AKJHHDRORSUUS8217

July 21, 2023

5002129162

3AKJHHDRXRSUV3538
SAKJHHDRIRSUV3539

September 29, 2023

5002141253

1UYVS3535M2014234
1UYVS3537M2014235
LUYVS3539M2014236
1UYVS3534M2014242
1UYVS3536M2014243

July 10, 2024




3H3V533C5MT714006
3H3V533CTMT714007
3H3V533COMT714009
3H3V533C9MT714011
3H3V533COMT714012

13.  Upon learning that the Vehicles (or a portion thereof) had been moved to Ontario, the
Defendant promptly registered financing statements against the Vehicles pursuant to the Personal

Property Security Act (Ontario).

The Guarantee of Lakhvir Sangha

14.  Pursuant to the Guarantee, Lakhvir guaranteed the indebtedness of the Plaintiff to the

Defendant under the Conditional Sale Contracts. The Guarantee provides, among other things:

(a) if the Plaintiff fails at any time to promptly pay any and all indebtedness owing to
the Defendant as the same becomes due, Lakhvir promises to pay any and all such

indebtedness upon demand, with all attorney’s fees incurred in enforcing payment;

(b) the Guarantee is a continuing guarantee, which guarantees the prompt payment of
any and all indebtedness which may now exist and/or may hereafter accrue at any

time from the Plaintiff to the Defendant;

(c) the Defendant is not required to initiate suit against the Plaintiff, exhaust its rights
or remedies against the Plaintiff or required to exercise diligence to enforce its
rights against the Plaintiff before being entitled to payment from Lakhvir under the

Guarantee;



-10-
(d) Lakhvir is liable to the Defendant under the Guarantee as fully as if Lakhvir was a

joint debtor with the Plaintiff; and

(&) forbearance on the part of the Defendant to take steps to enforce the payment of
any indebtedness held by it against the Plaintiff or the giving or further time to the

Plaintiff shall in no way release Lakhvir from the Guarantee.

The Plaintiff’s Default of the Conditional Sale Contracts

15.  Contrary to the Plaintiff’s assertions in the Statement of Claim, the Plaintiff did not make
the payments required of it under the Conditional Sale Contracts “in full and on time”, nor did the

Plaintiff continue to “meet all its financial obligations under the contracts.”

16.  In default of its obligations under the Conditional Sale Contracts, beginning in or around
the spring of the 2024, the Plaintiff failed to make the required monthly payments when due, which
led to significant arrears that were ultimately never cured. The Plaintiff also failed to provide

confirmation to the Defendant that the Vehicles were insured.

17.  Throughout the spring and fall of 2024, the Defendant attempted to assist the Plaintiff in
curing its defaults including by, among other things, providing numerous extensions of time and
agreeing to waive all late fees upon the maturity of the Conditional Sale Contracts provided that

the Plaintiff’s arrears were fully satisfied. Despite the Defendant’s efforts, the Plaintiff:
(a) failed to cure the arrears, despite repeated promises to do so;

(b)  purported to make several payments, only to have the payments returned as

“Payment Stopped” or “Funds not Cleared”; and
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(c) acknowledged its liability to the Defendant on March 21, 2025, and promised, but

ultimately failed, to provide proof of payment from the Plaintiff’s financial

institution.

18. As of April 8, 2025, the Plaintiff’s arrears under certain of the Conditional Sale Contracts

had increased to $74,976.02, as set out below:

5002047470 7 $9,455.18
5002105956 5 $10,205.28
5002116518 4 $9,789.61
5002122745 31 $14,366.03
5002125321 12 $12,941.48
5002141253 11 $18,218.44

Total $74,976.02

19.  On April 11, 2025, the Defendant demanded that the Plaintiff cure all arrears by April 18,
2025, and informed the Plaintiff on April 16, 2025 that the “[flailure to provide payment by that
date will result in the assignment of a bailiff for seizure or the commencement of legal
proceedings.” Tn response, the Plaintiff undertook to make the missed payments, advising that
“[w]e will make your missed payments soon and will send you proof of that. The stop payment

has been removed from Bank account so your future payments will not return.”

20.  However, and despite its representations, the Plaintiff failed to make any payment towards
its arrears. In April, 2025, the Plaintiff also failed to make the monthly payments under Conditional

Sale Contracts 5002121629 ($12,123.78) and 5002114719 ($11,251.56).
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21.- Between April 21 and 25, 2025, the Plaintiff paid its arrears under Conditional Sale

Contracts 5002047470, 5002125321 and 5002129162. However, the Plaintiff failed to make the
monthly payments that were due under these Conditional Sale Contracts on May 29, 2025

(5002047470), May 26, 2025 (5002125321) and May 23, 2025 (5002129162).

22. As of June 8, 2023, the Plaintiff was in default of its obligations under all of the Conditional
Sale Contracts as a result of failing to make the monthly payments required thereunder. As aresult
of the Plaintiff’s defaults under the Conditional Sale Contracts, all amounts owing under each

Conditional Sale Contract became immediately due and payable.

23.  Due to the Plaintiff’s persistent breaches of the Conditional Sale Contracts and the
increasing amount of its arrears, the Defendant demanded payment of the arrears and, in

accordance with section 244 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, issued notices of intention to

enforce security (“BIA Notices™) in respect of the Vehicles as set out below:

5002028248 3H3V532K9NS340029 $2,108.04 June 12, 2025
3H3V532K5NS340030
5002047470 1UYVS2536J2198394 $8,294.40 June 12, 2025
1UYVS2534J2369210
TUYVS2531J2994759
TUYVS2535J2158404

1UYVS2536]12198394 $9.455.18 April 8, 2025
1UYVS253412369210
1UYVS253112594759
1UYVS253512198404
1UYVS2530J2369270
5002101491 3AKJHHDRXNSNE3052 $6,997.64 April 22, 2025
3JAKJHHDR7NSNE3056
JAKJHHDRXNSNE3052 $6.664 .42 February 13,
3AKJHHDR7NSNE3056 2025

5002105956 3AKJHHDR2NSNE3045 $10,205.28 April §, 2025




JAKJHHDRENSNE3048

3AKJHHDR6NSNE3047

5002114719

JAKJHHDRIPSULZ701

JAKJHHDRXPSUL8700

$11,251.56

April 22, 2025

5002116518

3AKJHHDROYPSULS705
JAKJHHDROPSULR706

$9,789.61

April 8, 2025

5002122745

2SHSR5320PS002053
2SHSR5328PS002057
2SHSRS5323PS002077
2SHSR5329PS002083

2SHSR5320PS002084 -

2SHSR532XPS002125

$14,366.03

April 8, 2025

5002121629

3AKJHHDR3RSUUS8214
3AKJHHDRSRSUUS21S

$12,123.78

April 22, 2025

5002125321

3AKJHHDR7RSUUSB216
3AKJHHDRORSUUS217

$12,325.22

June 2, 2025

5002129162

3AKJHHDRXRSUV3538
JAKJHHDRIRSUV3539

$12,197.51

May 28, 2025

5002141253

1UYVS3535M2014234
1UYVS3537M2014235
1UYVS3539M2014236
1UYVS3534M2014242
1UYVS3536M2014243
3H3V533C5MT714006
3H3V533CTMTT714007
3H3V533COMT714009
3H3V533COMT714011
3H3VS533COMT714012

$18,218.44

April 8,2025

24,  The Defendant also issued demand for payment to Lakhvir under the Guarantee at the same
time as issuing the BIA Notices to the Plaintiff. Subsequent written demands were issued to the
Plaintiff and to the Guarantor for payment of the full amount owing under the Conditional Sale
Contracts, being $3,443,086.26 (inclusive of the unpaid financed amounts owing under the
Conditional Sale Contracts, late fees and bailiff costs), plus interest at the rate of 18% per annum

from the date of default and legal fees.
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25.  Without reason or justification, the Plaintiff and Lakhvir have failed to pay the amounts

owed to the Defendant pursuant to the Conditional Sale Contracts and the Guarantee, respectively.

Events Following the Issuance of the Demands for Payment and the BIA Notices

26.  On May 6, 2025, the Plaintiff informed the Defendant that it would voluntarily surrender
fourteen (14) of the Vehicles to the Defendant. The following day, however, the Plaintiff told the
Defendant that no Vehicles would be voluntarily surrendered. As a result, the Defendant engaged
bailiff services in an effort to locate and repossess the Vehicles. This was done in accordance with
the Defendant’s rights under the Conditional Sale Contracts and the provisions of the Manitoba

PPSA.

27.  Despite the Defendant’s demands for repayrment and the issuance of the BIA Notices, the
Plaintiff continued to use and operate the Vehicles. Furthermore, and during the course of its
efforts to recover the Vehicles, the Defendant was informed by its bailiffs that the Defendant
stripped the identifying information from the Vehicles, including their serial numbers, frustrating

the Defendant’s efforts to exercise its rights under the Conditional Sale Contracts.

28.  Intotal, the Defendant managed to locate and take possession of nineteen (19) Vehicles, as

set out below:

Num

5002047470001 1UYVS2530J2369270 April 8, 2025

May 9, 2025
5002047470001 1UYVS2535J2198404 June 12, 2025 July 18, 2025
5002105956001 JAKJHHDRENSNE3048 April 8, 2025 May 23, 2025
5002114719001 3AKJHHDRIPSUL8701 May 21, 2025 July 14, 2025

5002116518001 3AKJHHDROPSUL8706 April 8, 2025 May 23, 2025




Numb: o Yehicles ... Lo Notices o e b e s
5002116518001 JAKJHHDROPSULE705 April 8, 2025 May 29, 2025
5002121629001 SAKJHHDR3IRSUUR2 14 April 22, 2025 May 9, 2025
5002121629001 JAKJHHDRSRSUUSE215 April 22, 2025 May 23, 2025
5002129162001 JAKJHHDRXRSUV3538 May 28, 2025 June 7, 2025
5002122745001 2SHSRS5320PS002084 April 8, 2025 May 9, 2025
5002122745001 2SHSRS532XPS002125 April 8, 2025 May 6, 2025
5002122745001 25HSR5323PS002077 April 8, 2025 May 29, 2025
5002122745001 2SHSRS5328PS002057 April 8, 2025 July 14, 2025
5002129162001 JAKIJHHDRIRSUV3539 May 28, 2025 June 7, 2025
5002141253001 3H3VS33COMT714012 April 8, 2025 May 9, 2025
5002141253001 3H3V533C5MT714006 April 8, 2025 June 13, 2025
5002114719001 JAKJHHDRXPSULS700 April 22, 2025 May 9, 2025
5002105956001 3AKJHHDR2NSNE3045 April 8, 2025 May 21, 2025

29.  Vehicle 2SHSR5323PS002077 was seized by the Defendant’s bailiff from a third party

who claimed that the Plaintiff owed them money, and gave them the Vehicle as a form of payment.

30.  The Defendant denies that its repossession of the Vehicles occurred without lawful
authority, in the manner that the Plaintiff has alleged, or at all. The Conditional Sale Contracts and
the Manitoba PPSA expressly provide the Defendant with the right to repossess the Vehicles upon
the Plaintiff’s default. The Defendant provided numerous warnings, and issued written demands
and BIA Notices to the Plaintiff well in advance of repossessing any of the Vehicles. The Plaintiff
had ample opportunity to rectify the arrears and bring its accounts into good-standing. It failed to

do so, and Daimler enforced its rights as a secured creditor.

31.  Following the delivery of the BIA Notices, the Defendant also discovered that two of the

Vehicles had suffered total losses as a result of motor vehicle accidents and that the Plaintiff
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received payouts from its insurer. However, and despite its obligations to do so, the Plaintiff has

refused to deliver the insurance proceeds to the Defendant.

32.  Furthermore, the Defendant recently learned that the eighteen (18) Vehicles that the
Defendant has been unable to repossess (the “Outstanding Vehicles”) were relocated to Ontario
and are stored on a lot in Brampton, Ontario. Particulars of the Outstanding Vehicles are set out

below:

1UYV82536J2198394 June 12, 2025 and
1UYVS2534J2369210 April 8, 2025
1UYVS2531J2994759

5002028248 3H3V532K5NS340030 June 12, 2025
3H3V532KI9NS340029

5002122745 2SHSR5320PS002053 April 8, 2025
2SHSR5329PS002083

5002125321 3JAKJHHDR7RSUUSB216 June 2, 2025
JAKJHHDRORSUUS217

5002141253 1UYVS3539M2014236 April 8, 2025
1UYVS3535M2014234
1UYVS3536M2014243
1UYVS3534M2014242
JH3V533CTMT714007
1UYVS3537M2014235
JH3V533CIMT714011

5002101491 JAKJHHDR7NSNE3056 April 22, 2025 and
3AKJHHDRXNSNE3052 February 13, 2025

33.  The relocation of the Outstanding Vehicles was done without the Defendant’s knowledge,
consent or authorization, and has further hindered the Defendant’s efforts to lawfully recover same.

The Plaintiff refuses to permit the Defendant to inspect the Outstanding Vehicles and the
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Defendant is concerned the Plaintiff and possibly others may be dismantling the Outstanding

Vehicles to sell them for parts.

34,  To further frustrate the Defendant’s attempts at repossession, representatives of the
Plaintiff, (a) posed as an officer of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police in order to intimidate the
Defendant into ceasing to exercise its lawful rights of repossession, and (b) impetsonated
representatives of the Plaintift’s financial institution in phony telephone calis that were placed with
the Defendant. On May 9, 2025, the Defendant’s bailiff was physically attacked by Lakhvir when

he attempted to repossess certain Vehicles. The police were informed and Lakhvir was arrested.

The Plaintiff’s Allegations are False

35.  The allegations made by the Plaintiff against the Defendant are frivolous, vexatious and
without merit, and no more than a continuation of the Plaintiffs breach of the Conditional Sale
Contracts and bad faith efforts to frustrate the Defendant’s lawful attempts to enforce its security

interest and recover the Vehicles and the amounts owed to it.

36.  Contrary to the Plaintiff’s allegations, the Defendant did not unlawfully repossess any of
the Vehicles, or enforce its security without proper notice, justification or default on the part of the
Plaintiff. As set out above, the Plaintiff was consistently in breach of its obligations under the
Conditional Sale Contracts by failing to make the monthly payments that were due to the
Defendant. Despite the Defendant’s good faith efforts to assist the Plaintiff in curing its defaults
under the Conditional Sale Contracts, the Plaintiff failed to cure its arrears. Only after months of
the Conditional Sale Contracts being in arrears and the delivery of the BIA Notices did the

Defendant repossess certain of the Vehicles, as it was legally entitled to do.



-18-

37.  Furthermore or in the alternative, the Defendant denies that the Plaintiff has suffered any

damages as pled in the Statement of Claim or otherwise for which the Defendant is responsible.

38,  In the further alternative, if the Plaintiff has suffered any damages as alleged (which is
specifically denied), such damages were the result of the Plaintiff’s own actions and its own failure

to mitigate any damages.

39.  In the further alternative, if the Plaintiff has suffered any damages as alleged, which is
specifically denied, then such damages are excessive, remote and not recoverable from the

Defendant.

40.  DTF pleads and relies upon the provisions of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, the

Manitoba PPSA and the Courts of Justice Act (Ontario).

41.  Accordingly, the Defendant asks that this action be dismissed with costs payable to it on a

full indemnity basis.
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COUNTERCLAIM
42.  'The Plaintiff by Counterclaim, Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada Corporation
(“DTFE™), claims:
(a) As against the Defendant to the Counterclaim, Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc.

(b)

(“JSTI):

(i) A declaration that JSTI is in breach of the Conditional Sale Contracts;

(i)  Judgment in the amount of $3,443,086.26 on account of the amounts

outstanding under the Conditional Sale Contracts;

(iii)  prejudgment and postjudgment interest on the aforesaid amount at the rate
of 18% per annum as set out in the Conditional Sale Contracts, or
alternatively, in accordance with section 128 and 129 of the Courts of

Justice Act, R.85.0. 1990, ¢. C.43, as amended;

(iv)  an Order appointing a receiver or receiver-manager over the Outstanding

Vehicles, as defined herein;

As against the Defendant to the Counterclaim, Lakhvir Sangha (the “Guarantor”

or “Lakhvir”):

() the amount of $3,443,086.26 pursuant to his Guarantee;

(i)  prejudgment and postjudgment interest on the aforesaid amount at the rate

of 18% per annum as set out in the Contract, or alternatively, in accordance
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with section 128 and 129 of the Courts of Justice 4ct, R.S.0. 1990, c. C.43,

as amended;

(c) As against all Defendants by Counterclaim:

(i) the costs of this proceeding, plus all applicable taxes; and

(i)  such further and other relief as to this Honourable Court may seem just.

43, DTF repeats and relies upon the allegations in the Statement of Defence in support of the
Counterclaim. Capitalized terms used in this Counterclaim and not otherwise defined shall have

the same meaning as in the Statement of Defence of DTF.

44,  As set out in the Statement of Defence, JSTI defaulted on the payments due under the

Conditional Sale Contracts in the spring of 2024 and uitimately never cured its defaults thereunder.

45, The total amount owing to DTF as of August 22, 2025 is $3,443,086.26, inclusive of the
unpaid financed amounts owing under the Conditional Sale Countracts, late fees and bailiff costs
incurred by DTF, plus interest at the rate of 18% per annum from the date of default in accordance
with the Conditional Sale Contracts, and legal fees. JSTI and the Guarantor are both liable for

these amounts, particulars of which are set out below:

5002028248 $14,644.05 | June 8, 2025 $2,000 $316.20 $16,960.25

5002047470 $74,636.61 | May 29, 2025 $7,152.63 $1508.52 $83,297.76
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5002101491 $174,92022 |

5002105956 328336590 | April2, 2025 | $7,470.00 | $2,041.06 $292,876.96

5002114719 $232,08130 | May 15,2025 | $4,799.86|  $281.29 $237,162.45

5002116518 $323,018.06 | April3,2025 |$13.819.73|  $978.96 $337,816.75

5002122745 $518.397.05 | February 7, | $17.118.13 | $2,622.46 $538,138.54

2025

5002121629 $253,639.24 | April 15,2025 | $3957.50 |  $606.19 $258,202.93

5002125321 $337,512.74 | May 26,2025 | $2,000.00 | $1,848.78 $341,361.52

5002129162 $364,284.48 | May 23,2025 | $6,855.00 | $1.219.76 $372,359.24

5002141253 $769,390.64 | March 23, 2025 | $13,035.00 | $3,897.90 $776,734.66
Totals $3,345,891.19 N/A $80,207.85 | $16,987.22 $3,443,086.26

46.  Despite demand for payment, JSTI and the Guarantor have refused and/or neglected and

continue to refuse and/or neglect to make any payment to DTF on account of the said indebtedness.

47, DTF claims against JSTI and the Guarantor for the sum of $3,443,086.26, plus accrued

interest from the date of JSTD’s default under each of the Conditional Sale Contracts as set forth

above at the rate of 18% per annum, and legal fees on a full indemnity basis. JSTI and the

Guarantor are also liable for any additional other expenses incurred by DTF in connection with its

efforts to realize upon the Vehicles.
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Appointment of a Receiver Over the Outstanding Vehicles

48.  DTF seeks the appointment of a Receiver over the Oufstanding Vehicles in order to

preserve the value of the Outstanding Vehicles.

49, JSTI defaulted on its obligations under the Conditional Sale Contracts, which defaults are

continuing. JSTT is also insolvent.

50.  DTF holds valid and enforceable security interests in the Vehicles, including each of the
Outstanding Vehicles. DTF enforced its security interest by taking possession of certain of the
Vehicles. However, and despite DTF’s demands, JSTI has failed and refused to deliver the
QOutstanding Vehicles to DTF. Furthermore, JSTI has actively frustrated DYTF’s lawful efforts to

repossess the Outstanding Vehicles.

51.  JSTTs conduct, including the relocation of the Outstanding Vehicles to Ontario, the refusal
to allow DTF to inspect the Outstanding Vehicles and the removal of identifying information from
the Vehicles, has caused DTF to develop serious concerns that the Outstanding Vehicles are at risk
of dissipation and further, that JSTI will continue to frustrate DTT’s lawful efforts to repossess the

Outstanding Vehicles.

52.  The appointment of a Receiver will ensure that the value of the Outstanding Vehicles is

preserved and maximized for the benefit of all stakeholders.
53.  Ttis just and convenient to appoint a Receiver in the circumstances.

54.  DTF proposes that this counterclaim be tried together with or immediately following the

main action.
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Date: August 22, 2025 DENTONS CANADALLP
400 - 77 King Street West
Toronto-Dominion Centre
Toronto ON MSK 0Al

Elaine Gray

LSO #26915K

Tel:  (416) 863-4775
elaine.gray(@dentons.com

Sara-Ann Wilson

LSO # 56016C

Tel:  (416) 863-4402
sara.wilson@dentons.com

Fraser Mackinnon Blair

LSO #66683L

Tel: (613) 783-9647
Fraser.mackinnon.blair@dentons.com

Lawyers for the Defendant/Plaintiff by
Counterclaim
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This is Exhibit “R” referred to in the affidavit of
Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn before me,
this |S day of September, 2025,
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

ANDBETWEEN:

DAIMLER TRUCK FINANCIAL SERVICES CANADA CORPORATION
Plaintiff by Counterclaim

and

JAGDEEP SANGHA TRANSPORT INC. and LAKHVIR SANGHA
Defendants by Counterclaim

CONSENT

DELOITTE RESTRUCTURING INC. (“Deloitte™), hercby consents to act as court-
appointed receiver, without security, over the assets of Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc. (“JST”)
subject to the security interest granted by JST to Daimler Truck Financial Services Canada
(“Daimler”) in accordance with an Order substantially in the form requested by Daimler, or as such

Order may be amended in a manner satisfactory to Deloitte.
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Dated at Toronto, Ontario this 11™ day of September, 2025.

DELOITTE RESTRUCTURING INC.

e

<7 !
J a7 (/{ Ot ;_}fi wé&{ S—
Per:

Name: Jorden Sleeth
Title:  Senior Vice-President
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Court File No. CV-25-00003788-0000

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
THE HONOURABLE ) , THE
JUSTICE ) DAY OF , 2025
BETWEEN:

JAGDEEP SANGHA TRANSPORT INC.

Plaintiff -

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

ORDER
(appointing Receiver)

THIS MOTION made by the Defendant (Plaintiff by Counterclaim), Daimler Truck
Financial Services Canada Corporation (“Daimler”), for an Order pursuant to section 243(1) of
the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. B-3, as amended (the “BIA”) and section 101
of the Courts of Justice Act, R.S.0. 1990, ¢. C.43, as amended (the “CJA”) appointing Deloitte

Restructuring Inc. (“Deloitte™) as receiver (in such capacities, the “Receiver”) without security,



S2.

of certain property of Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc. (the “Debtor™), was heard this day at 7755
Hurontario Street, Brampton, Ontario, LoOW 4T1.

ON READING the affidavit of Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn September 15, 2025 and the
Exhibits thereto (the “Abu-Qube Affidavit”) and on hearing the submissions of counsel for
Daimler and the Debtor, no one else appearing although duly served as appears from the affidavit
of service of Danny M. Nunes sworn September e, 2025, and on reading the consent of Deloitte

to act as the Receiver,
SERVICE

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the time for service of the Notice of Motion and the Motion
is hereby abridged and validated so that this application is properly returnable today and hereby

dispenses with further service thereof.
DEFINED TERMS

2. THIS COURT ORDERS that capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have

the same meaning ascribed to them as in the Abu-Qube Affidavit.
APPOINTMENT

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that pursuant to section 243(1) of the BIA and section 101 of
the CJA, Deloitte is hereby appointed Receiver, without security, over the property of the Debtor
subject to the security interest granted to Daimler by the Debtor under the Conditional Sale
Contracts and all proceeds thereof, including but not limited to the Outstanding Vehicles listed in
Schedule “A” hereto (the “Property™).

RECEIVER’S POWERS

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver is hereby empowered and authorized, but not
obligated, to act at once in respect of the Property and, without in any way limiting the generality
of the foregoing, the Receiver is hereby expressly empowered and authorized to do any of the

following where the Receiver considers it necessary or desirable:



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(®)

®

(g)

(h)

-3

to take possession of and exercise control over the Property and any and all

proceeds, receipts and disbursements arising out of or from the Property;

to receive, preserve, and protect the Property, or any part or parts thereof,
including, but not limited to, the changing of locks and security codes, the
relocating of Property to safeguard it, the engaging of independent security
personnel, the taking of physical inventories and the placement of such

insurance coverage as may be necessary or desirable;

to engage consultants, appraisers, agents, bailiffs, experts, auditors,
accountants, managers, counsel and such other persons from time {o time
and on whatever basis, including on a temporary basis, to assist with the
exercise of the Receiver's powers and duties, including without limitation

those conferred by this Order;

to purchase or lease such machinery, equipment, inventories, supplies,
premises or other assets to assist with the exercise of the Receiver's powers

and duties, including without limifation those conferred by this Order;

to receive and collect all monies and accounts now owed or hereafter owing
to the Debtor in respect of the Property and to exercise all remedies of the
Debtor in collecting such monies, including, without limitation, to enforce

any security held by the Debtor;

to settle, extend or compromise any indebtedness owing to the Debtor in

respect of the Property;

to execute, assign, issue and endorse documents of whatever nature in
respect of any of the Property, whether in the Receiver's name or in the

name and on behalf of the Debtor, for any purpose pursuant to this Order;

to initiate, prosecute and continue the prosecution of any and all
proceedings and to defend all proceedings now pending or hereafter

instituted with respect to the Property or the Receiver, and to settle or



(1)

@

(k)

M

4.

compromise any such proceedings. The authority hereby conveyed shall
extend to such appeals or applications for judicial review in respect of any

order or judgment pronounced in any such proceeding;

to market any or all of the Property, including advertising and soliciting
offers in respect of the Property or any part or parts thereof and negotiating
such terms and conditions of sale as the Receiver in its discretion may deem

appropriate;

to sell, convey, transfer, lease or assign the Property or any part or parts

thereof out of the ordinary course of business,

(i)  without the approval of this Court in respect of any transaction,
excluding any transaction pursuant to paragraph 5 of this Order, not
exceeding $500,000, provided that the aggregate consideration for

all such transactions does not exceed $1,000,000; and

(ify ~ with the approval of this Court in respect of any transaction,
excluding any transaction pursuant to paragraph 5 of this Order, in
which the purchase price or the aggregate purchase price exceeds

the applicable amount set out in the preceding clause;

and in each such case notice under subsection 63(4) of the Ontario Personal

Property Security Act, shall not be required;

to apply for any vesting order or other orders necessary to convey the
Property or any part or parts thereof to a purchaser or purchasers thereof,

free and clear of any liens or encumbrances affecting such Property;

to report to, meet with and discuss with such affected Persons (as defined
below) as the Receiver deems appropriate on all matters relating to the
Property and the receivership, and to share information, subject to such

terms as to confidentiality as the Receiver deems advisable;
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(m) toapply for any permits, licences, approvals or permissions in respect of the
Property as may be required by any governmental authority and any
renewals thereof for and on behalf of and, if thought desirable by the

Receiver, in the name of the Debtor;

(n) to enter into agreements with any trustee in bankruptcy appointed in respect

of the Debtor;

(0) to exercise any shareholder, partnership, joint venture or other rights in

respect of the Property which the Debtor may have; and

P to take any steps reasonably incidental to the exercise of these powers or the

performance of any statutory obligation,

and in each case where the Receiver takes any such actions or steps, it shall be exclusively
authorized and empowered to do so, to the exclusion of all other Persons (as defined below),

including the Debtor, and without interference from any other Person.
SALE OF PROPERTY AT AUCTION

5. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver is authorized to enter into agreements with
Ritchie Bros. Auctioneers (Canada) Ltd., or such other auctioneer as may be approved by Daimler,
for the sale of one or more of the Outstanding Vehicles and other Property (collectively, the
“Purchased Assets™) at public auction, and take such steps and execute such additional documents
as may be necessary or desirable for the sale of the Purchased Assets at public auction and the

conveyance of the Purchased Assets to respective purchasers.

6. THIS COURT ORDERS that upon the completion of the sale of one or more of the
Purchased Assets at auction, upon receipt by the auctioneer of the purchase price and delivery of
a bill of sale or similar evidence of purchase and sale (the “Bill of Sale”), all of the Debtor’s right,
title and interest in and to the Purchased Asset purchased by the respective purchaser shall vest
absolutely in such purchaser free and clear of and from any and all security interests (whether
contractual, statutory, or otherwise), hypothecs, mortgages, trusts or deemed trusts (whether

contractual, statutory, or otherwise), liens, executions, levies, charges, or other financial or
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monetary claims, whether or not they have attached or been perfected, registered or filed and
whether secured, unsecured or otherwise (collectively, the “Claims™), including, without limiting
the generality of the foregoing: (i) any encumbrances or charges created by this Order; and (i1) all
charges, security interests or claims evidenced by registrations pursuant to the Personal Property
Security Act (Ontario) (“PPSA”), the Repair and Storage Liens Act (Ontario) (“RSLA”), or any
other personal property registry system or similar provincial legislation (all of which are
collectively referred to as the “Encambrances”) and, for greater certainty, this Court orders that
all of the Encumbrances affecting or relating to such Purchased Assets sold at auction are hereby

expunged and discharged as against such Purchased Assets upon the delivery of a Bill of Sale.

7. THIS COURT ORDERS that, upon the completion of the sale of one or more Purchased
Assets at auction, the Receiver is authorized to execute discharges or other documentation
necessary or desirable to discharge all PPSA, RSLA or other registrations against the Purchased
Assets and to execute all documentation necessary to transfer ownership of the Purchased Assets
and this Court hereby directs the Ministry of Transportation Ontario, Service Ontario and any
analogous governmental authority to endorse, certify and/or issue such documents and take such

further actions as are necessary to give effect to this paragraph.

8. THIS COURT ORDERS that for the purposes of determining the nature and priority of
Claims, the net proceeds from the sale of the Purchased Assets sold at auction shall stand in the
place and stead of the Purchased Assets sold at auction, and that from and after the delivery of a
Bill of Sale all Claims and Encumbrances shall attach to the net proceeds from the sale of the
Purchased Assets sold at auction and described in such Bill of Sale with the same priority as they
had with respect to such Purchased Assets immediately prior to their sale at auction, as if such
Purchased Assets had not been sold at auction and remained in the possession or control of the

person having that possession or control immediately prior to their sale at auction.
9. THIS COURT ORDERS that notwithstanding:

(a) the pendency of these proceedings;
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(b)  any applications for a bankruptcy order now or hereafter issued pursuant to
the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) in respect of the Debtor and

any bankruptcy order issued pursuant to any such applications; and
(c) any éssignment in bankruptcy made in respect of the Debtor;

the vesting of each of the Purchased Assets in its respective purchaser pursuant to this Order shall
be binding on any trustee in bankruptcy that may be appointed in respect of the Debtor and shall
not be void or voidable by creditors of the Debtor, nor shall it constitute nor be deemed to be a
fraudulent preference, assignment, fraudulent conveyance, transfer at undervalue, or other
reviewable transaction under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) or any other applicable
federal or provincial legislation, nor shall it constitute oppressive or unfairly prejudicial conduct

pursuant to any applicable federal or provincial legislation.
DUTY TO PROVIDE ACCESS AND CO-OPERATION TO THE RECEIVER

10.  THIS COURT ORDERS that (i) the Debtor, (ii) all of its current and former directors,
officers, employees, agents, accountants, legal counsel and shareholders, and all other persons
acting on its instructions or behalf, and (iii} all other individuals, firms, corporations, governmental
bodies or agencies, or other entities having notice of this Order (all of the foregoing, collectively,
being “Persons” and each being a “Person”) shall forthwith advise the Receiver of the existence
of any Property in such Person's possession or control, shall grant immediate and continued access
to the Property to the Receiver, and shall deliver all such Property to the Receiver upon the

Receiver's request.

11.  THIS COURT ORDERS that all Persons shall forthwith advise the Receiver of the
existence of any books, documents, securities, contracts, orders, corporate and accounting records,
and any other papers, records and information of any kind related to the Property, and any
computer programs, computer tapes, computer disks, or other data storage media containing any
such information (the foregoing, collectively, the “Records™) in that Person's possession or
control, and shall provide to the Receiver or permit the Receiver to make, retain and take away
copies thereof and grant to the Receiver unfettered access to and use of accounting, computer,

software and physical facilities relating thereto, provided however that nothing in this paragraph
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11 or in paragraph 12 of this Order shall require the delivery of Records, or the granting of access
to Records, which may not be disclosed or provided to the Receiver due to the privilege attaching

to solicitor-client communication or due to statutory provisions prohibiting such disclosure.

12. THIS COURT ORDERS that if any Records are stored or otherwise contained on a
computer or other electronic system of information storage, whether by independent service
provider or otherwise, all Persons in possession or control of such Records shall forthwith give
unfettered access to the Receiver for the purpose of allowing the Receiver to recover and fully
copy all of the information contained therein whether by way of printing the information onto
paper or making copies of computer disks or such other manner of retrieving and copying the
information as the Receiver in its discretion deems expedient, and shall not alter, erase or destroy
any Records without the prior written consent of the Receiver. Further, for the purposes of this
paragraph, all Persons shall provide the Receiver with all such assistance in gaining immediate
access to the information in the Records as the Receiver may in its discretion require including
providing the Receiver with instructions on the use of any computer or other system and providing
the Receiver with any and all access codes, account names and account numbers that may be

required to gain access to the information.
INVESTIGATIVE POWERS

13. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver is hereby authorized to exercise all available
investigative and other rights and remedies available to a trustee in bankruptcy under the BIA and
is hereby authorized to examine under oath any Person, including but not limited to representatives
of the Debtor, that the Receiver reasonably considers to have knowledge of the affairs or Property
of the Debtor, including the Outstanding Vehicles.

14.  THIS COURT ORDERS that, further to the preceding paragraph, the Receiver shall be
authorized and empowered to examine, under oath, Lakhvir Sangha, in his capacity as director and
officer of the Debtor, with respect to the location, whereabouts and disposition of the Property,
including the Outstanding Vehicles, and such other matters as the Receiver may sec fit in carrying
out the terms and provisions of this Order and the administration of the Receiver’s mandate set out
herein. Upon delivery of a notice of examination by the Receiver, Mr. Sangha is hereby directed

to attend at the examination at such time and place as the Receiver may advise.
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NO PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE RECEIVER

15,  THIS COURT ORDERS that no proceeding or enforcement process in any court or
tribunal (each, a “Proceeding”), shall be commenced or continued against the Receiver except

with the written consent of the Receiver or with leave of this Court.
NO PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE DEBTOR OR THE PROPERTY

16,  THIS COURT ORDERS that no Proceeding against or in respect of the Property shall be
commenced or continued except with the written consent of the Receiver or with leave of this
Court and any and all Proceedings currently under way against or in respect of the Property are

hereby stayed and suspended pending further Order of this Court.
NO EXERCISE OF RIGHTS OR REMEDIES

17. THIS COURT ORDERS that all rights and remedies against Debtor in respect of the
Property, the Receiver, or affecting the Property, are hereby stayed and suspended except with the
written consent of the Receiver or leave of this Court, provided however that this stay and
suspension does not apply in respect of any "eligible financial contract" as defined in the BIA, and
further provided that nothing in this paragraph shall (i) empower the Receiver or the Debtor to
carry on any business which the Debtor is not lawfully entitled to carry on, (ii} exempt the Receiver
or the Debtor from compliance with statutory or regulatory provisions relating to health, safety or
the environment, (iii) prevent the filing of any registration to preserve or perfect a security interest,

or (iv) prevent the registration of a claim for lien.
NO INTERFERENCE WITH THE RECEIVER

18. THIS COURT ORDERS that no Person shall discontinue, fail to honour, alter, interfere
with, repudiate, terminate or cease to perform any right, renewal right, contract, agreement, licence
or permit in favour of or held by the Debtor in respect of the Property, without written consent of

the Receiver or leave of this Court.
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RECEIVER TO HOLD FUNDS

19. THIS COURT ORDERS that all funds, monies, cheques, instruments, and other forms of
payments received or collected by the Receiver from and after the making of this Order from any
source whatsoever, including without limitation the sale of all or any of the Property, shall be
deposited into one or more new accounts to be opened by the Receiver (the “Post Receivership
Accounts™) and the monies standing to the credit of such Post Receivership Accounts from time
to time, net of any disbursements provided for herein, shall be held by the Receiver to be paid in

accordance with the terms of this Order or any further Order of this Court.
EMPLOYEES

20.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver shall not be liable for any employee-related
liabilities, including any successor employer liabilities as provided for in section 14.06(1.2) of the
BIA, other than such amounts as the Receiver may specifically agree in writing to pay, or in respect

of its obligations under sections 81.4(5) or §1.6(3) of the BIA.
CASL

21.  THIS COURT ORDERS that any and all interested stakeholders in this proceeding and
their counsel are at liberty to serve or distribute this Order, any other materials and orders as may
be reasonably required in this proceeding, including any notices, or other correspondence, by
forwarding true copies thereof by electronic message to such other interested stakeholders in this
proceeding and their counsel and advisors. For greater certainty, any such distribution or service
shall be deemed to be in satisfaction of a legal or juridical obligation and notice requirements
within the meaning of clause 3{c) of the Electronic Commerce Protection Regulation, Reg. 18000-
2-175 (SOR/DORS).

LIMITATION ON ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES

22, THIS COURT ORDERS that nothing herein contained shall require the Receiver to
occupy or to take control, care, charge, possession or management (separately and/or collectively,
“Possession”) of any of the Property that might be environmentally contaminated, might be a

pollutant or a contaminant, or might cause or contribute to a spill, discharge, release or deposit of
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a substance contrary to any federal, provincial or other law respecting the protection, conservation,
enhancement, remediation or rehabilitation of the environment or relating to the disposal of waste
or other contamination including, without limitation, the Canadian Environmental Protection Act,
the Ontario Environmental Protection Act, the Ontario Water Resources Act, or the Ontario
Occupational Health and Safety Act and regulations thereunder (the “Envirommental
Legislation™), provided however that nothing herein shall exempt the Receiver from any duty to
report or make disclosure imposed by applicable Environmental Legislation. The Receiver shall
not, as a result of this Order or anything done in pursuance of the Receiver's duties and powers
under this Order, be deemed to be in Possession of any of the Property within the meaning of any

Environmental Legislation, unless it is actually in possession.
LIMITATION ON THE RECEIVER’S LIABILITY

23, THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver shall incur no liability or obligation as a result
of its appointment or carrying out the provisions of this Order, save and except for any gross -
negligence or wilful misconduct on its part, or in respect of its obligations under sections 81.4(5)
or 81.6(3) of the BIA. Nothing in this Order shall derogate from the protections afforded the
Receiver by section 14.06 of the BIA or by any other applicable legislation.

RECEIVER'S ACCOUNTS

24.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver and counsel to the Receiver shall be paid their
reasonable fees and disbursements, in each case at their standard rates and charges unless otherwise
ordered by the Court on the passing of accounts, and that the Receiver and counsel to the Receiver
shall be entitled to and are hereby granted a charge (the “Receiver's Charge”) on the Property, as
security for such fees and disbursements, both before and after the making of this Order in respect
of these proceedings, and that the Receiver's Charge shall form a first charge on the Property in
priority to all security interests, trusts, liens, charges and encumbrances, statutory or otherwise, in

favour of any Person, but subject to sections 14.06(7), 81.4(4), and 81.6(2) of the BIA.

25. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver and its legal counsel shall pass its accounts
from time to time, and for this purpose the accounts of the Receiver and its legal counsel are hereby

referred to a judge of this Court.
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26.  THIS COURT ORDERS that prior to the passing of its accounts, the Receiver shall be at
liberty from time to time to apply reasonable amounts, out of the monies in its hands, against its
fees and disbursements, including legal fees and disbursements, incurred at the standard rates and
charges of the Receiver or its counsel, and such amounts shall constitute advances against its

remuneration and disbursements when and as approved by this Court.
FUNDING OF THE RECEIVERSHIP

27. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver be at liberty and it is hereby empowered to
borrow by way of a revolving credit or otherwise, such monies from time to time as it may consider
necessary or desirable, provided that the outstanding principal amount does not exceed $500,000
(or such greater amount as this Court may by further Order authorize) at any time, at such rate or
rates of interest as it deems advisable for such period or periods of time as it may arrange, for the
purpose of funding the exercise of the powers and duties conferred upon the Receiver by this
Order, including interim expenditures. The whole of the Property shall be and is hereby charged
by way of a fixed and specific charge (the "Receiver's Borrowings Charge") as security for the
payment of the monies borrowed, together with interest and charges thereon, in priority to all
security interests, trusts, liens, charges and encumbrances, statutory or otherwise, in favour of any
Person, but subordinate in priority to the Receiver’s Charge and the charges as set out in sections

14.06(7), 81.4(4), and 81.6(2) of the BIA.

28.  THIS COURT ORDERS that neither the Receiver's Borrowings Charge nor any other
security granted by the Receiver in connection with its borrowings under this Order shall be

enforced without leave of this Court.

29.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver is at liberty and authorized to issue certificates
substantially in the form annexed as Schedule “B” hereto (the “Receiver’s Certificates”) for any

amount borrowed by it pursuant to this Order.

30.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the monies from time to time borrowed by the Receiver
pursuant to this Order or any further order of this Court and any and all Receiver’s Certificates
evidencing the same or any part thereof shall rank on a pari passu basis, unless otherwise agreed

to by the holders of any prior issued Receiver's Certificates.
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SERVICE AND NOTICE

31. THIS COURT ORDERS that the E-Service Protocol of the Commercial List (the
“Protocol”) is approved and adopted by reference herein and, in this proceeding, the service of
documents made in accordance with the Protocol (which can be found on the Commercial List

website at http://www.ontariocourts.ca/scj/practice/practice-directions/toronto/e-service-

protocol/) shall be valid and effective service. Subject to Rule 17.05 this Order shall constitute an
order for substituted service pursuant to Rule 16.04 of the Rules of Civil Procedure. Subject to
Rule 3.01(d) of the Rules of Civil Procedure and paragraph 21 of the Protocol, service of
documents in accordance with the Protocol will be effective on transmission. This Court further

orders that a Case Website shall be established in accordance with the Protocol.

32. THIS COURT ORDERS that if the service or distribution of documents in accordance
with the Protocol is not practicable, the Receiver is at liberty to serve or distribute this Order, any
other materials and orders in these proceedings, any notices or other correspondence, by
forwarding true copies thereof by prepaid ordinary mail, courier, personal delivery or facsimile
transmission to the Debtor's creditors or other interested parties at their respective addresses as last
shown on the records of the Debtor and that any such service or distribution by courier, personal
delivery or facsimile transmission shall be deemed to be received on the next business day
following the date of forwarding thereof, or if sent by ordinary mail, on the third business day after

mailing.
GENERAL

33, THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver may from time to time apply to this Court for

advice and directions in the discharge of its powers and duties hereunder.

34,  THIS COURT ORDERS that nothing in this Order shall prevent the Receiver from acting
as a trustee in bankruptcy of the Debtor.

35. THIS COURT HEREBY REQUESTS the aid and recognition of any court, tribunal,
regulatory or administrative body having jurisdiction in Canada or in the United States to give
effect to this Order and to assist the Receiver and its agents in carrying out the terms of this Order.

All courts, tribunals, regulatory and administrative bodies are hereby respectfully requested to
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make such orders and to provide such assistance to the Receiver, as an officer of this Court, as
may be necessary or desirable to give effect to this Order or to assist the Receiver and its agents in

carrying out the terms of this Order.

36,  THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver be at liberty and is hereby authorized and
empowered to apply to any court, tribunal, regulatory or administrative body, wherever located,
for the recognition of this Order and for assistance in carrying out the terms of this Order, and that
the Receiver is authorized and empowered to act as a representative in respect of the within
proceedings for the purpose of having these proceedings recognized in a jurisdiction outside

Canada.

37.  THIS COURT ORDERS that Daimler shall have its costs of this motion, up to and
including entry and service of this Order, provided for by the terms of Daimler’s security or, if not
so provided by Daimler’s security, then on a substantial indemnity basis to be paid by the Receiver

from the Debtor's estate with such priority and at such time as this Court may determine.

38. THIS COURT ORDERS that any interested party may apply to this Court to vary or
amend this Order on not less than seven (7) days’ notice to the Receiver and to any other party

likely to be affected by the order sought or upon such other notice, if any, as this Court may order.

39. THIS COURT ORDERS that this Order and all of its provisions are effective as of
12:01AM EST on the date of this Order and is enforceable without any need for entry and filing.




SCHEDULE "A"

Outstanding Vehicles

| 1UYVS253612198394 Utility Tandem Reefer 2018
1UYVS2534J2369210 Utility Tandem Reefer 2018
1UYVS2531J2994759 Utality Tandem Reefer 2018
3H3V532K5NS340030 Hyundai Dry Van 2022
3H3V532K9NS340029 Hyundai Dry Van 2022
3AKJHHDR7NSNE3056 Freightliner Cascadia 126 2022
3JAKJHHDRXNSNE3052 Freightliner Cascadia 126 2022
28HSR5329P5002083 Vanguard Cool Globe 2023
3JAKJHHDR7RSUUS8216 Freightliner PT126LP 2024
JAKJTHHDRORSUUS217 Freightliner PT126LP 2024
1UYVS3539M2014236 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
1UYVS3535M2014234 Utility Reefer Tratler 2021
1UYVS3536M2014243 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
1UYVS3534M2014242 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
3H3V3533CTMT714007 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
3H3V533COMT714009 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
1UYVS3537M2014235 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
3H3V533COMTT714011 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
| BAKJHHDR6NSNE3047 Freightliner Tractor 2022




-9

SCHEDULE "B"

RECEIVER CERTIFICATE

CERTIFICATE NO.

AMOUNT $

L. THIS IS TO CERTIFY that Deloitte Restructuring Inc., the receiver (the “Reeceiver”) of
certain property of Jagdeep Sangha Transport Inc., including all proceeds thereof (collectively, the
“Property”) appointed by Order of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (the “Court”) dated the
__day of __, 2025 (the "Order") made in an action having Court file number CV-25-
00003788-0000, has received as such Receiver from the holder of this certificate (the “Lender”)
the principal sum of $ , being part of the total principal sum of § which

the Receiver is authorized to borrow under and pursuant to the Order.

2. The principal sum evidenced by this certificate is payable on demand by the Lender with
interest thereon calculated and compounded [daily [[monthly not in advance on the day
of each month] after the date hereof at a notional rate per annum equal to the rate of per

cent above the prime commercial lending rate of Bank of from time to time.

3. Such principal sum with interest thereon is, by the terms of the Order, together with the
principal sums and interest thercon of all other certificates issued by the Receiver pursuant to the
Order or to any further order of the Court, a charge upon the whole of the Property, in priority to
the security interests of any other person, but subject to the priority of the charges set out in the
Order and in the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, and the right of the Receiver to indemnify itself

out of such Property in respect of its remuneration and expenses.

4. All sums payable in respect of principal and interest under this certificate are payable at

the main office of the Lender at Toronto, Ontario.

5. Until all liability in respect of this certificate has been terminated, no certificates creating

charges ranking or purporting to rank in priority to this certificate shall be issued by the Receiver



_3-
to any person other than the holder of this certificate without the prior written consent of the holder

of this certificate.

6. The charge securing this certificate shall operate so as to permit the Receiver to deal with
the Property as authorized by the Order and as authorized by any further or other order of the
Court.

7. The Receiver does not undertake, and it is not under any personal liability, to pay any sum

in respect of which it may issue certificates under the terms of the Order.

DATED the day of ,20

Deloitte Restructuring Inc., solely in its capacity
as Receiver of the Property, and not in its
personal or corporate capacity

Per:

Name:
Title:
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Plaingiff by Counterclaim

and

JAGDEELP SANGHA TRANSPORTING, and LAKHVYIR SANGHA

Defendants by Counterclaim

ORDER

{appointing Receiver)
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101 of the Courts of Justice Act, R.8.0. 1990, ¢. C.43, as amended (the ~'~‘~“QJ_A%)W} appointing .-
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WWWH—E}—%D&M_}_ was heard this day at 330-Universitye
Avenue-Torento?733 Huronfario Street. Brampton, Ontario, L6W 4T 1.
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ON READING the affidavit of fNAME]Mohammad Abu-Qube sworn HBATEYSeptember .-

15. 2025 and the Exhibits thereto (the “Abu-Qube Affidavit™) and on hearing the submissions of
counsel for INAMES]Daimler and the Deblor, no one glse appearing for-fNAMET-although duly

served as appears from the affidavit of service of [MNAME{Danny M. Nunes sworn

[{DATEISeptember &, 2025, and on reading the consent of -f 2]Deloitte to act

as the Receiver,

ot the-BhA-provides that-the-Court muy-appoint-a-receiver "onapplication-by-a-secured croditor™
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SERVICE

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the time for service of the Notice of Motion and the Motion

is hereby abridged and validated® so that this metienapplication is properly returnable today and

hereby dispenses with further service thereof.

DEFINED TERMS
2. THIS COURT ORDERS that capitalized terms nol otherwise defined hergin gshall have

the same meaning ascribed to them as in the Abu-Qube Affidavit.

APPOINTMENT,

2.3, THIS COURT ORDERS that pursuant to section 243(1) of the BIA and section 101 of+-----

the CTA, RECEDVER'S NAME|Deloitte is hereby appointed Receiver, without security, of ali
afover the assets—undertakines—and—propertesproperty of the Debtor acquiredfor—et-used-in

_,.,'-{Formatted:

Font: Bold
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Font: Bold
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relationsubiect, to a-business-earried-enthe sceurity interest granied 1o Daimley by the Debtor; _ . -{ Formatted: Prompt,PR,frpt }

ineluding under the Conditional Sale Contracts and all proceeds thereof {tie-, including buf ot 5 Farmatted: Prompt, PR, Pript )
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limited o the Outstanding Vehicles listed iz Schedule “A” hereto (the “Property™:”), . .{ pormatted: Font: Boid )

RECEIVER’S POWERS +--+--{ Formakteds Heading ¢

3.4, THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver is hersby empowered and authorized, but nots.....--{ Formatted: Font: Bold

obligated, to act at once in respect of the Property and, without in any way limiting the generality
of the foregoing, the Receiver is hereby expressly empowered and authorized to do any of the

following where the Receiver considers it necessary or desirable:

(a) to take possession of and exercise control over the Property and any and all

proceeds, receipts and disbursements arising out of or from the Property,

(b) to receive, preserve, and protect the Property, or any part or parts thereod,

including, but not limited to, the changing of locks and security codes, the

3 ‘5 A, H TS '_\ H‘f 1@‘ 2] y adRannesother than as-at ‘hﬁﬁ"f:‘ h,’ { ‘E( ’H‘a 5y )—!ﬁ)-l /. 4 '!'["h,;{ },. . If Feah )FdeF’ aé‘eﬁag'n ;
iereanlarserviee is-required-pursuant-to-Rule 08 o L the-Rives-af Chil-Procedie-and-may-be-gravted-in-apprepriale
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-d-

relocating of Property to safeguard it, the engaging of independent security

personnel, the taking of physical inventories and the placement of such

insurance coverage as may be necessary or desirable;

teh{c) fo engage consuliants, appraisers, agents, bailiffs, experts, auditors,-
accountants, managers, counsel and such other persons from time to fime
and on whatever basis, including on a temporary basis, to assist with the
exercise of the Receiver's powers and duties, including without limitation

those conferred by this Order;

fe)(d) to purchase or lease such machinery, equipment, inventories, supplies,

premises or other assets to cents sitzegs-af : O F-EHYY

orperts-thereofassist with the exercise of the Recgiver's poyvers and duties

including witheut limitation those conferred by this Order;

{Bie) toreceive and collect all monies and accounts now owed or hereafter owing

to the Debtor in respect of the Property and to exercise all remedies of the

Debtor in collecting such monies, including, without limitation, to enforce

any security held by the Debtor;

£e3(0) to settle, extend or compromise any indebtedness owing to the Debtor_in

respect of the Property;

th)(e) to execute, assign, issue and endorse documents of whatever nature in
respect of any of the Property, whether in the Receiver's name or in the

name and on behalf of the Debtor, for any purpose pursuant to this Order;

3(h) _to initiate, prosecute and continue the prosecution of any and all

proceedings and to defend afl procecedings now pending or hereafter

{ Formatted: Bullets and Numberiag
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instituted with respect to the DebsortieProperty or the Receiver, and to
settie or compromise any such proceedings.” The authority hereby conveyed
shall extend o such appeals or applications for judicial review in respect of

any order or judgment pronounced in any such proceeding;

G311 to market any or all of the Property, including advertising and soliciting
offers in respect of the Property or any part or parts thereof and negotiating
such terms and conditions of sale as the Receiver in its discretion may deem

appropriate;

(ki) _to sell, convey, transfer, lease or assign the Property or any part or parts

thereof out of the ordinary course of business,

(1)  without the approval of this Court in respect of any transaction,

excluding any {ransaction pursuant to paragraph 3 of this Order, not

exceeding §——--——8300.000. provided that the aggregate

consideration for all such transactions does not exceed

& —$1.000.000; and

(iiy  with the approval of this Court in respect of any transaction,

excluding any transaction vursuant to paragraph 5 of this Order, in

which the purchase price or the aggregate purchase price exceeds

the applicable amount set out in the preceding clause;

and in each such case notice under subsection §3(4) of the Ontario Personai

Property Security Act,

K This—mﬂdei ovder-dees—nat-include—speeificauthority—permitting-the Teceiverto-either-file—an—ussignment-in
sy—on-behalf olthe-Deblor—orto—consento—the—nakingof abanknipley—order againsi-the-Dablor—A

baﬂl\mplu—y may-have-the-o et of-attering-the priorities-amonyg-creditors-and-therefore-the-speeift cauthorit-ofthe

GMGHQW%MI&MQ&MWGM%
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ease-may-be}-shall not be required—andincachcase-the-Ontarie-Bufh-Sates
Aet-shatbnetapphy;

(h(k)_to appiy for any vesting order or other orders necessary fo convey the { Farmatted: Bulets and Numbering

Property or any part or parts thereof to a purchaser or purchasers thereof,

free and clear of any liens or encumbrances affecting such Property;

&m)([)_to report to, meet with and discuss with such affected Persons (as defined
below) as the Receiver deems appropriate on all matters relating to the
Property and the receivership, and to share information, subject to such

terms as to confidentiality as the Receiver deems advisable;

{1}———to-register-a-copy-ofthis-Order-and-any—other-Dreders—in-respeet-oi-the

Propes

g=l

{o)(m) to apply for any permits, liceaces, approvals or permissions in respec] of the+-- --{ Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Property as may be required by any governmental authority and any
renewals thereof for and on behalf of and, if thought desirable by the

Receiver, in the name of the Debtor;

{pinn)_to enter into agreements with any trustee in bankruptey appointed in respect

of the Debtor—ineluding without-Hmitiag-the senormbip-eftheforegoing;

the-nbilib—to-enter-into-occupation-agreementsforamy-propesy-owned-or
tonsed-by—the-Debtor:

(e)(0} to exercise any shareholder, partnership, joint venture or other rights_in

respect of the Property which the Debtor may have; and

()() to take any steps reasonably incidental to the exercise of these powers or the

performance of any statutory eblgations:obligation:

e {_Formattad: Space After; 0 pt

[ the-Recoiver-will be deatins-with-asseis in-other-proviness—consideradding-referancestonpplicable-statutesin
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and in each case where the Receiver takes any such actions or steps, it shall be exclusively
authorized and empowered fo do so, to the exclusion of all other Persons (as defined below),

including the Debtor, and without interference from any other Person.

SALE OF PROPERTY AT AUCTION

3, THIS COURT QORDERS that the Receiver is authorized to enter into_agreements with

Ritchie Bros. Auctioneers (Canada) Lid.. or such other auctioneer as may be approved by Daimler,

for the sale of one or more of the Quistanding Vehicles and other Property (collectively, ibe

“Purchased Assets™) at public auction. and take such steps and execule such additional documents

as mav be necessary or desirable for the sale of the Purchased Assets at public_auction and the

convevance of the Purchased Assets to respective purchasers,

6, THIS COURT ORDERS that upon Lhe completion of the sale of one or more of the

Purchased Assets at auction, upon receipt by the auclioneer of the purchase price and delivery of

a bill of sale or similar evidence of purchase and sale {the “Bill of Sale™). all of the Debtor’s right,

title and inferest in and to the Purchased Assel purchased by the respective purchaser shall vest

absolutely in such purchaser free and cicar of and from any and ail security inferests (whether

contractual, statutory. or otherwise), hypothees, mortgages, trusts or deemed trusts (whether

coniractual. statutory, or otfherwise). liens, executions. levies, charges. oy other financial or

monetary claims, whether ot not they have attached or been perfected. registered or filed and

whether secured. unsecured or otherwise {coliectively, the *Claims™). including. without Hmiting

the penerality of the forepoine: {0} any encumbrances or charges created by this Ouder: and (ii) all

clharees, security interests or claims evidenced by registrations pursuant to the Personal Property

Securify Acl (Ontario) O PPSA™. the Repair and Storage Liens Aot (Ontario) (“RSLA™). or any

other personal property registry _svstem_or similar provincial legislation (all ol which are

colleclively referred 1o as the *Encumbrances™ and. for greater certaindy. this Court orders that

all of the Encumbrances alfecting or relating to such Purchased Assets sold at auction are hereby

expunged and dischareed as against such Purchased Assels upon the delivery of a Bill of Sale,

7. THIS COURT ORDERS that. upon the completion of the sale of one or more Purchased

Asscts at auction, the Receiver is authorized to execute discharges or other documentation

necessary or desirable to discharae all PPSA. RSLA or other regisiralions against the Purchased




-8-

Assets and to execute all documentation necessary to {ranster ownership of the Purchased Asscts

and this Court hereby directs the Ministry of Transportation Ontario, Service Ontario and any

analogous governmental authority o endorse, certity and/or issue such doguments and take such

further actions as are necessary to give effect to this paragraph.

8. THIS COURT GRDERS that for the purposes ol determining the nature_and priority of

Claims, the nel proceeds from the sale of the Purchased Assets sold al auction shali stand in the

place and stead of the Purchased Assets sold al auction, and that from and after the delivery of a

Bill of Sale all Claims and Encumbrances shall attach fo the net proceeds from the sale of the

Purchascd Assets sold at auction and described in such Bill of Sale with the same priotity as they

had with tespect to such Purchased Assels immediately prior to their sale at apetion. as it such

Purchased Asseis had not been sold at auction and remained in_the possession or control of the

norson having that possession or control immediately priot to their sale at auction.

9, THIS COURT ORDERS (hal nolwithsianding:

(a) the pendeney of these procegdings;

by anv applications for a bankruptcy order now or hereafter issued pursuant to

the Bankruptey and fnsotvency Act {Canada) In respeet of the Deblor and

any bankruntev order issued pursuant to any such applications: and

(<) any assignment in bankruptcy made in respect ol the Debtor:

the vesting of each of the Purchasced Assels in jts respective parchaser pursuant to this Order shall

be binding on any trustee in bankruptcy that may be appointed in respect of the Debtor and shalt

not be void or voidable by creditors of the Debtor. nor shall it constitute nor be deemed to be a

fraudulent preference. assignment. fraudulent convevance, fransfer at undervalue, or other

reviewable transaction under the Bankrupicy and Insolvency Acf {Canada) or any other applicable

federal or provincial legislatjion. noy shall it constitute oppressive or unfairly prejudicial conduct

pursuant to any applicable federal or provincial legislation,
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DUTY TO PROVIDE ACCESS AND CO-OPERATION TO THE RECEIVER .
4:10. THIS COURT ORDERS that ¢i3(i) the Debtor, £i3(ii} all of its current and former_..-

governmental bodies or agencies, or other entities having notice of this Order (all of the foregoing,

collectively, being ““Persons™ and cach being a *Person™y"} shall forthwith advise the Receiver .-

of the existence of any Property in such Person's possession or control, shall grant immediate and
continued access to the Property to the Receiver, and shall deliver all such Property to the Receiver
upon the Receiver's request.

existence of any books, documents, securities, contracts, orders, corporate and accounting records,
and any other papers, records and information of any kind related to the business-or-affairs-of the

PubtesProperly, and any computer programs, computer tapes, compufer disks, or other data

THIS COURT ORDERS that all Persons shall forthwith advise the Receiver of the .-

7

{Formatted: Heading 1

'{Furmatted: Font: Boid

{ Formatied: Bullets and Numbering

A

{ Formatted: Font: Bold
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storage media containing any such information (the foregoing, collectively, the 2" Records™y") in .-

that Person's possession or control, and shall provide to the Receiver or permif the Receiver to
make, retain and take away copies thereof and grant to the Receiver unfettered access to and use
of accounting, computer, sofiware and physical facilities relating thereto, provided however that
nothing in this paragraph 311 or in paragraph §12 of this Order shall require the delivery of
Records, or the granting of access to Records, which may not be disclosed or provided to the
Receiver due to the privilege attaching to solicitor-client communication or due fo stafutory

provisions prohibiting such disclosure,

computer or other electronic system of information storage, whether by independent service
pravider or otherwise, all Persons in possession or control of such Records shall forthwith give
unfettered access to the Receiver for the purpose of allowing the Receiver to recover and fully
copy all of the information contained therein whether by way of printing the information onto
paper or making copies of computer disks or such other manner of reirieving and copying the
information as the Receiver in its discretion deems expedient, and shall not alter, erase or destroy

any Records without the prior written consent of the Receiver. Further, for the purposes of this

-'{Formaned: Font: Bold

{Furmaned: Font: Bold

,«{ Formatted: Font: Bold
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

;. II'”S E‘QL,R:; QRDERS “1:‘{ (i?f R R

el

seven-(Tr-duys-priosto-the-date-ofthe intended-removal-The relevant landlord-shall-be-entitled-to

E}i ‘]3 " ';S EaP Rewei,'er\s EE%"E ]H* \Hl te *‘Sin i o (o~ ry A > 2301 = - e iﬂ:e. -

sueh-fixture-shatl-remetn-on-the-premises-and-shall-be-dealt-with-as agreed betveor-any-applicable

INVESTIGATIVE POWERS

13, THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver is hereby authorized to exercise all availabie

investigative and other rights and remedies available to a trustee in bankruptey under the BIA and

is hereby authorized to examine under oath any Person, including but not limited o representatives

of the Debsor, that the Receiver reasonably considers fo have knowledge of the atfairs or Properiy

of the Debtor, including ihe Qutstanding Vehicles.

14, THIS COURT ORDIERS that, turther fo the preceding paragraph, the Receiver shai] be

authorized and empowered 10 examine, under oath, Laklvir Saneba. in his capacity as director and

officer of the Debtor. with respect to the location, whereabouss and disposition of the Property,

including the Qutstanding Vehicles, and such other matiers as the Recetver may see fit in catrying

out the terms and provisions of this Order and the administration ol the Receiver’s mandate set out

herein, Upon delivery of a notice of examination by the Receiver, Mr, Sangha is hereby directed

to attend at the examination at such time and place as the Receiver may advise,

NO PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE RECEIVER «--- - { Formatted: CRGen 12,G2
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$:13. THIS COURT ORDERS that no proceeding or enforcement process in any court or+ ...

with the written consent of the Receiver or with leave of this Court.

NO PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE DEBTOR GR THE PROPERTY e

9:16. [THIS COURT ORDERS that no Proceeding against or in tespect of the Bebtorar-thet..-

Property shalf be commenced or continued except with the written consent of the Receiver or with
leave of this Court and any and all Proceedings currently under way against or in respect of the

Debtororthe Property are hereby stayed and suspended pending further Order of this Court,

NO EXERCISE OF RIGHTS OR REMEDIES .-
18:17. THIS COURT ORDERS that all rights and remedies against the Debtor in respect of the=. .-

Property, the Receiver, or affecting the Property, are hereby stayed and suspended except with the
written consent of the Receiver or leave of this Court, provided however that this stay and
suspension does not apply in respect of any "eligible financial contract” as defined in the BIA, and
further provided that nothing in this paragraph shall (i) empower the Receiver or the Debtor to
carry on any business which the Debtor is not lawfully entitled fo carry on, (i) exempt the Receiver
or the Debtor from compliance with statutory or regulatory provisions relating to health, safety or
the environment, (iii} prevent the filing of any registration to preserve or perfect a security interest,

or (iv) prevent the registration of a claim for lien.

NO INTERFERENCE WITH THE RECEIVER *-

with, repudiate, terminate or cease to perform any right, renewal right, contract, agreement, licence

or permit in favour of or held by the Debtor in respect of the Property, without written consent of

the Receiver or leave of this Court.

CONTINUAHON-CHLSERVICES

f=)
or-statitery-or repulatory-muandates—{orthe-supphoof poods-and/or-services—including without
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are-herebyrestrained-unti-further Order of this- Court-from-diseontinuing—alicring-interfering-with

facgimile-numbers-internet-addresses-and-domain-namesprovided-in-each-case-that-the-normeal

e

Recelver-in-aceordancewith-notmalpayment-practices-ob-the-Beblor-or-soch-otherpractieesas

g 2 .;!gi-xed 3 pﬂﬂ 3: ‘ e ﬁ? i RO FGeEy .i“f EFG’ 'E! 1y H‘H&l‘”’iE z s 5',. EF, SRS H"i'ii‘ ba BFEI arad-hy

payments received or collected by the Receiver from and after the making of this Order from any
source whatsoever, including without limitation the sale of all or any of the Properiy-and-the
colleeton-olany-aveounts-receivable inwhole-orinpartwhether-in-existence-or-the-date-af-this

Order-er-hereaftcrcominghto-existence, shall be deposited into one or more new accounts to be

credit of such Post Receivership Accounts from time to time, net of any disbursements provided
for herein, shall be held by the Receiver to be paid in accordance with the terms of this Order or

any further Order of this Court.

EMPLOYEES e S
-‘{Formatted:

420, FHISCOH 3
ofsuch-emplovees—The THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver shail not be liable for any

employee-related liabilities, including any successor employer liabilities as provided for in sectien

14.06(1.2) of the BIA, other than such amounis as the Receiver may specifically agree in writing
to pay, or in respect of its obligations under sections 81.4(5) or 81.6(3} of the BlA-ertnderthe

Wage-EarnerProtectionProgremet,
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eshalh-diseloge--personal

information-ofidentifinbledndividunis-to-prospectivepurchasers-orbidders-for the Property-and-o
IR .E:ﬂ o Eth !i‘ ]E i. JJ e -

shall-return-alb-such-information-to-the Reeelver-or-in-the-alternive-destron-allsuch-information:

TFhe-purchaser-afam—Property—shall-be—entitledto—continne—te—use—the personab-information
ﬁI'E‘ ri' E}EE{ {E it‘ Bﬁd Fe HtiE tE * e )]-Giaei:{_)_pureha o Ed. "H ot aieh ]'S iH a“ iﬂ'itei‘ia 1.8516'36{-_5
identical-to-the-prier-use-of sueh-information-by—the-Debtor—and-shall-retusr-atl-other-persenal

21 THIS COURT ORDERS that any and all interested stakeholders in this proceeding and

their counsel are at liberty to scrve or distribute this Order, anv other materials and orders as may

be reasonably required in this procceding, including any notices. or other correspondence, by

torwarding true copies thereof by elecironic message fo such other interested stakcholders in this

proceeding and thekr counsef and advisors, For greater certainty. anv such distribution or service

shall be deemed to be in satisfaction of a legal or juridical obligation and notice reguirements

within the meaning of clause 3{c) of the Electronic Canunerce Protection Regulation, Reg, 18000-

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

]
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or other contamination including, without iimitation, the Caradian Environmental Protection Act,

the Ontario Environmental Protection Act, the Ontario Water Resources Act, or the Ontario

Occupational Health and Safety Act and regulations thereunder (the *Environmental .

Legislation™; "), provided however that nothing herein shall exempt the Receiver from any duty
to report or make disclosure imposed by applicable Envirommental Legislation. The Receiver shall
not, as a result of this Order or anything done in pursuance of the Receiver's duties and powers
under this Grder, be deemed to be in Possession of any of the Property within the meaning of any

Environmental Legislation, unless it is actually in possession.

1723, THIS COURT GRDERS that the Receiver shall incur no liability or obligation as a result+-... -

of its appointment or the-carrying out the provisions of this Order, save and except for any gross

negligence or wilful misconduct on its part, or in respect of its obligations under sections 81.4(5)

or 81.6(3) of the BlA-erunderthe-Hage EarnerProfectionProgresn—tet,. Nothing in this Order
shall derogate from the protections afforded the Receiver by section 14.06 of the BIA or by any

other applicable legislation.

RECEIVER'S ACCOUNTS -

reasonable fees and disbursements, in each case at their standard rates and charges unless otherwise

ordered by the Court on the passing of accounts, and that the Receiver and counse! to the Receiver

shali be entitled to and are hereby granted a charge (the " Receiver's Charge™) ") on the Property, .-

as security for such fees and disbursements, both before and after the making of this Order in
respect of these proceedings, and that the Receiver's Charge shall form a first charge on the
Property in priority to all security interests, trusts, liens, charges and encumbrances, statutory or
otherwise, in favour of any Person, but subject to sections 14.06(7), §1.4(4), and 81.6(2) of the
BIAY

4 mmwwmmmmemmmmmm%ewm
the-seeured-creditors-who-woukl be-materialy-attected-by-the-erderwere-given-reasonable-neticeand-an-opportunity

to-make representations™
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from time to time, and for this purpose the accounts of the Receiver and its legal counsel are hereby

referred to a judge of the-Commereiat-ist-of the-Ontarie-Superier CourteHusteethis Court,

20.26_ THIS COURT ORDERS that prior to the passing of its accounts, the Receiver shall be at __..--{ Formatted: Font; 8oig
liberty from time o time to apply reasonable amounts, out of the monies in its hands, against its

fees and disbursements, including legal fees and disbursements, incurred at the standard rates and

charges of the Receiver or its counsel, and such amounts shall constitute advances against its

remuneration and disbursements when and as approved by this Court.

FUNDING OF THE RECEIVERSHIP «--—-{ Formatted: Heading |

borrow by way of a revolving credit or otherwise, such monies from time to time as it may consider
necessary or desirable, provided that the outstanding principal amount does not exceed

N — ——-$500.000 (or such greater amount as this Court may by further Order authorize) at any

time, at such rate or rates of interest as it deems advisable for such period or periods of time as it
may arrange, for the purpose of funding the exercise of the powers and duties conferred upon the
Receiver by this Order, including interim expenditures. The whole of the Property shall be and is
security for the payment of the monies borrowed, together with interest and charges thereon, in
priority to ail security interests, irusts, Hens, charges and encumbrances, statutory or otherwise, in
favour of any Person, but subordinate in priority o the Receiver’s Charge and the charges as set

out in sections 14,06(7), 81.4(4), and 81.6(2) of the BIA.

2228, THIS COURT ORDERS that neither the Receiver's Borrowings Charge nor any other

security granted by the Receiver in connection with its borrowings under this Order shail be

enforced without leave of this Court.

substantially in the form annexed as Schedule *A™"B” hereto (the 2*Receiver’s Certificates™™) ..

—a

for any amount borrowed by it pursuant o this Order.
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2430, THIS COURT ORDERS that the monies from time to time borrowed by the Receiver _...--{ Formatted: Fent: Bold

pursuant to this Order or any further order of this Court and any and atl Receiver’s Certificates
evidencing the same or any part thereof shall rank on a pari passu basis, unless otherwise agreed

te by the holders of any prior issued Receiver's Certificates.

SIERVICE AND NOTICE e { Farmatted: Heading 1

25:31. THIS COURT ORDERS that the E-Service Pratocol of the Commercial List (the*--_s__,_i—»{ Formatted: Font; Bold

’ {Fnrmaued: Builets and Numbering

“Protocol”) is approved and adopted by reference herein and, in this proceeding, the service of
documents made in accordance with the Protocol (which can be found on the Commercial List

website at htptwwncontariocousis.calseifpractice/practice-directinnsforontelfe-serviee-

arateeekhitn://www.ontariocourts.ca/scl/practice/practice-directions/toronio/e-service-protocol/}

shall be valid and effective service. Subject to Rule 17.05 this Order shall constitute an order for
substituted service pursuant to Rule 16.04 of the Rules of Civil Procedure. Subject to Rule 3.01(d)
of the Rules of Civil Procedure and paragraph 21 of the Protocol, service of documents in

accordance with the Protocol will be effective on transmission. This Court further orders that a

Case Website shall be established in accordance with the Protocol

26:32. THIS COURT ORDERS that if the service or distribution of documents in accordance __..--{ Formatted: Font: Botd

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

mailing,

GENERAL *”'“‘{ Formatted: Heading 1

27:33. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver may from time to time apply to this Court for~....--{ Formatted: font: Boid

” {L Formatted: Bullels and Numbering

advice and directiens in the discharge of its powers and duties hereunder.
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28:34. THIS COURT ORDERS that nothing in this Order shall prevent the Receiver from acting . --

as a frustee in bankruptey of the Debtor.

20.35, THIS COURT HEREBY REQUESTS the aid and recognition of any court, tribunal, .-~

regulatory or administrative body having jurisdiction in Canada or in the United States fo give
effect to this Order and to assist the Receiver and its agents in carrying out the terms of this Order.
All courts, tribunals, regulatory and administrative bodies are hereby respectfully requested to
make such orders and to provide such assistance to the Receiver, as an officer of this Court, as
may be necessary or desirable to give effect to this Order or to assist the Recciver and its agents in

carrying out the terms of this Order.

36-36. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Receiver be at liberty and is hereby authorized and .

empowered to apply to any court, tribunal, regulatory or administrative body, wherever located,
for the recognition of this Order and for assistance in carrying out the terms of this Order, and that
the Receiver is authorized and empowered fo act as a representative in respect of the within
proceedings for the purpose of having these proceedings recognized in a jurisdiction oufside

Canada.

3+37. THIS COURT ORDERS that the-PlaistiHDaimler shall have its costs of this motion, up __.--

to and including entry and service of this Order, provided for by the terms of the
BlaintiffsDaimier’s security or, if not so provided by the-RleintitfsDaimler’s security, then on a
substantial indemnity basis to be paid by the Receiver from the Debtor's estate with such priority

and at such time as this Court may determine.

amend this Order on not less than seven (7) days'davs’ notice to the Receiver and to any other
party likely to be affected by the order sought or upon such other notice, if any, as this Court may

order.

39, THIS COURT ORDERS that this Order and all of its provisions are effective as of

12:01AM ES'T on the date of this Order and is enforceable without any need for entry and filing,.

-{Formatted: Font: Bold
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Qutstanding Vehicles

SCHEDULE "A"

. ’; Fermatted: Font: 12 pt

1UYV82536J2198394 Utility Tandem Reefer 2018
1UYVS253412369210 Utility Tandem Reefer 2018
1UYVS253112994759 Utility Tandem Reefer 2018
3H3V3IZ2KINS340030 Flyundai Dry Van 2022
3H3IV3II2KONS340029 Hyundai Bry Van 2022
SAKIHHDRTNSNE30360 Freightliner Cascadia 126 2022
JAKJHHDRXNSNE30352 Freightliner Cascadia 126 2022
2SHSR3329PS002083 Vanguard Cool Globe 2023
SAKIHHDRIRSUUS2 16 Freightliner PT120LP 2024
SAKIHHDRORSUUS2 |7 Freightliner PTI126LP 2024
1UYVS3539M20 14236 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
TUYVE3535M2014234 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
1UYVS35360M2614243 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
1UYVS3534M2014242 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021

: 3H3V333CTIMT714007 Unlity Recfor Trailer 2021
b6 | 3H3V3IZCOMT714009 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
TUYVS3537M2814233 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021
IH3IV3I33COMT714011 Utility Reefer Trailer 2021

H BAKIHHDROENSNE30T Freightliner Tractor 2022

BECERIRIAHIAD v8-Model_Receivership. Orier—{T—Reyes)dos
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e { Formatted: Cefault Paragreph Font
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’ { Formatted: Normal, Left

SCHEDULE "B"

RECEIVER CERTIFICATE e { Pormatted: Heading 2

CERTIFICATE NO.

AMOQUNT $

I THIS IS TO CERTIFY_that .-+{ Formatted: Font: Bold

F Sl o S P s e ot S Kl T e e

receiver (the " Receivert)") of the-assets:-undertakings-and properties {DEBTORS-NAME] ... { Formatted: Font: Bold

aequired-for-ot-used-inrelation-to-a-business-earded-on-by-the Debtorcertain property of Jagdeep

Sangha Transport Inc., including all proceeds thereof (cotlectively, the “Property™) appointed by .. --{ Formatted: Font: bold
Order of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (Commercial List)-{the *"Court*}”) dated the ___.--{ Formatted: Font; Bold
day of 262025 (the "Order") made in an action having Court fite number €L~ _.-{ Formatted: Font; Bold

— CV-25-00003788-0000, has received as such Receiver from the holder of this certificate

(the “Lender)") the principal sum of § _____, being part of the total principal sum of _....-{ Formatted: Font: Gold
b which the Receiver is authorized o borrow under and pursuant te the Order.

2. The priacipal sum evidenced by this certificate is payable on demand by the Lender with

inferest thereon calculated and compounded [daily][monthiy rot in advance on the day

of cach month] after the date hereof at a notional rate per annum equal to the rate of per ___..~{ Farmatted: Font: Bold
cent above the prime commercial lending rate of Bank of from time to time.

3. Such principal sum with interest thereon is, by the terms of the Order, together with the

principal sums and interest thereon of all other certificates issued by the Receiver pursuant to the
Order or to any further order of the Court, a charge upon the whele of the Property, in priority to
the security interests of any other person, but subject to the priority of the charges set out in the
Order and in the Bankrupicy and Insolvency Act, and the right of the Receiver to indemnify itself

out of such Property in respect of its remuneration and expenses.

4. All sums payable in respect of principal and interest under this certificate are payable at

the main office of the Lender at Toronto, Ontario.

{ Formatted: DoclD
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<~_.,,‘,~1[ Farmatted: Defauit Paragraph Font

b o o e e e m e e e e e

) {Furmatted: Normal, Left

5. Until all liability in respect of this certificate has been terminated, no certificates creating
charges ranking or purporting to rank in priority to this certificate shall be issued by the Receiver
to any persen other than the holder of this certificate without the prior written consent of the holder

of this certificate,

o, The charge securing this certificate shail operate so as to permit the Receiver fo deal with
the Property as authorized by the Order and as authorized by any further or other order of the
Court,

7. The Receiver does not undertake, and it is not under any personal liability, to pay any sum

in respect of which it may issue certificates under the terms of the Order.

DATED the day of .20

FREGIEIWVER'S NAME]Deloitte Restructuring
Ing.. solely in its capacity

as Receiver of the Property, and not in its
personal or corporate capacity

et { Formatted Table

Per:

Name;
Title:

{ Formatted: DoclD
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